.

o S o B - B D % R - (X

said -- because she said it was going to take a [ong time, it's a fong process.
So, you know, she said that was for the whole thing, so basically | was just
paying her, you know, as we went along. That was the plan. It was never -
the money was never a problem. | was just paying. It was never an issue.

Q And so you're saying she was never --

A She never asked me about no maney, never said nothing, It was
always, you know, and | figured, okay, | figured, ckay, maybe -- | just tell my -
tell my wife at the time to, you know, just drop her some money. | used to
always try to, you know, see -- see what was going on, you know with -- as far
as monsy. But she -- money was never an [ssue. She never said nothing about
no money,

Q And do you know at the end of the day, do you know how much
you ended up paying her?

A At least four -- at least 4 000, if not more.

Q Okay. Now, Mr. Harris, you mentioned that you found, | want to
make sure | understand because you initially said that you found out at the
beginning of 2014 that the writ hadn't been filed; is that correct?

A Yeah.

Q | just want to make sure I'm getting the time right.

A | believe, yeah. Yeah,

Q  So you said - so that's about -- we're looking at about two years,
close to two years ago; is that fair to say?

A Yeah, now. Yeah, now it is, yeah,

@ Okay. And so arcund that time is when you realized that it hadn't

been filed and you said that -~
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A Maybe a couple years ago.

Q Okay. Well, and | -- what I'm trying te figure out is because | show
here that it was in March of 2015 that you filed your own, kind of, a
handw ritten oneg?

A So it - s0 it had to be the end of 2014.

Q Okay.

A Yeah, that's when | found out.

Q Because you said that, I'm just trying to figure out the timing. and
80 you're saying it wasn't until the end 2014 that you -- that you didn't find
out?

A Yeah. Yeah. That's and — | started filing all my paperwork in
January.

Q And during that time, so during the 2000 -- basicatly, during 2014,
did you ~- I'm not familiar with completely all the things they have there at
prison, but did you look into it, see what's going on with the writ, anything
along those lines?

A Na. | -

Q  Throughout that whole year?

A No. Because | thought | was waiting on the response. Because last
time | was waiting on a response, like when | did my appeal, you know, ain't
nothing you can do, you know, but wait on a response from the, you know, |
get legal mail. That's how Lthey do it. They come around to do the legai mail
process. So |, you know, | just — just took a deal on one case, s0 | was, you
know . just really just waiting, you know, | was in there, | was jusl waiting to

see the outcome.
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Q Ckay. So for 2014 it wasn't until the end of that until you --

A Yeah.

Q « until you iooked into it?

A Yeah. Until | -- until | felt it was around that time -- because they

got, like, up to a year to, from my understanding from what they -- what they
say around prison, they got, like, a year lo respond to you, right, in the -- in the
Supreme Courts or whatever, in the courts, they got, like, a year, you know, SO
I'm thinking I'm waiting on a response.

Q During that year were you in touch with Ms. Park?

A No_

Q During 20147

A No. Because the last -- the last - the last time, you know, con --
what last interactions we had it was -- it was - | could never really - it was so
hard to get in touch with her, like, she would be busy or, you know, or - or the
secretary wouldn't answer, iike, would never -- | never -- | always called on my
own maney, you know , but they never would answer no calls as far as, you
know , ccllect or nothing like that. So | used to have to get & three-way or -- or,
you know? Il was just so hard to try to get through to somebody.

Q And during that time of 2014 was Ms. Park ever paid in full?
Because you taiked about having paid a few thousand or paid half, was she

gver paid more during 20147

A No.

Q Okay.

A No.

Q And -- and your testimony today is that she never mentioned to you
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that you needed to pay?

A No.

Q And that that payment was due, but you knew that you hadn't paid
up?

A Yeah, yeah, | knew, because | knew it was a process, so mayhbe
when | got -~ heard anything or she came to see me about anything or did
anything, you know, I'd've always paid her. if anything, i she did anything on
my case, | would have, you know . been glad to pay her, if she did anything.

Q But you knew that during 2014 you didn't pay her anything?
Yeah, | knew.

For the year?

¥eszh

2 O >

And sc you would agree she hadn't been paid in full, even to this
day?
No, not as to 2014, no.

And so, even to today, she hadn't been paid up for everything?

G &

No. No,

Q Now as far as -- as far as the timing on this, and so during that, |
just want to make sure I'm clear, so during 2014, it wasn't until the end that
you looked into it to see what was going on?

A Yes.

MR. THUNELL: All right. |'ll go ahead and pass, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay., Any redirect?

MR. CARLING: Your Honor, | don't -- | don't think | have any follow-up

questions on that {ine of questioning,
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THE COURT. All right.
S0, Mr. Harris, you said that you contacted. you called the Supreme
Court, when was it you called?

THE WITNESS: No, | wrote ‘em.

THE COURT: You wrote?

THE WITNESS: Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. When did you write the Supreme Court?

THE WITNESS: Maybe around January.

THE COURT: ©Of?

THE WITNESS: Just as -- oh, well, maybe, yeah, maybe December,
mayoe the end of December, like, 2014, to ses -- because | thought | was
waiting on the response, so | was just trying to see where was we at, you
know, like, you know, like, pending or something. But then when they said it
was nothing been going on.

THE COURT: | thought that you said you determined at some poinl that
the document had been filed in the wrong court. When was that? When did
you do that?

THE WITNESS: That was -- that was maybe a couple months after she
sent it to me.

THE COURT. Okay.

THE WITNESS: And she -- s0 | would say -

THE COURT: So why would you have calied the Supreme Court or
written to the Supreme Court if you knew that it wasn't supposed to be filed in
the Supreme Court?

THE WITNESS: Just so see where | was at in my case. | don't - | didn't
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really know how it worked like, you know, how far the system worked.

THE COURT: And so you only wrote to the Supreme Court?

THE WITNESS: And the State court.

THE COURT: Okay. Did you keep copies of those letters?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Did you receive letters back?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, i did. It shouid be something attached to the -- to
the thing saying that nothing has been - nothing was done,

THE COURT: Is there anything that you have in your file?

MR, CARLING: Well, Your Honor, | believe he's referring to his pro se
petition, post-conviction. He attached the exhibits he recsived from the clerk
indicating in the document nothing has been filed.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Do you have that petition?

MR. CARLING: 1 do have that, Your Honor. May | approach? If you'd
like to see that.

THE COQURT: Yes.

Are you saying that what you've just handed me, which is the
docket -- the docket entries for his Supreme Court appeal is what he gttached?

MR, CARLING: Yes, Your Honor, Well, the format's diff -- a little
different. | actually have the actual ones. Well, he actually attached docket
from the Nevada Supreme Court as well as the District Court. You just have
the District Court there. He attached lhem as Exhibits C and D to his pro se
petition.

THE COURT: Okay. What | have in my hand is the docket from the
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Supreme Court .

MR. CARLING: Oh, okay. I've got — and I've got the actual docket the
Cistrict Court as well.

THE COURT: Do you have the -- a copy of his pro per petition there?
Because | -

MR. CARLING: | do.

THE COURT: My law clerk didn't give me the original pro per petition this
maorning.

MR. CARLING: May | approach?

THE COURT: Yes,

S0 as can be seen, the docketing statement from -- of the case
summary for Department V in District Court was printed out on January 6th,
2015; and the Supreme Court docket sheet was printed oul an Wednesday,
December 31st, 2014, and then he filed his petition for writ of habeas corpus
on March 11th, 2015, do those dates refresh your recollection?

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT. Qkay. So the documenl that you got from Ms Parks
was -- had a date on it of June of 2013, so you believed from that that she had
filed that document in the Supreme Court. And when did you tell her, You
made a mistake?

THE WITNESS: | would say no later than August.

THE COURT: No later than Augusi?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. Did you write this petition?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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THE COURT: s that in your handw riting?

THE WITNESS: Well, no.

THE COURT: isit -~ no?

THE WITNESS: It's not in my handwriting.

THE COURT: Okay, Who wrote it?

THE WITNESS: My friend, Mark. He -- he -- he -- he know how to -- |
was -- | helped him though.

THE COURT" Okay. Do you read, write, and understand English?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: You do read?

THE WITNESS: Yes,

THE COURT: All right. So | want to refer you to page 10 of your
petition -- and if you'll come get that -- bottom paragraph, read that aloud to
me.

THE WITNESS: Okay. As the direct appeal was denied --

THE COURT: Neo, the bottom paragraph. See there's ar indent,

THE WITNESS: Okay. Okay. In December of 2013 petitioner made
contact with Ms. Park and advised her of the fact that the petition for -

THE COURT: And then it goes on on the next page, Writ of habeas
corpus was filed in the wrong court, as it should have been filed in the District
Court. So August? You just testified --

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- you contacted her no later than August

THE WITNESS: Yeah. It was a couple months later,

THE COURT: So which is — which is -~ which is correct August or what
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you put in your petition back in March of 2015 where you said it was
December?

THE WITNESS: It was December then. | mean, if that's -- but | know it
was couple months later. | didn't know the exact date, | just know it was a
couple months prior to her sending me the paper.

THE COURT: After?

THE WITNESS: After, yeah. After.

THE COURT: Okay. Give me back that page.

All right. So then you didn’t do anything all of 20147

THE WITNESS: Fourteen, no.

THE COURT: Except that you did at the very end, the last day of 2014,
you printed cut or had printed out the docket sheet?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Right? And that was the docket sheet for the Supreme
Court. Did you print that out yourseif?

THE WITNESS: Yes. Well, no, they sent it to me.

THE COURT. Sent it to you?

THE WITNESS: Yeah,

THE COURT: So how long did it take to you receive that.

THE WITNESS: Maybe, like, no more than, like, two weeks, no maore, it
was pretty fast.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. And who was it that actually to your
knowledge delivered funds, money, to Ms. Park?

THE WITNESS: Chartia, Chartia Harris, which was my wife at the time.

THE COURT: She's not your wife now ?
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THEWITNESS: | mean, she is, but 'm going -- divorce has been filed and
all that type of stuff. So, | mean, legally, yeah, but no. It's in the Process.

THE COURT: Okay Did you pay -- how did you pay her? By what
means?

THE WITNESS. Cash.

THE COURT: 8o --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Bills?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, cash.

THE COURT: And where did you the money come from?

THE WITNESS: My wife.

THE COURT: | mean, did you take it out of a bank account or something
like that where there would be evidence of that?

THE WITNESS: ) mean, I'm sure she can tell you that, You know . | ain't
going to lie about the monay, she know she was getting paid.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: | mean, | don't, | mean, | can try to get receipts or
something, | don't know. | don't know .

THE COURT: Okay.

Any questions as a result of my guestions?

MR. THUNELL: None, Your Honor.

MR. CARLING: No.

THE COURT. Allright. Do you have any other witnesses?

MR. CARLING: You know, if Ms. Park is still present I'd like to recall her

based on some of the questions you asked.
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THE COURT: Okay.
Ms. Park.

THE CLERK: Still under oath?

THE COURT: Yes. You're still under oath.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

LESLIE PARK,
[having been recalled as a witness and being previously sworn, testified as
follows:]
FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION OF LESLIE PARK
BY MR. CARLING:

Q Ms. Park, did you receive any cash payment on behalf of
Mr. Harris?

A Yes.

Q And do you recall approximately how much the total was?

A | believe he was correct. | believe | had been paid 4,000,

Q And the total amaunt that -- pursuant to the retainer, was
approximately 8,0007

A That's correct.

MR. CARLING: I'li pass the witness.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION OF LESLIE PARK
BY MR THUNELL.

Q Ms. Park, around the time of, | mean, we're talking about the time
when you dummied up, kind of, that writ, around that time had you been paid
additional funds?

A No,
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Q So when you say 4,000, at what point had you been paid 40007

A | believe it -- the appeal had been filed at that point, bul there was
still the balance remaining.

Q Okay. So the $4,000 being previous to anything going on with
this?

A Yes.

Q Had there been a payment within, like, a month or so of this whole
writ process?

A Ne.

Q And | just want to make sure I'm clear, when you spoke with the
defendant after giving him this dummy writ. as we'll call it -

A Uh-huh.

Q -- did you make it clear that you needed to be paid to file that?

A Yes. And | believe that that was a conversation that was with his
wife present while he was on the phone In the office.

Q Okay. S0 and | just wanted -- so it wasn't just with his wife, it was
with his wife and him on the phone listening? And you say -- and you made
clear that you had not filed that writ and you would not until you had been
paid?

A Correct,

MR. THUNELL: Thank you.

THE COQURT: Defense?

MR. CARLING: No further guestions,

THE COURT: Did you ever send them any letters asking them to pay their

balance?
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THE WITNESS: ! did not send them letters. | had phone contact with his
wife, There were many times she would say that she was going to be in to
pay, but she wouldn't come in.

THE COURT: Okay. So did you file the appeal before receiving any
payment?

THE WITNESS: No. | had received half of the money -- | wouldn't say I'd
received half of the money, maybe close. | believe they made another payment
after | had filted it.

THE COURT: Okay. So why, given the fact that you hadn'l been paid
even for the balance of what you were owed, even though it doesn't say that
on here.

THE WITNESS: It doesn't.

THE COURT: Mr. Harris has testified he thinks it was $8,000, but he
thinks it was for everything, but why would you have done any work on a
petition for writ of habeas corpus if you hadn't been paig?

THE WITNESS: Well, when | had the conversation with him he wanted to
know what kind of things | would be putting in it and that's why | sent him
that, so he would have an idea of what | would -- and honestly, | didnt want to
be caught last minute if they did come and pay have 1o fite it, you know, in a
two-day time period.

But | know he had said something about having the wrong caption
on the top, and | had indicated that's something that | would fix, it was just
kind of a sample of what | would have done to put in the writ,

THE COURT: Okay. And you never wrote him any letter saying, look,

there's a deadline for filing this petition?
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THEWITNESS: No. We'd had conversations about there was a deadiine.
He was aware there was a one-year deadline for that_

THE COURT: Qkay. But you never sent him any letter, you never told
him in writing, look, this has not been filed and if you want me to filg it, you've
got to pay; so if you don't, you know, I'm not going to fite anything for you or
do anything for you unless you pay me: and, therefore, if you don't want to
jeopardize your rights, you need to file this; you never did that in writing?

THE WITNESS: | never did it in writing, no, there were conversations but
never in writing.

THE COURT: Okay. So no gommunication whatsoever with this client or
his family in writing?

THE WITNESS: Not in writing, no.

THE COURT: Did you ever visit him in the prison?

THE WITNESS: | did visit him in the prison prior to drafting up that -- that
what you see there, We had a conversation about what would be in the writ —
and he's shaking his head, no. I'm pretty sure | did. Maybe I'm mistaken. |
would have to, you know, | don't know if the prison keeps records, but | believe
that | did.

THE COURT: Would you not keep a record of your time if you -- if you
went and visited?

THE WITNESS: | don't bill by the hour.

THE COURT. Or your costs for going there? Nothing?

THE WITNESS; No, | don't -- | don't bill by the hour. |t was 3 flat fee.
So I'm pretty sure that we did have that conversation, that was prior to me

drafting that up and that | did go see him, but he's saying no, and maybe I'm
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mistaken, but | believe | did.

THE COURT: Okay. Any questions as a result of my questions?

MR CARLING: No.

THE COURT: Thank you, again.

THE WITNESS: QOkay. Thank you,

THE COURT: Allright. Mr. Harris, we can get these records from the
prison about who visited you, so.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: If we go to all that trouble, is it in the record?

THE WITNESS. | already know.

THE COURT: Parden me?

THE WITNESS: | said | already know, ma‘am. | wouldn't lie about
nothing. | wouldn't lie.

THE COURT: Okay. So there's going to be a record that she visited you
at the prison.

THE WITNESS: | never got a visit. Yeah, | --

THE COURT: What time frame do you think that was?

THE WITNESS: | never got a visit.

THE COURT: Oh, I'm sorry, you never got a visit. So she's saying you
did and, ckay, all right.

Anything else? Any witnesses?

MR. CARLING: No more witnesses for the defense, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Naone of these family folks out here have anything Lhat they
could offer? Okay. Ali right. Argument,

MR. CARLING: Your Honor, this Court asked a lot of the gquestions that |
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was going to argue, a lot of the issues that were just sort of hanging out there
I refer to Exhibit A, and | refer to the last page, why would an attorney sign a
certificate of mailing that that had been done. Mr. Farris is not an articuiate
man in any sense, in the legal sense as well. And I'm certain that if an inmate
receives something like this, he's going to assume that it was taken care of.
That's why | think this is really, really paramount as an exhibit, as evidence that
he placed his trust in Ms. Parks.

The question of money, it's sort of a collatersl issue here. Certainly
she had a duty, if she files a notice of appeal under the fast track rule. | think
it's Rule C, appellate Rule C, she's got to file at least something in that respect
and that happened. Whether or not her total fee encompassed doing this,
that's pure speculation. Mr. Harris says - indicates contrary to what Ms. Park
says. But what we have is the actual evidence that he received something and
it says it was mailed and it was filed. And | think that that is - that's speaks
volumes as to what his understanding of the situation was.

Anather issue that this Court brought up that | was going to argue
is, when you receive an affirmance decision from the Supreme Gourt, and Very
shortly you're going to get a remittitur, appeliate counsel should alw ays, in
writing, say, okay, your next remedy is a post-conviction writ for fiabeas
corpus. You've got one year that starts from the entry of the judgment of
conviction, but it's tolled on appeal, bul then after the remiltitur's issued, it
starts counting again,

My calculation said that that -- the -- that the deadline for filing a
post-conviction petition would have been approximately the middle of January,

2004. Good practice is is you always put thal in writing so that these typss of
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Issuas don't happen because certainly defense -- a defendant is going o argue,
| didn't know, she said a year, he said a year, | didn't how that was calculated.

And -- and when he's got retained counsel, which there's no
question she was retained for post-conviction matters, that's something that
counsel needs to address, certainly put in writing, so counsel can protect
themselves when these types of issues.

Your Honer, based upon the totality of the evidence, the lestimony
here | think Mr. Harris was under the impression that this was taken care of and
the fact that he waited so long, | think, is of no consequence here when he said
[ filed stuff and when i didn't get a response, then I'm thinking something's up,
| need to check for myself, and he did that. Unfortunately, it was way after the
deadline had tolled. So, and my argument is it was a circumstance that was
exterior or outside his control because he put his faith in retained counse!:
therefore, the Court should waive the timeliness matter and ook at the petition
an its merits.

THE COURT: And what | want you to address is, specitically, how does
the facts -- how do the facts of this case compare with the facts of Hathaway
where they said there was basically sufficient shewing to get over the time bar?

MR. THUNELL: Well, and | think, and what's touched on in discussing
Hathaway -- let me make sure | -- the difference being is Hathaway. if 'm not
mistaken, has to do with the appeal. | mean, Hathaway has to do with the
appeal, this being the writ, it's a different standard. There is a different
standard as to --

THE COURT. Well, the difference, it was a time bar issue, it was a time

bar 1ssue as to the filing a writ, was it not? And the facts were that the
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defendant believed that his lawyer was still pursuing the appeal; therefore, the
time hadn't begun to run per the one year from remittitur after the decision on
the appeal. So basically, its reliance -- reliance on counsel doing something,
belisving that something has been done. In that case it was that the appeal
hadn't been decided but he believed that counsel had filed it and was PUrsUing
it and he was waiting.

In this case the difference is he knew the appeal was done, bul he
believed his law yer had, in fact, filed the writ.

MR THUNELL: Well —

THE COURT: So that's what I'm --

MR. THUNELL: Okay. And | appreciate, Your Honor, | mean. with
Hathaway, In all candor, | did not write this. | mean. so I'm not going to sit
nere and pretend | know everything about this. But as far as my understanding
is, is that Hathaway has to do with on direct appeal in which he has a right to
counsel. This being a writ, it's a different issue because it's not the same - it's
not the same counsel -- not the same right tc counsel. So it's differentiated in
that sense, | mean, and so | think that alone would be enough to differentiate
that from Hathaway In that split.

But | just, i feel like | do need to interject, we've heard from counsel
here today that she had this conversation very clearly with him that it had not
been filed. And so | know we have this paper and thal it's been signed and
that's, you know, obviously, hindsight is 20-20, though. it was not a good idea
to sign it if you're not filing it, but she had a conversation and he said he had
conversations with her after the fact, and that these conversations were it had

not been filed, | need to be paid, and that it's going to be taken care of, | know
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it wasn't in writing, but we've heard testimony from — from the counsel that he
had been informed of this, he had been told this, that he understood this. And
he admits that he had had conversations after the fact, and even talks about
how he said -- told her, well, you can't -- this was filed in the wrong spot.

Now, | guess the difference is what his -- what he's saying here
today, but she said she was very clear that it wasn't going to he in that. And
50 we've heard testimony that he knew that it needed to be paid up to have
that filed. As to Hathaway though, | mean, I'll need to submit it. In all candor,
I'm sure Your Honor understands the case a little bit better than myself, but, |
mean, just in looking at this, it's a difference as to direct appeal versus writ,
right to counsel versus don't have that same.

THE COURT: Well, | guess, | mean, the argument that the State has
posed is that you don't have a right to post-conviction counsel. But | don't
know whether the State's trying to argue that the difference with Hathaway is,
well, that the error, if there was error or problems with counsel, it was
ineffectiveness of counsel was by not filing the appeal, vis-a-vis, not fiting the
petition. But I'm -- | guess {'ll have to reread Hathaway again, that's why | was
hoping you could address that aspect of it.

MR, THUNELL: My apologies, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But to see whether they're focusing on the ineffectiveness,
the merits, in other words, but | don't know that they were because it -- |
thought with Hathaway it was remanded back to consider the merits of the
petition, where the District Court had said, no, it's time barred; and they said,
no, because he was relying on counsel. As | say, I'll reread the case again.

MR, THUNELL: | guess the State -- the State's position is that that that's
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differentiated under Brown, that a direct appeal would be different than the writ
as to what -- with counsal.

THE COURT: Okay. As far as Ms. Park's testimony, there, | maan, |
wish | had a better confidence in the accuracy of the testimony. but | don't
understand why. number one, you would do any work on something where you
were trying Lo get paid for something you hadn't been paid for already; that you
would have a fee agreement that doesn't have any fees, you know . it's mostiy
blank except for the name of the client and the signature by someone other
than the client; that you would not do - you would not have clear
communications with your client in writing. | mean, so all of those things, and |
guess | -- | was inclined initially to ask for further information from the defense
as far as the jail or, excuse me, the prison visitation record perhaps, but the
thing is is that now Ms. Parks, when she's recalled, says, well, yvou know, |
don’t remember that, but maybe he's right, Sc even if it, you know, it doesn't
show any visit, [ don't know that that changes anything because her testimony
Is ambiguous in that regard.

MR, THUNELL: Well, and | would propose to the Court that | think the
important thing is what happened afierwards, because so much seems to be
couched on this writ, the dummy writ, | guess there's no other way to say it, |
mean, the bare bones thing, is what was the discussion after that, | mean,
that's how the State --

THE COURT. Well —

MR. THUNELL: --is whether he kpew that that was -- had been filed,
was going to be filed, things along those lines.

THE COURT: Well, his testimony was that he thought it had been filed.

=)
o
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if she -- if she never visited him in the prison, as he says, she's got no record of
communication with him whatsocever, | mean. Frankly, her testimony alone at
this point is not really convincing 1o the Court given how this case was handled,
you know, given what | see. It's, at best, sloppy, at best, you know, to
characterize it as that. | just -- this Is --
Marshal, you can return this to Ms. Farks for her file.

THE CLERK: And counsel Exhibit A back, it was never admitted.

THE COURT: Exhibit A --

MR. CARLING: May | approach the clerk?

THE COURT: -- was admitted by stipulation,

THE CLERK: Was t? Ch, | didn't hear,

THE COURT: And then, of course, the Court Exhibit -- the retainer
agreement is Court Exhibit 1.

THE CLERK: | have it.

MR THUNELL: The last thing the State would just - and | won't argue,
I'll just put -- I'll just refer back to what we'd written -- is the State -- even if
there was reliance and everything kind of went the way the defendant is
saying, the State still believes there wouidn't be actual prejudice considering the
merits underlying, but I'll submit it there to Your Honor.

THE COURT: Oh, yeah, but the Court has not consider - | mean --

MR. THUNELL: | understand, That's all. | was just going to put in there,
Your Honor.

THE COURT; --just because | know that at the last hearing the deputy or
the person, | can't remember if it was a law clerk, you know, sworn in te

practice, was arguing, well, but the, you know, there's the other prong. But |
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had made it clear that this hearing was only as to the issue of time bar and that
if | didn't -~ if | wasn't convinced that there was, you could gel past the time
bar, then there would be no point in addressing the merits.

MR. THUNELL: Gaod paint, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But even if there is, if | found that there was no time bar,
there still has to be a showing on the merits of the petition and under, you
khow , the Strickfand standard, so we hadn't gven gotten there.

MR. THUNELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: | was trying to basically save money and resources of the
State since he's got appointed counsel, there's no need to address the merits of
the petition until we know. [ think some of the merits were arqued in the
supplemental petition, but not in the manner, | think, that it would be if we
made the decision.

50 I'm going to reread Hathaway and then I'll go ahead and issug
an order concerning whether or not | think that we need additional briefing on
the merits,

MR. THUNELL: Sounds good. Thank you, Your Honor,

THE COURT: DBid you want to add --

MR CARLING: Yeah, yeah. |can discuss Hathaway because -

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CARLING: The Nevada Supreme Court cited a Ninth Circuit case,
Loveland, in which the -- and the Hathaway | think where Lhe State's confused,
and rightfully so, Hathaway was a direct appeal that wasn't filed, but he
immediately, when he found ouwt, filed a post-conviction petition because that

was his remedy, that was the vehicle to use. And the Court used the Ninth
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Circuit's anatysis to see if there was good cause to overcome the time bar by
citing three things: That the defendant actually believed his counsel was
pursuing the direct appeal, or that his belief was objectively reasonable, and
that he filed a post-conviction petition within a reasonable time of finding out
what was going on.

| think all three of those prongs have been established here pursuant
to Mr. Harris's testimony. Whsther or not supported by Ms. Park is up to the
Court to make that determination. But he relied on her. | think it's oojectively
reasonable that he relied on her. And then when he got those docketing
statements in December of 2014 and January 2015, by March of 2015, he
filed a petition which is a reasonable amount of time. And I'll submit it.

THE COURT: Do you recall in Hathaway how long it was from the time
he dis -- well, yeah, how long from the time he discovers that the appeal had
not been filed and therefore the time has been running?

MR CARLING: | don't recall the specific facts of how many months it
was,

THE COURT: Qkay. I'll look at it. All right. Thank yvou very much for all
the information provided today.

MR. THUNELL: Thank you for your time. Your Honor,

MR. CARLING. Thank vou.

THE COURT: Court's in recess.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:41 A M.
i
i1
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ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(9) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, |
acknow ledge that this is a rough draft transcript. expeditiously prepared, not
proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript.

SARA RICHARDSON
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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| DISTRICT COURT CLERK QF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
l Plaintif},
CASE NO; C-11-274370-1
“VE-
DEFT NO: '
LAMAR HARRIS
I Defendant.

F[NHINGE OF FAﬁT %ND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ON
DEFENDANT'S P FOR WRIT OF BABEAS CORPUS

On December 8, 2015, this matter came on for an evidentiary hearing before the Court on

Defendant’s Supplement (o his Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The Defendant
| was present with counset Matthew D. Carting, Esq. The State was present by and through Deputy
District Attorney Peter Thuneil, Esq. The Court, having heard the arguments of counsel, and
considered the pleadings and papers on file herein, finds as follows;
| 1. FINDINGS OF FACT
l i On June 24, 2011, Defendant was churged by way of Information with Attempred
Murder with use of a Deadly Weapon, in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, and
193.165, and Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily [larm, in
| violation of NRS 200.481(2)¢).

2 Defendant was tried on those charges during a four day jury trial eommencing

August 30, 2011, Defensc counsel at wial was Adam Gill, Esg.

3. On Sepiember 2, 2011, the jury retumned o verdict of guilty as to the battery charge
but acquitted Defendant of atempted murder.

4, Defendant was sentenced on November 21, 2011 o a minimum term of seventy {70)
months and 4 maximuam term of one hundred seventy five (175} months in the Nevada Department
of Comections and given one hundred and eighty twa {182) days of eredit for lime served,

5. The Judgment of Conviclion was filed on December 2, 2011,

000901
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g, After the conclusion of the trial, Defendant engaged attorney Leslie Park, Esqg.
(“Park™), to represent him in post-trial proceedings.

7. Defendanl pursued a direct appeal with the Nevada Supreme Court, represented by
Park. A Notice of Appeal was filed in this case on December 8 2011, and the Supreme Cour
affimned Defendant’s conviclions on December 13, 2012, The remittitur issued on January 15,
2013.

8. Detendant did not file a post-conviction petition for a wril of habeas corpus until he
filed a pro per petition on March 11, 2015, An initial hearing was held on that petition on May 13,
2013, at which time the Court made the preliminary finding that Defendant may be able to show
good cause (o excuse the unuimeliness of his petitton and appointed Matthew [, Carling, Esqy. o file
supplemnents] briefing on that sole issue. A bricfing schedule was set and an evidentiary hearing
date of September 16, 2015,

0. At ihe September 16, 2015 hearing, Senior Judge I. Charles Thompson denied
Defendant’s petition and declined to hold an evidentiary hearing. Mr. Carling then filed a Matien
for Reconsideration of that decision, on behalf of Defendant. which was granted by this Court on
October 14, 2015, An evidentiary hearing date was then set at that time for December 8, 20135.

10. At the evidentiary hearing, Defendant called Park as a witness and he alse testified
himself,

11. Defendant testificd that Park was wo handle both his direct appeal and a post-
convigtion petition for a wnit of habeas corpus.

12, The lee agreement for Park’s retainer purportedly signed by Defendant's wile on
behalf of Defendant was a stock form and would be used for the defense ol initial criminal charges
in the lower court. In the blank where the nature of the criminal charges at issue would be filled in
was written the word "appeal.” The form itself states that the agreement does #ef cover trial, appeal,
or District Court proceedings. The fee amount and the date it was to be due were lefl blank. The

agreement was marked and admitted as Court’s Exbibil | at the bearing,
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13, Park initially testified that she was retained only for the direct appeal, but she later
agreed with Defendant’s contention that she was to do both the direct appeal and the post-
cenviction pelition.

i4. Park also agreed with Defendant that the total fee to be paid for these services was
$8,000.00, but that Defendant paid only about half of that amount.

15. The fee agreement contained no date upon which full payment would be due.

6.  Park did in fact file and pursue Defendant’s direct appeal (Supreme Court Docket
No. 59817}. The Court notes that according to the dockat in that appeal, Park filed the initial Notice
of Appeal documents and the Fast Track Stagement, but did not file a Fast Track Reply pursuant
NRAP 3H{C)(e)3). The Court further niotes that Park attempted to file the Statement on July 3, 2012,
but it was rejected for faiture to comply with the Supreme Court's brief formarting requirements.

17. Somefime just after June §, 2013, Defendant received a copy of a document drafied
by Park entitled “Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus™ (the “Park Petit ion™). The Park Pelition was
marked and admitted as evidence at the hearing.

18.  As confirmed by Park’s testimony, this decument was signed by Park and dated Jutie
6, 2013. It attached a centificate of service that was dated June 6. 2013 by Park, Jisting the Clerk of
the Supreme Coun, the Clark County District AHomey, and the Nevada Attorney General as service
recipicnts,

12, The caption on the Park Petition stated that the Petition was to be filed in the Nevada
Supreme Court.

20, Defendant did not notice the filing error initially, presumably duc w his lack of lejral
education and knowledge.

21. A shom time later, someone with whom Defendant is incarcerated looked at the Park
Petition and told hitn it appeared te have been filed in the wrong court, as post-conviction petitions

are to be filed in the first instance in the district courts, '

22.  Defendant contacted Park in December 2013 to point out this deficiency and was

told that she would immiediately correct it and file it in the district court.”

" A specific dare on this point could not be gleaned from the iwstimony at the evidentiary hearing, but it seemed to be
within 2 faw moenths afler Jutie 6, 2013 that Defendant came to this realization,

3 npoan3
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23, Defendant had no contact with Park afier he slerted her to the deficient filing of 1he
Park Petition, but he did unsuccessfully altemprt to comacl her office several times Lo oblain a status
update. This period of no contact includes all of the year 2014,

24, Defendant did not attempt 1o check the status of his petition in the district court for
the majority of 2814, as he was 1o0ld that it takes some time and he thought he was waiting on the
State’s response 1o the Park Petition.

25.  Towards the end of 2014, Defendant contacted the Supreme Cowt Clerk and asked
for a status update on his petition. In response, he received a docket sheet from his Fast Track
appeal printed on December 31, 201 4.

26.  Defendant also contacted the districl court clerk around that time and in response
received a docket sheet from the instant case, printed on January 6, 203 5,

. When he received these docket sheets, he realized that the Park Petition had never
been filed,

28.  Park confinned that she had never filed the Park Petition,

29, 'The Park Petition itself is clearly deficient in many ways, in that it captiops the
incorreet courl and it does not comply with the procedural and lormatting requirements set forth in
NRS 34.730 and NRS 34.735.°

0. The Court specifically notes that Park restified she had never belore prepared B post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus for any client,

3l. When Park was asked why she would signa petition that she did not in fact intend 1o
file, she at first had no answer and then stated thut she did not want to have to scramble 1o gel 4

petition together if Defendant ended up paying his balance a few days before the filing deadline.’

¥ Diefendant's testimony as w when he contacted Park regacding where e Park Petition had been (Tled was that he
conlacted her in August of 2013, but his Pro Per Petition states December 2013, The Court attributes this digcrepancy to
lack of memory and passage of ime and finds thet December 2013 is the marc likcly date, as he wrote the Pro Per
Petition well before the evidentiary hearing was held and thar date was fresher in his mind at that tinse, I is also more
cunsisient with other dates given in his testimony, such as the fact that he did not check the status of his petition
throughoul 2014 besanse he thought he was waiting for the State’s rEsponse.

" Although not addressed herein, Defendant's Supplemncental Briefing in Support of his Pro Per Petitien poins out that
the substance of the Park Petition is also likely legally inaccurate a5 weil.

* This Is roubling, ns it indicaes that Park would have been willing 1o fle the Park Petition if efendant gaid hiv
balance, sven though that petitiun is clearly deficient.
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32, Upon realizing no petition had cver been filed, Defendant drafied a Pro Per Petition
and filed it with this Court on March 11, 2015, alleging most of the same facts recited above
regarding the lateness of s petition.

33.  This Coun entered an Order on March 19, 2015, requiring the Siate to file a
Response within forty five days of the date of the Order and set it far hearing on May 13, 2015,

34. At the initia) hearing, the Coun noted there was an preliminary issue of whother
Defendant coubd show good cause for failing 1o timely file a petition and thereby escape the time
bar, Matthew D. Carling, Esy., was appointed 1o represent the Defendant and iijle supplemental
briefing on that issue.

35, The supplemental briefing was initially heard on September 16, 2015, at which time
the Henorable J. Charles Thompson, sitting as a Senior Judge, denied the request for an evidentiary
hearing and the Defendant's Pro Per Petition.

36.  On September 19, 2015, Defendant’s appointed counsel (ied a Motion for
Reconsideration of the September 16, 2015 decision, which was granted a1 hearing on October 14,
2015 and the matter was set down for an evidentiary hearing,

37.  The evidentiary hearing was held on December 8, 2015, revealing the facts reciled
sbove.

38, Overall, the Court finds that the Defendant’s testimony was more credible than
Park's, as Park’s responses were equivocal in nature, she stated thal she lacked knowledge in
response to many guestions, and she conceded to many factual positions pur forth by Defendant,

39.  Any lindings of fac1 thal are more appropriately considered conclusions of law shatl
be so caonstrued.

[l. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

40.  The Defendant had until January 22, 2014 10 file & post-conviction petition for a writ

of habeas corpus. See NRS 34.726(1).

41.  No such petition was ever filed in this case until Defendant’s Pro Per Pelition was
filed on March 11, 2015 and so Defendant is required to show good cause for failing 1o 1imely file.

See fd,
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42, To demonstrale good cause, a petitioner “must show that an impediment extemal to
the defense prevented him or her from complying with the siate procedural default rples.”
Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503, 504 {2003).

43.  Such an impediment may be demonstrated “by a showing that the {actual or legal
basis for a claim was not reasonably available 10 counsel, or that some interference by officials
made compliance impracticable.” /¢

44.  The Defendant argues that he can show good cause for failing to timely file because
he was relying on Park’s representations that she had filed the Park Petition on his behall. In
support, Defendanl cites 10 Hathaway, supra,

45, In Hathaway, the petitiongr was convicted on December | I, 1998 and immedialely
after sentencing, told his trial counsel he wanted to pursee a direct appeal, |19 Nev, al 251, 71 P.3d
at 305. His counse! told him that he would take care of it, 14

40.  Hathaway finally learned no petition had ever been filed when he wrote io the
district court; he then filed a pro per petition on November 6, 2001, which was beyond the statutory
deadline. id.

47.  The Supreme Court noted that a “claim of ineflective assistance of counsel may also
excuse 8 procedural defaull if counsel was so ineflective as to violate the Sixth Amendment...jand
the ciaim is not] itsell proceduratly defaulted ™ 74, a1 252, 71 P.3d at 506,

48. It further noted thal trial counsel is ineffective “if he or she fails to file a direct
appcal after a defendant has requested or expressed a desire™ to appeal and "prejudice is presumed”
under such circumstances. /d. a1 254, 71 P.3d at 507.

49.  On that basis, the Harhaway court concluded thal the petitioner had demonstrated
suffivient facts to show that due to canstitutionally inefTective assistance of vounsel, he was entitied
4t minimmum to an evidentiary hearing as to whether there was good cause 1 excuse his late Gling,
id. at255, 71 P.3d a1 508,

30, Defendant argues that Hathaway is directly applicuble to the instant case, as he
relicd upon Park’s agreerment io file the Park Petition on his behall and her representation that il had

besn filed.
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51.  However, Hathway's holding was clearly couched in the fact that the petitioner there

2 || had a Sixth Amendment tighl to the effective assistance of counse] on @ dircet appeal, a claim that
3 || could excuse his late petition filing.
4 52. Here, the Defendant is not relying upon Park's ineffective representation on appeal
5§ to show good cause for his late filing.
17} 33, Moreover, Defendant has no ceonstitutional or statutory right 10 counsel in his post-
7 | cenviction preceeding. Brown v. McDaniel, 130 Nev. Adv. Op. 60, 331 P.3d 867, 870 (Nev, 2014).°
8 N 534,  “Where there is no right to counsel there can be no deprivation of effective
9 || assistance of counsel.” AMcKague v. Whitley, 112 Nev. 159, 164-65, 912 P.2d 255, 258 {1996).
10 535 Hence, Defendant here is pregluded from relving upon a claim of ineffective
11 || assistance of counsel to show good cause to excuse the procedural default of his Pro Per Patition.
12 || See Brown, supra.
13 36.  Defendant has not presented any other impediment external to the defense for a
14 | finding of good cause.
15 37,  Defendant’s Pro Per Petition asserts two main clgims: ineffective assistance of trial
16 || counsel and ineffective assistance of counsel on dircct appeal
17 i 58.  However, each of these claims was available to the Defendant at the time the
18 || reminitur jssued and are thus procedurally defaulied themselves.
19 BASED UPON THE FOREGOING, the State’s request to dismiss the Defendant’s Pro Per
20 || Petition is GRANTED and the writ is discharged.
21 4
22 0 #
23 |
24 | #
Lo
26 ‘[ H
27
78 * The Court also notes that the Supreme Court hat rejected the federal doctrine of equitable tolling related to petitions
for a writ of habeas corpus. See Srawn, 351 P.3d ar 874
* Defendam does not assert inetfectiveness of appellate counsel as an excuse 19 his late ling. however.
o
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The Court is nevertheless woubled by the performance of attorney Leslie Parks in this
matter, as Lhat performance appears to demonstrate significant issues concerning her professional
conduct. A copy of this Order and rclevant documents will be forwarded 10 Bar Counsel for review
and appropriate proceedings.

DATED this __z; 4 day of June, 2016,

A ; veri
Carolyn Ellgworth
District Court Judge

o
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

‘ “Tr
The undersigned hereby certifies that on the o of June, 2016 she served the foregoing
.| Order Dismissing Appeal by faxing, mailing, or electronically serving a copy 1o counse! as listed
below:

| Manhew D. Carling, Esq.
Attorney for Defendant

Peter | Thunell, Esq.
Attorney for Plaintiff

Leslie Park, Esq.
Former Appellate Counsel fior Defendant

Stan Hunterton, Esqg,
Sate Bar of Nevada — Bar Counsei

Shelby Lopaze, J
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAMAR HARRIS. :
| Cnse N €1 12743704

Puetitioner, Dept. No' v

¥
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

SUOICE OF EMNTRY OF ORBEN
Rispandent,

FLEASE TAKFE NOTICE that an June 6. 2016, the count enfered o decision or order in tis fteiter, o
irue and correct copy of which is atnched 1o Uis notice,
You max appeak 10 the Supreme Coun Frons (he decision or arder of this coun [Fvou wisl 1 uppeal. vou

nlust file 3 noice of appeal with the clerk of this coun sl duns=theee 1337 duss ufter the dare s natice is

STENVEN D GRIERS(HN, CLERK OF THE COURT

/s! Chaunw Pleasant
Chaunte Pleasant. Duputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF MalLING

I hereby centify that on this 14 diy of June 206, 1 placed a copy of this Nenice of Enory in:

B The bings) Jocated inthe Repional Iustice Conrer of
Clark County Dnserict Avtomes s Office
Atomey Ceneral's Offee  Appelline [Dosion-

B e tined Stares mall sddressed s ilows

Lamar Harris # 710845 Marthew Curling Mark Peplovosks
P.O. Box 2% LIRS Terith 5. FAE Thrd %1,
Indidn Springs. NY RHIT(-1208 Las Vegas, NV B9 Las Wepas. NV 8810l

5 Chaunte Pleasant

Chounte Pleasant. Deputy Clerk
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plainiiff,
CASE NO: C-11-274370-1
-l G
BEPT NO: A%
LAMAR HARRIS
Defendant,

FINDINGS OF FAC ONCLUSIONS OF LAW ON
DEFENDANT'S PEWF{}R W%I% OF HABEAS CORPUS

On December 8, 2015, this matter came on for an evidentiary hearing before the Court on

Defendant's Supplement to his Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habess Corpus. The Defendant
was present with counsel Matthew D). Carling, Esq. The State was present by and through Deputy
Disirict Attomey Peter Thunell, Esq. The Court, having heard the arguments of counsel, and
considered the pleadings and papers on file herein, finds as follows:
I. FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On June 24, 2011, Defendant was charged by way of Information with Alternpted
Murder with use of a Deadly Weapon, in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, and
193.165, and Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Badily tlarmm, in
viclation of NRS 200.481(2)=).

p Defendant was iried on those charges during a four day jury trial commencing
August 30, 201 1. Defense counsel at trial was Adam Gill, Esq.

3. On Seplember 2, 2011, the jury retrned a verdict of guilly as to the battery charge
bul acquitted Defendant of attempted murder.

&4 Defendant was sentenced on November 21, 2011 t¢ a minimum term ol soventy (70}
menths and 3 maximum term of one hundred sevemty five {175) months in the Nevada Department
of Carrections and given one hundred and eighty twe (182) days of credit for lime served.

5 The Judpment of Convichion was filed on Decemnber 2, 2011,
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6. After the tonclusion of the trial, Defendant engaped attorney Leslic Park, Esa.
{*"Park™), 10 represent him in post-irial proceedings.

7. Defendant pursued a direct appeal with the Nevada Supreme Coun, represented hy
Park. A Notice of Appeal was filed in this case on December B, 2011, and the Supreme Courl
affirmed Defendant’s convictions on December 13, 2012, The remittitur issued on January 15,
2013,

8. Defendunt did not file a post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus until he
filed a pro per petition on March 11, 2015, An initial hearing was held on that petition vn May 13,
2015, at which time the Court made the preliminary finding that Defendam may be able 1o show
good cause to excuse the untimeliness of his petition and appointed Matthew D. Carling, Esq. to fike
supplemental briefling on that sole issue. A briefing schedule was set and an evidentiary hearing
date of September 16, 2015,

o At the September 16, 2015 hearing, Senior Judge J. Charles Thompson denied
Defendant’s petition and declined to hotd an evidentiary hearing, Mt. Carling then filed a Motion
for Reconsideration of that decision, on behalf of Defendant, which was granted by this Court on
QOctober 14, 2015 An evidentiary hearing daig was then sel at that lime for December 8, 2015

10. At the evidentiary hearing, Delendant called Park as a witness and he also testified
himself.

1L Defendant testificd that Park was tw handle beth his direct appeal and a post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus.

2. The le¢ agreement for Park's retainer purportedly signed by Defendami's wife on
behalf of Defendant was a stock form and would be used for the defense of initial criminal charges
in the lower cowr, In the blank whers the nature of the criminal charges at issue would be filled in
was written the word “appeal.” The form itsetf states that the agreement does sor cover trial, appeal,
or District Court proceedings. The lee amount and the date it was (o be due were lefl biank, The

agreement was marked and admitied as Court’s Exhibit | a1 the hearing,

4

000922




=T - I - ¥, - S YT E—

MNMMMMM—IH——-I——-HH_-.—
Toh B W R e O 00 =) R LA B b R o =

DisTRHT COURT JUDGE
| BF
ot |

CaroyH FLLSWORTH
DEPARTMENT Y

£.J
bl

I3, Park initially testified that she was retained only for the direct appeal, but she later
agreed with Defendant’s contention that she was to do both the direct appeai and the post-
convietion petition.

14. Park also agreed with Defendant that the total fee to be paid for these services was
$2.000.00, but thal Defendant paid only about half of that amoun:.

15.  The fee agreement contained no date upon which full paymem would be due.

16.  Park did in fact {ile and pursue Defendant’s direct appea! (Supreme Court Docket
Ng. 59817). The Court notes that according to the docket in that appeal, Park filed the initial Notice
" of Appeal documents and the Fast Track Stalement, but did not file u Fust Track Reply pursuant to
NRAP 3(CHe)i3). The Court further notes that Park attempted to file the Statement an July 3, 2012,

but it was rejected for failure to comply with the Supreme Court’s briel formatting reguirements.
ﬂ 17.  Sometime just after June 6, 2013, Defendant received a copy of a document drafied
by Park entitled “Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus™ (the “Park Petition™). The Park Petition was
" marked and admitied as evidence at the hearing.

18, As contirmed by Park's testimony, this document was signed by Park and dated June

&, 2013. It attached a centificate of service that was dated Junc 6, 2013 by Dark, tisting the Clerk of
u the Supreme Court, the Clark County District Attorney, and the Nevada Attorney General as service
recipicnis.
19. The caption on the Park Peunion stated thar the Petition was ta be filed in the Nevada
Supreme Court,
20.  Defendanl did not notice the filing error initially, presumably due 10 his lack of lsgal
| education and knowledge,
21, A short time laler, someone with whom Detendant is incorcerated looked at the Park
l\ Peittion and told him it appeured (o have been filed in the wrong court. as post-conviction petitions

are to be filed in the first instance in the district courts, '

22, Defendant contacted Park in December 2013 1o poind out this deficiency and was

told that she wouid immediately correct it and file it in the distriet court.?

' A specific daie on this puint cuuld nol be gieancd Frum die wstymony &t the uyvidentiay hearimg,: bulb i seemed Ty be
within a few months afier June 6, 2013 that Defendant came ta Lhis realization.

3
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23.  Defendant had no contact with Park after he alerted her 1o the deficient filing of the
Park Petition, but he did unsuceessfully attempt to contact her office several times to obtgin a status
update. This perind of no contact includes all of the year 2014.

24, Defendant did not atternpt to check the status of his petition in the district court for
the majority of 2014, as he was toid that it 1akes some time and he thought he was waiting on the
State’s response to the Park Petition.

25, Towards the end of 2014, Defendant contacted the Supreme Court Clerk and asked
for & status update on his petition. In response, he received a docket sheet from his Fast Track
appeal printed on December 31, 2014.

26.  Defendant also contacted the district court clerk around that time and in response
received a docket sheet from the instant case, printed on January 6, 2015.

27, When he received these docker shects, he realized tha the Park Petition had never
been filed,

28, Park confimed that she had never filed the Fark Petition.

29, 'The Park Petition itself is clearly deficient in many ways, in that it captions the
ingorrect court and it does not comply with the procedural and formatting requirements set forth in
NRS 34.730 und NRS 34.735.°

30, The Court specifically notes that Park testified she had never beflore prepared a post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus for any client.

31. When Park was asked why she would sign a petition that she did not in fact intend 10
file, she al first had no answer and then stated thut she did not want to have to scramble 1o Bel a

petition kogether if Defendant ended up paying his balance a few days betore the filing deadline.!

* Defendant's testimony as to when he contacted Park regarding where 1he Park Petition had been filed was that he
contacted her In August of 2013, but his Pro Per Petition states Docember 2013, The Court atmibutes this discrepancy o
lack of memory and passage of tme and finds that December 2617 75 the mors likely date, a5 he wrote the Pro Poer
Petition well before the evidentiary hearing was held and that date was fresher in his sund at that timse. It s also myre
consistent. with other dales giverr w hus testimony, such as fhe tacs that he did not check e status of B fretitium
Uwtughaut 2014 because he thought be was waiting for the Slate’s response.

* Although not addressed herein, Defendant’s Supplemental Briefing in Support of his Fro Per Pelition poims oul that
the substance of the Park Petition is alse likely tegally insccuraie as well.

! This is troubling, as it indicates that Park would have been willing to file the Park Pctition if Defendam paid his
kalange, even though Lhat porition is clearly deficient,

4
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2. Upon realizing no petition had ever been filed, Defendant drafted s Pro Per Petition
and filed it with this Court on March 11, 2015, alleging most of the same facts recited shove
regarding the lateness of his petition.

33, This Court entered an Order on March 19, 2015, requiring the State 1o file a
Response within forty five days of the date of the Order and set it for hearing on May 13, 2015,

34. Al the initial heanng, the Courl noted there was an preliminary issue of whether
Defendant could show good cause Jor failing to limely file @ petition and thereby escape 1he time
bar. Matthew D. Carling, Esq.. was appointed to represent the Defendant and file supplemental
briefing on that issue.

35.  The supplemental briefing was initiully heard on September 16, 2015, a1 which tme
the Honorable J. Charles Thompson, sitting as a Senfor Judge, denied the request for an evideniiary
hearing and the Defendant's Pro Per Petition.

36.  On September 19, 2015, Defendant’s appointed counsel [filed a Motion for
Reconsideration of the September 16, 2015 decision, which was granted at a heaning on October |4,
2015 and the matter was set down tor an cvidentiary hearing.

37, The evidentiary hearing wus held on December 8, 2013, revealing the facts recited
above.

38.  Oversall, the Count finds that the Defendant’s testimony was more credible than
Park’s, as Park's responses were equivacal in natpre, she stated that she Jacked knowledge in
response 1o many questions, and she conceded 10 many factual positions put forth by Defendant.

39, Any findings of fact that are more appropriately considered conclusions of law shall
be so construed.

I, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

40.  The Defendant had until January 22, 2014 1o file a post-conviction petition for a writ
of habeas corpus, See NRS 34.726(1).

41.  No such petition was aver filed in this case unmi| Defendant’s Pro Per Petition was
fited on March 11, 2015 and so Defendant is required to show good cause for failing 1o timely file.

See il
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42. To demonstrulc good cause, a petitioner “must show that an impediment external (o
the defense prevented him or her from complying wilk 1he state provedural defaull rules”
Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503, 504 (2003).

43.  Such an impediment may be demonstrated “by a shawing that the faciual or legal
basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel, or thal some interference by olficials
made compliance impracticable.™ /d

44, The Defendant argues that he can show pood cause for failing to timely file because
he was relying on Park’s representations that she had filed the Park Petition on his behalll In
support, Defendant cites to Hathaway, supra.

45, In Harhaway, the petitioner was convicted on December 11, 1998 and immediately
after sentencing, tld his trial counse! he wanted to pursue a direct appesl. 119 Nev. al 251, 71 P.3d
at 503. 1is counse! told him that he would take care of it, /ot

46.  Hathaway finally learned no petition had ever been filed when he wrole to the
district eourt; he then filed a pro per petition on November 6, 2001, which was beyand the statutory
deadline. /d

47, The Supreme Court noted that a “claim of ineflective assistance of counsel may also
excuse a procedural default if counsel was so ineffective as to violate the Sixth Amendment, .. [and
the claim is not] itself procedurally defaulted ” I, at 252, 71 P.3d at 506.

48. It funther noted that trial counsel is ineffective “if he or she fails to file a direct
appeal after a defendant has requesied or expressed a desire™ to appeal and “prejudice is presumed”
under such circumstances. fd a1254, 71 P.3d a1 507.

49, On that basis, the Harhaway count cencluded that the petitioner hail demonstrated
sufficient facts to show that due (o constitutionally ineffactive assistance of counsel, he was entitled
at minimum to an evidentiary hesring as to whether there was good cause 1o excuse his late filing.
Id. at 255, 71 P.3d at 508,

50.  Defendant argues that Hathaway is directly apphicable to the instant case, as he
relied upon Park’s agreement to file the Park Petition on his behalf and her representation that it had

been filed.

: 7009186
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51.  However, Harhway's holding was clearly couched in the fact that the petitioner there
had a Sixth Amendment right to the effective assistance of counsel on & direct appeal, & claim that
could excuse his late petition filing,

52 Here, the Defendant is not relying upon Park’s ineffective representation on appeal
to show good cause for his late filing,

33. Moreover, Defendant has no constitutional or statutory right 1o counsel in his post-
conviction proceeding. Brawna v. McDaniel, 130 Nev. Adv. Op. 60, 331 P.2d 867, 870 (Nev. 2014).°

54.  “Where there is no right to counsel there can be no deprivation of effective
assistance of counsel.” McKague v. Whiddey, 112 Nev. 159, 16465, 912 P.2d 255, 258 { 1996).

55, Hence, Defendant here is precluded from relving upon a claim of ineffective
assistance of counsel to show good cause to excuse the procedural default of hig Pro Per Petition,
See Brown, supra.

36.  Defendant has not presented any other impediment external to the defense for a
finding of goad cause.

57.  Defendant's Pro Per Petilion asserts two main claims: ineffective assistance of (riat
counsel and ineffective assistance of counsel on direct appeal.®

58.  However, each of these claims was available to the Defendant at the time the
remititur issued and are thus procedurally defaulted themselves.

BASED UPON THE FOREGOING, the State's request to dismiss the Defendant’s Pro Per
Petition is GRANTED and the wril is discharged.

i

ff
fi
it

* The Court alwo notes that the Supreme Count has rejected the federal doctrine of equitable tofling reluted to petisions
Tor & wry of habeas corpus. See Brown, 331 P.3d a 874,
" Defendani does not assert inef¥ectiveress of appellale counsel o5 an excusc Lo his late liling, however,
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| The Court is nevertheless troubled by the performance of attomey Leslie Parks in this
matter, as that performance appesrs to demonstrate significant jssues conceming her professional
" conduct. A copy of this Order and relevant documents will be forwarded to Bar Counsel for review
and appropriate proceedings.

DATED this __z; # day of June, 2016,

Caralyn Fllgtvorth -
“ District Court Judge
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

: , ™
The undersigned hereby centifies thal on the LO of June, 2016 she served the toregoing

Order Dismissing Appeal by faxing, mailing, or electronically serving a copy to counsel as listed

below:

Matthew . Carling, Esq.
Atiorney for Defendant

Peter 1, Thunell, Esq.
Atturney for Plaintiff

" Leslie Park, Esq.
Former Appetiate Counsel for Defendant

Stan Hunterton, Esqg.
' State Bar of Nevada — Bar Counvel

Shelby Lopaze, J
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{102}419-7338 {Office)

(702) 446-8065 (Fax)
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Attorneys for Petitioner,
LAMAR A HARRIS
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STATE OF NEVADA, Case No.: C274370

Plaintiff. Dept. Na.. v
Vs,
LAMAR A, HARRIS.

Defendant,

NOTICE OF APPEAL

TO:

Southern Desert Correctional Center, appeals to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada fom

the

THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA and
g

DEPARTMENT 5 OF THE EIGHTH JUBICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STAT
OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COLNTY QF C1 ARK,

NOTICE is hereby piven that LAMAR A, IIARRIS. presently incarcerated at the

A §
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an Order dismissing his Petition far 2 Wril of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) esterad on or

about June 6. 2016,

DATED this 6" day of June, 2016,
CARLING 1AV OFFICE, PC

o Vurthew 1) Capling
MATTHEW D CARLING, ESQ.
MNevada Bar No.: 007302

1100 8. Tenth Street

Las Vepas, NV 89101

(702 4 19-7330 1O fice)

§T0Z ) dd6-8063 (Tax)
CodarLealebenmu | com

Atforreyy for Petitivacr,
LAMAR A_HARRIE
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MATTHEW D CARLING. ES{, hereby declares that he is, and was when the herein
desciibed mailing toak ptace, a citizen of the United States, over 21 vears of we: that on the 219

day of June, 2016, Declarant deposited in the United States mail at Las Viegas, hoevada, neopy uf

the Notice of Appeal in the above-mention vase. enclosed in a scaled envelope upon which first

1
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16
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class postage was fully prepaid, addressed to the following:

LAMAR A, HARRIS (#7108%)

5DCC

P.O.BOX 208

[INDIAN SPRINGS, NEVADA 29070-0208

STEVEN B WOLFSIES, IS0

CLARK COUNTY IISIRICT ATTORNIE: Y
200 LIWAIN AVENLIE

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89101

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is tue and correct.

Executed on the 21 day of une, 216,

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

o Marthew B Carling

MATTHEW D. CARLING. ESQ.

Moevindi Bar N

g07302

[ 1880 % Tenth Strees
Lus Vegas, MY 89101

£ 7023419-7330 (Office)
(702} 446-BO6S5 (Fax}
Cedarlegulatumail com

Atternay for Petitioner,
LAMAR A HARRIS
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MATTHEN D CARLING, B-54 ), CLERK OF THE COURT
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Las Vegas, NV 391N

(702) 419-7330 (OFfice)

(702) 446. 8065 (Fax
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CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(NRAP 3(d)(4))

B Name of appellant filing this case appeal statement;
Lamar AL | areis

2, Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed
from:

Judee Carolyn illsworth
3. Idemify all parties 10 the proceedings in the districi court:

Tamar /A Harris
The State if Noevada
4, Identify all parricy involved in this appeal:

[amar A, Harris
The Stare of Nevada

5, Name, law firm, address, and telephone nunber of all counsel on
appeal and party ur partics whoin they cepresent:

MATTHTAW DL CARLING PETER L THUNELL
L) 5. ‘Terth Streeo Depure Diserict Avomey
Las Vewas, NV HUNH P03, Box 332202

(702 4187330 Fas Vegas, NY 891112212

noeane



E R R R B R B o I

L e o i L B L et e e
b P d R = D WD 0D -] S oln L Led Bad o= NS

Conntel for Appellan, Coitied fir | fperdiee,
Lamar 5. Hareris Ararc ok MNevagdy

b. Indicate whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained
counsel in the district court: Appotnoed

7. Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed or retained
counsel on appeal; Anpoin

8. Indicate whether appeliant was granted leave to proceed in forma
pauperis, and the date of entry of the district court vrder granting such
leave: ™N/A

L Indicate the dute the proceedings commenced in the distrier court

Infeemann tled Juoe 24, 20101,
Crated this 21 dav of Junge, 201 6.

CARLING AW QITLCL, PO

Lop Madtthw 13 Cording

MATTHENW D, CARLING, 1O,
Nevada Bar N (07302
Comert=Apuinied Varmey for Defendiont.
LAMAR L TEARRIN
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ROUGH DRAFT
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Direct Examination by Mr, Carling
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2015, 8:41 A.M,

THE COURT. Good morning.

MR, THUNELL: Good morning.

MR. CARLING: Good morning

THE MARSHAL: Please take your seats.

THE COURT: Thank you. And this is case number C274370, State aof
Nevada versus [amar Harris. And Mr. Harris is present in custody with his
counsel. This is a hearing concerning the time bar on the writ. And $0 are you
ready to proceed?

MR, CARLING: |am. Your Honor. As a preliminary matter, my client will
be waiving the attorney-client privilege, obviously, as to discuss what was
conversed between him and his attorney. And we would be calling Ms. Park.

THE COURT: Okay. Is that correct, Mr. Harris, you're w aiving your
attorney-client privilege with Ms. Park?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am

THE COURT: Thank you, very mugh.

Ms. Park.
LESLIE PARK,
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, testified as follows;

THE CLERK: You rmay be seated.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE CLERK: And could you please state and spell your name for the
record?

THE WITNESS. Yes. Leslie Park, L-E-S-L-I-E, P-A-R-K.

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 4
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THE COURT. You may procesd.

MR. CARLING: Thank you, Your Honor,

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF LESLIE PARK
BY MR CARLING:

Q Ms. Park were you retained by Lamar Harris ta file a post-conviction
petition for writ of habeas corpus?

A No.

Q Did you ever have any -- did you prepare a post-conviction petition
for writ of habeas corpus for Mr. Harrig?

A | prepared a bare bones -- | had been retained to do the appeal,
which | gid. He then was interested in doing that. | spoke with him at the
prison.

THE COURT: Interested in doing what?

THE WITNESS: The post-con -- the writ,

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: | spoke with him at the prison regarding that. He wanted
to know what | would put in the writ. There is a fee agreement for the appeal
which | never was finished being paid for. What | had indicated to Mr. Harris
and his wife was that if he wanted to do the writ | needed to be paid for the
rest of the appeal and they needed to do a fee agreement for the writ and make
some sort of down payment for that, So | did prepare a bare bones, what |
would intend to put in Lhe writ, that | sent to Mr. Harris to review .

MR, CARLING: May { approach the witness, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

I
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BY MR CARLING:

Q I'm handing you what's been marked as Proposed Exhibit A, The
State has been provided a copy. Do you -- do you recognize that document?

A | do.

Q |s this the -- the bare bones petition that you prepared?
A It is.

Q Was it ever filed in any jurisdiction?

A No, because | wasn't paid to file the writ.

Q And on that - on that petition for writ of habeas corpus that you
prepared, does it not state the Nevada Supreme Court 3t the top of the caption?

A It may. | --like | said, it was a bare tones to indicate to him what |
would be putting in the writ. | didn't want to get caught last minute, because
they did indicate they were going to retain me. last minute, the day before,
have to start from scratch.

" After you sent that - that bare bones petition to Mr. Harris -

A Uh-huh,

Q -~ did you have any discussions with him?

A We - | believe that — honestiy, | don't remember if we spoke, |
don't think | saw him in person after that, | do think we may have spoke on the
phone. There were times that his wife would come in and have him on the
phone where we would all talk.

G At any time did you indicate that you had actually filed the petition
at the Nevada Supreme Court?

A No.

Q Bid you indicate to him at any time that the petition that you

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE & .
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prepared was tiled in the District Court?

A No.

Q In fact, you never filed the petitiocn anyw here?

A | never filed it, no.

MR. CARLING: {'ll pass the witness.

MR. THUNELL: Just briefly, Your Honor. And, Your Honor, the State
would stipulate to the admission of this proposed exhibit if that's all right,
Your Honor?

THE COURT: All right. I'd like to see that because | don't have the - |
just have your supplemental petition.

MR. CARLING: And I'l move for Exhibit A. May | approach?

THE COURT: You may. [t will be admitted.

[DEFENSE EXHIBIT A ADMITTED]

THE CCURT: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF LESLIE PARK
BY MR THUNELL:

Q Ms. Park -- -

A Yes.

Q -~ just briefly, so he owed you money for the appeal?

A He did.

Q And was that ever actually paid in full to you?

A No.

Q So to this day you're still owed money?

A Correct.

Q And you were approached about possibly doing the wril, but never,

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 7
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it sounds like, never were paid for it?

A Correct. There was never a fee agresment filled gut for it, nor was
| paid -- nor was | paid.

{Q Did you — did you discuss - oh, | apologize.

Ll Nor was ! paid for it, no.

G I"'m sorry, Ms. Park. Ms. Park, did you discuss this necessity of
being paid to the defendant's wife and to defendant?

A Yes,

Q And did they ever give any kind of down payment, anything along
those lines?

A No. Like | indicated, they needed to finish paying me for the appeal
and make a down payment and fill out a new fee agreement for the writ.

Q | just want to make sure that we're all crystal clear here, did you
ever tell him that you filed that writ or that bare bones kind of a document that
you wrote?

A No. | had told him | had filed the appeal but never the writ.

Q  Okay. Is it fair to say that that writ that the judge is holding. the
kind of bare bones, that it's in no shape to actually be filed at this peint? It's a
bit of & -- more of an outline than an actual writ, 50 to speak?

A [ would say that, yes

Q Okay. It would need much more information and such to actually
be filed as a writ?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And so that was never actually filed?

A No.

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 8
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Q All right. And. Ms. Park, at any peint were you approached by the
defendant or his wife about them wanting to, as time kind of goes on, thal they
wanted you to, you know, quickly file this or to pass your information along lo
scme other attorney, anything along those lines?

A No.

MR, THUNELL: I'll go ahead and pass the witness, Yaour Haonor,

THE COURT® Redirect.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION OF LESLIE PARK
BY MR. CARLING:

Q In response to some guestions that the State asked. had YOu ever
prepared post-conviction writs of hgbeas corpus before?

A Prior to that? [ don't know. | don't think so, but | don't know for
sure.

MR. CARLING; No other questions.

THE COURT: All right So this, Exhibit A, appears to bear your written
signature in two places. The pages are not numbered. but on the fifth page
down it says executed at, and it's written in Clark County on the 6th day of the
month of June, 2013, and it appears -- it says attorney for petitioner, appears
to bear a signature; is that your handwriting?

THE WITNESS: |t is,

THE COURT: Why wouid you have signed this document if you weren't
going to file it?

THE WITNESS: Henestly, | don't recall. | don't know . | mean, it was - |
think that - and | may be wrong, but i think the time deadline was coming near.

It was -- | think just to be prepared if | had to file something. Heonestly, | don't

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 9
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know why.

THE COURT: And how about thig, certificate of mailing.

THE WITNESS; Just that | had mailed it to him,

THE COURT: It says that you mailed to the cierk of the Nevada Supreme
Court, to the District Attorney, and the Attorney General,

THE WITNESS: | think that was just the bare bones, what the back page
generally says. It was just the general writ outline.

THE COURT: All right. So you also, after the conglusion, you signed it
again?

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: Is that a "yes"?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And, okay, and dated it again on the 6th of June 2013 is
that right?

THE WITNESS: That would be correct.

THE COURT: Further questions as a result of my guestions?

MR. CARLING: Not for Ms, Park.

MR, THUNELL: Just briefly, if that's ali right, Your Honor?

BY MR. THUNELL:

Q2 Ms. Park, to the best of your recollection, do you recall having any
conversgtions after you had prepared this bare bones, kind of, document? Do
you recall having any conversations with the defendant or his wife conceming --
that you needed to be paid so that you could finish the writ to -- to fite it?

A Yes. She was in my office and had him on the phone more — on

mere than one occasion. And she indicated Lo me she wouid be paying me, but
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it didn't happen, so.

Q And just so I'm clear, and this was after, additionally, after you had
already written that and get -- provided it to the defendant to look at?

A Yes.

Q Okay. S0 even subsequent to that, they had been informead that it
had not been filed, they needed to pay for it to be filed?

A Yes.

MR THUNELL: Okay, Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Question, more questions?

MR CARLING: No follow-up, Your Honor

THE COURT: Do you bave a fee agreement with him for the appeal, a
written fee agreement?

THE WITNESS: | do.

THE COURT: Okay. You have that file with you?

THE WITNESS: | do. | saw it here earlier. | don't know why the amount
is not filled in. but [ do have it. 1 specifically just states appeal.

THE COURT: Would counsel like to look at this or have you aiready seen
it?

MR THUNELL: | baven't seen it.

MR. CARLING: 1 haven't seen it either.

MR. THUNELL: That's fine.

MR CARLING: But | don't need to.

THE COURT: All right. Well, the record will reflect that the fee
agreement appears to be a fee agreement that would normally be done for

retention of a defense in initial charges because it says, | hereby retain the

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 11
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office — Law Office of Leslie Park, a legal corporation, to represent me on the
following charges, colon, in - it's written on that blank line that was there to
be -- the charge is to be written, it $ay -- appears to say appeal, it doesn't say
of what, and then there is no fee amount and there is no date upon which the
sum is due filled in. It indicates that all fees are earnad by the aftorney when
paid by the client, and then it's dated November 28th 2011, signed apparently
by the defendant, Mr. Harris.
Do you want to take a look at it?

MR THUNELL: Thank you, Your Honor,

MR CARLING: May we approach?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. CARLING: May | show my client. Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE WITNESS: May | make ane comment?

THE COURT: Yes,

THE WITNESS: Thal that was actually signed by his wife, Tia Harris. |t
was not signed by him,

THE COURT: Ckay. And you would agree that there is no waiver or
anything or any indication that, you know, this is for, weli, | mean, it says
Lamar Harris at the top but it's not signed by him, did you get anything from
him that authorized her to sign on his behalf?

THE WITNESS: Other than the conversations him indicating that she
would be in to sign the agreement.

THE COURT: Okay. All right | think I'm going to need to make a Copy

of this and so I'll -- we'll make a copy and mark it as Exhibit -- Court's Exhibit 1

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 12
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since | need to look at it

THE MARSHAL: C.0.. you got the room?

THE COURT OFFICER: Yeah.

THE MARSHAL: How many copies, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Just cne. Well, actually, do you want coptes for your file
at all?

MR. CARLING: Certainly.

MR, THUNELL: Yeah, if we could,

THE COURT: Three copies. All right, anything else?

MR. CARLING: No,

THE COURT: Thank you,

THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you.

MR. CARLING: And the defense would call Mr. Harris.

You can just do it right there,

THE COURT; Ckay. You'll need to put the microphone near him. Very

well.
LAMAR HARRIS,

[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please state and spell your first and last name for the
record.

THE WITNESS: Lamar Harris, L-A-M-A-R, H-A-R-R-I-S.

THE COURT: You may proceed.

MR. CARLING: Thank you, Your Honor,
it
i
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DIRECT EXAMINATION OF LAMAR HARRIS
BY MR. CARLING:

G Mr. Harris, did you retain Leslie Park to do your appeal in this
matter?

A Yes.

Q Did you also have discussions with Ms Park regarding filing a
post-conviction writ of Aabeas corpus after the appeal was completed?

A Yes,

Q Did you receive a remittitur on your appsal approximately
January 22nd of 20137

A Yes.

Q And after that date, sometime in January, 2013, did you contact
Ms, Park and indicate that you wanted a post-conviction writ of habeas corpus
filed?

A Yes.

Q Can you explain to the Court what the nature of that conversation
was”?

A Well, my understanding was -- was she told me she was going to
do - it was going to be 8,000 for the whole process and she got half the
money, s¢ everything was, you know, supposed to be handled. You know, it
was for everything. It wasn't just, you know, one thing. She said she was
going to do everything. | talked to her a couple times, she said it was for the
whole thing. And | just took her some money right before -- right before this.
Just -- | used to have to have conferences at the office because they wouldn'l

answer the phone after --
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o Mr. Harris. have you been incarcerated since sometime in 2011 to

the present time?
A Yes.
Q Did you receive from -
MR. CARLING: Your Honor, may | approach tc get Exhibit A?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR CARLING:

Q Mr. Harris, I'm showing you what's been previously admitted as

Defense Exhibit A; do you recognize that document?

A Yes.

Q Did you receive a copy of that particular document w hile you were

incarcerated?
A Yes.
Q Did you have chance to go through it and read it?
A Yes.
Q On the very last page, does it appear to be a certificate of mailing?
A Yes.
Q Now, did you have a chance to read that certificate?
A Yes.

Q Based on the information on that certificate, what was your

impression when you received that document?

A | thougnt she filed this and | was waiting on a response because

that's what -- that's what we discussed. That's what we discussed.
Q What's the date on that certificate of mailing?

A June &th,

ROUGH DRAFT - PAGE 15
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Q What year?

A 2013,

Q Now, did you have a conversalion with Ms. Park after June 6th,
2013, regarding your post-conviction writ of habeas Corpus?

A Yes,

Q And what was the nature of that conversation so the Court may
know ?

A Because | showed somebody this night here, you know, | was just
showing somebody this -- this and they was like, man, | think that it's filed in
the wreong -- where was | at with my appeat --

Q Let me stop you there, Mr. Harris. Did you have any conversation
with Leslie Park after June 6th regarding this petition?

A Yeah.

Q  And what was the nature of that conversation?

A | found out it was filed in the wrong court, so then | told her, | think
this is in the wrong court, and she said she would fix it and then send me a
copy.

Ql Did she ever send you a copy after June 6th, 20137

A No.

Q Did you ever receive any copy of a petition thal was filed in District
Court under your District Court number?

A No.

&) After June -- after that conversation where Ms, Park, you indicated
Ms. Park said that she would fix it and file it in the correct court, did you have

any further discussions with Ms, Park regarding your petition?
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A No.

Q Did you attempt to contact Ms. Park after that?

A Yeah. |tried to call a few times. But like they said, she -- she
never came to visit me in no prison, She never used to visit me none. She
always used to promise me she would come visit me and talk to me but she
never did. And they stopped answering the call. And every time | used to call
the secretary used to act like | was a bug or something, iike, wouldn't even
answer the phone call because ! used to have my family try to pop up and make
appointments so we can have a conference so | can discuss what was gaing
on.

Q Did you ever meet with Ms. Park in prison prior to the petition being
drafted?

A No. 1 never met with her, period. We had a conversation in the
County. When -- when it would come down to me actually filing because Bret
was going to file it for me. And then we had a conversation where we had --
she came to visit me and then |, you know, | felt comfortable with everything
she said she was going to do so. so | was like, okay, well, so Bret -

® Now , who is -- who is Bret?

A Bret Whipple.

Q And what was Bret Whipple going to do for you?

A Bret was going to file my writ. He initialty put in for the appeal
because he was, like, you know, let him handle it. But then | just lost trial so !
was like, when Ms. Parks came to visit me, | was like, i'm just going to go with
her. She. you krow, we had an understanding, she, you know, | had a lot of

issues, s0 she understood. So | felt comiortable with the agreement. So --
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Q Now --

A -- 80 | went with her. So he filed first for the appeal, but then she
filed after that.

Q So to make -- to make it clear, Mr. Whipple fited the notice of
appeal, but Leslie Park did the fast track statement and reply?

A And she filed for the notice too, | believe.

Q Mow, you just indicated that when Ms. Park came and visited you,
where did you have that visit?

A In the County.

Q In the Clark County Detention Center?

A Here. Yeah, here. That's the only time | had a visit with her here.

Q Did she ever visit you at Southem Desert Correction Facility?

A No. No.

Q Now. when did you first -- when did you finally realize that no
post-conviction petition had ever been filed on your behalf?

A Maybe, like, | think 2014 the beginning of 2014 | thought | was
waiting on a response. | had, you know, | just -- | just kicked back, about
2014,

Q Now, did you just wait for a respanse because you lrusted that she
would do something for you?

A Yesh. |thought -- | thought | was - | thought | just, you know, |
was thinking she did that, She -- | was just waiting on the response because |
was tired of the games that, you know, trying Lo contact or catch her or getting
pushed off, you know what | mean? Like, you know, | just, like, you know, |

was just waiting, from that point on waiting for a response --
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Q) How much --

A -- from the --

Q I'm sorry for cutting you off, how much money did you give Ms.
Park when you retained her to do your post-conviction matters, whether it's an
appeal or a post-conviction petition?

A The post-convic -- | think she got about half monay. | think she
charged like, eight, | think she got, like, four. But then she was saying she
wasn't sweating the money, you know, because she ain't really did nothing
because she -- when she got -- when she got, you know, It wasn’t nothing to
be done. She -- she wasn't -- she was like, you know , don't worry about - |
just took her a payment right before all of this and she was just like, you know,
don’t worry about it, you know. So | thought, you know, as the time -- as we
fought, you know, | was going to continue to make payments.

Q When did you ultimately find out approximately -- maybe you've
asked -- asked -- answered this — that no petition was ever filed in the correct
court?

A | didn't find out ‘til maybe at least a year later.

Q Did you happen to contact any agency to determine whether or not
a petition had been filed?

A The Supreme Courts, | was trying to see the status of my case
because | thought | was waiting on a response, so | wrote the Supreme Court.

Q Did you ever write the District Court as well?

A Yeah. | wrote the District Court too.

Q And did you receive a response back from the District Court?

A

Yeah. They said it wasn't nothing never filed.
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Q Based on the response you received, what did you do?

A | immediately put - tried to put whatever | could together, appeal.
& 50 --

A A writ,

Q -- did you file your own petition for writ of habeas corpus in the

District Court?

A With some help, yeah.

Q And, Mr. Harris, you may or may not know this question, bul you -
do you know the date that technically wouid have been the deadline to file a
post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus in District Court?

A I don't -- | don't -- | think maybe December.

Q Qf which year?

A | think maybe 2013.

MR. CARLING: I'll pass -- I'll pass the witness, Your Honor.

THE WITNESS: If I'm not mistaken.

THE COURT: All right. Cross.

MR. THUNELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF LAMAR HARRIS

BY MR THUNELL:

Q Mr. Harris, so you said that you -- that you reached out to try and
find out if anything had been filed, de you recall when did you that?

A Like, around, well, | used to call pericdically. | lalked to her, after
she did this | talked to her again, maybe, ke, maybe, like, a couple months
later, | talked to her again. And then after that she said she was going tg

handle everything and then after that | just, you know, it was always hard to
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contact her,

Q 30 you think -

A 3o | figured she did it, so | just kicked back.

Q So you did have conversations with Ms. Park after you had received
that piece of paper?

A After -- after | received this, | did. And | told her, | said it was in
the wrong court. | told her bacause — because, like | was saying, | was
showing people what she had did and she was like they didn't know | was at
that point in my case, so when | asked her about, like, man, | think this is in the
wrong court, and she said, you know, she said, oh, she will fix that, that
wasn't nothing, she'll fix it.

Q Okay. And so you had conversations with her after she you had

received this paper. In those conversations did she discuss with you needing to

be paid --
A No.
Q -- far the services?

A No. She told me everything was cool because, like | said, | had just
dropped her some money. | had -- if -- if -- around alf this time when this was
going on. | Just had my family in her office at a conference, meeting.

Q And how much money are you saying that you had paid her at that
meeting?

A At least another thousand. | did paid half. | paid half of the money
that she charged for the whole thing.

@ But was that up front or was that half later on?

A No, that -- ckay, maybe it was a couple thousand to start, but she

nL094!
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Nevertheless, Park was placed on nodce by the Nevada Supreme Court decision in
the appeal that Harris' claims of ineffectiveness against his trial counsel were not proper for
direct appeal, and she and 1larrs began plans to file 2 petidon for writ of habeas corpus. She
was reaained for such purpose and undertook the dutes associated therewith. NRS 34,730(3)
specifically intormed Park thar the petition needed to be filed in the distrder courr, whose
clerk would then file it a8 a new action separate and distinct from any original proceeding in
which a conviction was entered. However, the pedtion allegedly filed by Park was not oaly
filed in the Nevada Supreme Court instead {allegedly), but also only referenced NRS 34.760
respecting an #ASWer 1o a penton for writ of habeas corpus; the form of the periticn
allegedly filed with the wrong court by Park thus fajled to meet the conrent requirements of
NRS 34.750 or NRS 34.735. See. Hartis® pro se Petition for Writ of Hubear Corpus Hed March
11, 2013, ar Exhibit “B.” Further, NRS 34.726(1} specifically informed Park thar Harrs’
petition was due within one (1) year of the Remstaier issuance, and Harrds himself repeatedly
reminded Park of this throughout the one-vear time limitation pedod. Se, Harrs® affidavit
attached to his pro se Pesition for Writ of Habias Cospas filed March 11, 2015, atr Fxhibir A"

Park’s performance was significantdy deficient. During the months fallowing the
issuance of the Remsstitar and leading up to the June 2013 alleged misfiling in the Nevada
Supreme Court, Park clearly had not even researched the law regarding the filing of such
penton.  As it permins to a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel under a Stickiand

£

analysis, “...although counsel need nor he a formne teller, he must be a reasonably
comperent legal histotian. Though he need not see into the future, he must reasonably recall

(or at least research} the past..” Kemwedy, 725 F.2d ar 272, gting Cooks, 461 F.2d ac 332, Park

20

LU

Docket 70679 Document 2016-25782

0830



14

15

L5

17

18

19

20

21

22

did not underrake her duty to research petiions for wiit of habeas corpus sufficiently prior
o undertaking such task and, similar 1o her failures with the appeal, fell below an objective
standard of reasonableness prejudicially impacting Hartis® dghts in the PIOCESS,

But for Park’s errors, there is 2 reasonable probability that the outcome would have
been differene. Harris need onlv present facts mesting the prependerance of the ¢vidence
standard, which he has done by submission of his affidavit and the copy of the peridon
allegedly filed by Park with the Nevada Supreme Court at Exhibits “A” and “B” of his pro
se petition. Means, 120 Nev. ar 1011-3, 103 P.3d at 31-33, These facts show thar Park’s
performance fell below a standard obiective reasonableness since they were CONCAY t the
pracedure dictated by smamute, Jd  The issues raised by Harris' pro se Peition for Wit of
Hlabear Corpus and further herein indicate that Park’s erross deprived him of the dght
meritonous review of viable issues, which issues cannot be raised by separatc petition or
otherwise in the fumre, A dismissal would in essence be onec with prejudice to Harrs ever
bringing such claims again due to the rime bar.

Harris’s challenge to Park’s ineffectiveness overcomes the procedural fme-bar under
NRS 34.726(1} by a showing of good cause for delay, which case law dictates can be based
on Park’s inctfectiveness, particularly in providing 2 substantial teason and a “legal excuse.”
Dickerson, 114 Nev. at 1088, 367 P.2d at 1134, Hathauay, 119 Nev, ar 232, 71 P.3d at S04,
azing Coley, 105 Nev, at 236, 773 P.2d at 1230 (guoting Ertencin, 625 P.2d at 1042). However,
Harris is also required by Hathawgy to evidence thar the ineffectve assistance of counsel
claim itself is not procedurally defaulted. Hathauagy, 119 Nev. at 252, 71 P3d ar 306

Although Harris” ineffective assistance of counsel claim was additionally raised after the one-
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vear limitation contained in NRS 34.726(1), larris was unaware that such claim exisced
during that time frame given the misinformarion that he was being given by Park herself,
Park informed him that the petition had been omely filed with this Court; however, she
never fled it. Harris tried repeatedly to obtain informadon from Park on the status, but she
would not take his pre-paid, non-collect phone calls nor respond t his writen
communicanon, Jes, |larrs’ affidavit ateached 1o his pro se Petition for Wit of Habear Corpus
at Exhibic A It was oot undl January of 2015, afier speaking with the Court that Harrds
confirmed that Park had not filed the petidon with this Court.  This provides adequate
allegations of good cause to sufficlenty explain why the ineffectiveness claim was not raised
within the one-year time bar contained in NRS 34.726(1). The claim was not reasonably
avatiable o Harris during the smtutory time period and thus constitures good cause (o
excuse the delav, Hatbaray, 119 Nev. at 252-3, 71 P.3d at 306.

The core procedural challenge and analysis contained in Flethaway is strikingly similar
to the instant case. Hathaway also claimed good cause to excuse his delay in Aling his
petition for wric of habeas corpus on the basis that his atorney affirmatively indicated that
he would file an appeal on his behalf and Hathaway believed he had done so. See, Hathaway,
119 Nev, at 254-5, 71 P.3d at 507-8. Harris reasonably believed Park was filing the petidon
for writ of habeas corpus on his behalf, pardculatly after having received a copy of one she
allegedly filed with the Nevada Supreme Court which just needed to be re-filed with this
Court, Once Harhaway learned his attomey had not done so, he argued thar he filed his
habeas petition within a reasonable ime. Jd [lards learned in January of 2013 that Park had

aot fled the petition, and he prepared and fled his own by March 11, 2015, even arguing

22
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against the procedural bar based on Park’s ineffectiveness. The Nevada Supteme Court
tound in Hathaway that prejudice is presumed if counse! fails ro file an appeal after requested
o do so, which is further supported by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. Id, citing
Laveland, 231 F.3d at 644, This holding should be extended to pedtions for writs of habeas
corpus such as Harrs® circumstances given that the time bar is also jurisdicionally-hased.
The Ninth Cirenit held thar a defendant who reasonably believes his artorney is taking some
action on his part “most naturally will not file his own post-conviction relief petidon.™
Lovetand, 231 T.3d at 644, Similarly, Flarris did not believe be needed to take any action
based on the conversations he had with Park., Hards would have filed his own petiton or
tried to re-tile with the distriet court the one that Pack sent him if he had been informed that
she did not intend to file it properly, but he was not afforded that oppormnity,

The Loreland case required uf Hathaway a showing that (1) he actually believed his
counsel was pursuing his direcr appeal, (2) his belief was objectvely reasonable, and (3 he
tiled his state post-conviction relief petidon within a reasonable tme afrer he should have
known that his counsel was not pursuing his direct appeal.” [5d, 231 F.3d at §44. The trial
court in Fatbaway tailed o hold an evidentiary hearing and thus the mateer was remanded so
as 1o allow Hathaway o present evidence towards these factors. However, Harris has
presented sufficient evidence herein and with his pro se Pesition for IF'rit of Hubrat Corpar to
warrant the same evidentiary heaning afforded Flathaway on his remand for determination of
these same Loveland factors. [larrs has raised a claim supported by specific facts not belied
by the record that would have eattled him to relief. Hutbaray, 119 Nev. ar 255, 71 P.3d art

S08.
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Harris has averred facts sufficient m meer the [Jatbaway requirements to overcome
the procedural bar to his pedton for writ of habeas corpus. Park falled o teasonably
undertake her duries as counsel with regard to researching the proper procedure for these
proceedings, having committed egregious failures in her represenmation of Harris both on
appeal and in postconviction proceedings. The tme-bar should thus be excused in this
matter and a meritorions determinaton rendered on the issues raised.

Should this coust find good cause to allow Harris” peddon to be heard, counsel
requests a short period of time to supplement the same. During ceview of the marter,
counsel noted 2 addidonal issucs of ineffective assistance of counsel thar should be hriefed
tor this Court’s review,

CONCLUSION

Wherefore, based upon the foregoing facts, Petitioner prays this Court find good
cause to review the Defendant’s petition in its endrety and grant relief,
{Fh
i
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DECLARATION AND VERIFICATION
I, Matthew D. Carling, am an attorney licensed to practice law in the Stare of Nevada
who was duly appointed to represent the Pedtoner, Lamar Flarris, in the preparation and
filing of the above Petidon for Wit of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conwvicdon), and that | Aled
the foregoing document at the specific instruction of the Petitioner, and based on the order
ot appoinmment by the Court,
Respectiully submitted this 279 day of July, 2013,
CARLING LAY OFFICE, PC
frf Mlathen D Corling
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ES().
Nevada Bar No,; 007302

Court Appointed Anturney for Petitioner] Defendans,
LAMAR HARRIS

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that, on this 274 day of July, 2015, I sent a true and correct copy of
the above NOTICE OF APPEAL to the following partes:

Steven B, Wolfson, Esq,
Clark County District Arorney
Postc Conviction Unit

lenniter £

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

Lsf Matshew D, Curding
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: (007302

Cows Appointed Attorney for Petitinner! Defenidunt,
LAMAR FIARRIS
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

JONATHAN E. VANBOSKERCK

Deputy District Attomney

Nevada Bar #006528

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

eSS B aoa
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
V3~ CASE NO:; C-11-274370-1
#%EANTWAN HARRIS, DEPTNO: V
Defendant.

STATE'S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 16, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B, WOLFSON, Clark County
District Atiotney, through JONATHAN E. VANBOSKERCK, Deputy District Altorney, and
hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Supplemental
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus,

This response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemned necessary by this Honorable Court.
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On June 24, 2011, the State charged LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS (hereinafier
“Defendant”) by way of Information as follows: COUNT 1 - Attermpt Murder With Use of a
Deadly Weapon (Felony — NRS 200,010, 200.030, 193,330, 193.1 65) and COUNT 2 — Battery
With Use of 2 Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm (Felony ~ NRS
200.480.2¢).
- Defendant’s jury trial commenced on August 30, 2011, On September 2, 2011, the jury

returned a verdict of guilty as to the charge of Battery with a Deadly Weapon Resulting in
Substantial Bodily Harm, and not guilty as to the charge of Attempt Murder with Use of a
Deadly Weapon, On November 21, 2011, Defendant was sentenced to a maximum of 175
months and a minimum of 70 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC), with
128 days credit for time served, The Judgment of Conviction was entered on December 2
2011,

Defendant appealed his conviction on December 8, 2011, On December 13, 2013, the
Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the conviction, finding there was sufficient evidence to
support the jury’s verdict. Remittitur issued on January 9, 2013. .

On March 11, 2015, Defendant filed a Proper Person Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus and Motion for Appointment of Counsel and Request for Evidentiary
Hearing. On May 20, 2015, this court confirmed the appointment of post-conviction counsel
for the Defendant for the limited purpose of addressing the procedural tirne bar issue, On July
27, 2015, Defendant, through his appointed attorney, filed the mstant Supplemental Petition
for Writ of Habess Corpus, The State hereby responds as follaws:

ARGUMENT
L DEFENDANT'S PETITION IS TIME BARRED AND SHOULD BE DISMISSED

As Defendant freely concedes, his Petition is procedurally defaulted as it was filed in
excess of the one year time peried allowed for post-conviction habeas corpus petitions,

NRS 34,726 provides:

2 Q0085
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(1)  Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that
challenges the validity of a judgment or sentence must be filed
within | year of the entry of the judgment of conviction or, if an
appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the
upreme Court issues its remiititur. For the ipur&!:osnﬁ of this
subsection, good cause for delay exists i ¢ petitioner
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the court;
Eag That the delay is not the fault of the petitioner; and
b)  That dismissal of the petition as untimely will
unduly prejudice the petiticner.

(Emphasis added), “[Tlhe statutory rules regarding procedural ﬁefault are mandatory and
cannot be ignored when properly raised by the State.” State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 121
Nev. 225,233, 112 P.3d 1070, 1075 (2005). The one-year time bar begins to rnm from the date
the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely direct appeal issues. Dickersen
v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998); see Pellegrim v. State, 117
Nev. 860, £73, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001} (holding that NRS 34.726 should be construed by its
piain meaning).

In Gonzales v, State, 118 Nev, 590, 593, 590 P34 90 1, 302 (2002), the Nevada Supreme

Court rejected a habeas petition that was filed two days late, pursuant to the “clear and
uembigucus™ mandatory provisions of NRS 34.726(1), Gonzales reiterated the inportance
of filing a petition within the one-year mandate, absent a showing of “good causg™ for the
delay in fiting. Gonzales, 118 Nev. at 593, 590 P.3d at 902. The one-year time bar is therefore

strictly construed. In contrast with the short amount of time to file a notice of appeal, a priscner
has a full year to file 2 post-conviction habeas petition, so there is no injustice in a strict
application of NRS 34.726(1), despite any alleged difficulties with the postal system.
Gonzales, | 18 Nev, at 595, 53 P.3d at 903. ,

Here, Defendant filed an appeal from his Judgment of Conviction. and remittitur was
issued on January 9, 2013. Therefore, Defendant had until Janunary 9, 2014, to file his Petition.
Accordingly, both the instant Supplemental Petition and the first Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus were filed over ong year late, as the first Petition was filed on March ] 1, 2015, and the
Supplemental Petition on July 27, 2015. Absenta showing of good cause, Defendant’s Petition
must be dismissed as time-barred pursuant to NRS 34.726(1). Defendant has not demonstrated
good cause to overcome the mandatory time bar imposed by NRS 34.726, To show good
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cause, & petitioner must demonstrate the following: 1) “[t]hat the delay is not the fault of the
petitioner” and 2) that the petitioner will be “unduly prejudicefd]” if the petition is dismissed
as untimely. NRS 34,726(1)(a)-(b),

A,  Defendant Has Failed to Establish an Impediment External to the Defense.

Under the first requirement, “a petitioner must show that an impediment extemnal to the
defense prevented him or her from complying with the state procedural default rules.®
Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (citing Pellegrini v. State, 117
Nev. 860, 886-87, 34 P.3d 519, 537 (2001); Lozada v. State, 110 Nev, 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944,

946 (1994); Passanisi v. Director, Dep’t Prisons, 105 Nev. 63, 66, 769 P.2d 72, 74 (1989},

“An impediment external to the defense may be demonstrated by a showing *that the factual

or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel, or that some interfersnce by
officials, made cmﬁpliance impracticable.'” Id. {quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478,
438, 106 5.Ct. 2639 (1986) (citations and quotations omitied)). Clearly, any delay in filing
must not be the fault of the defense. NRS 34,726(1)a).

As Defendant correctly notes, the quality of his post-conviction counsel's
represertation cannot serve as good cause to excuse procedural default. The Nevada Supreme
Court has made clear that the ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel in a noncapital
case may not constitute “good cause™ to excuse procedural bars, because “there is no
constitutional or statutory right to the assistance of counsel in noncapital post-conviction
proceedings, and *[wlhere there is no right to counsel there can be no deprivation of effective
assistance of counsel,”™ Brown v. McDaniel, 130 Nev. s __ 331 P.3d 867, 870 (2014
(citing McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 163-165, 912 P.2d 255, 258 (1996)). Here, as

Defendant correctly asserts, he did not have a statutory right to post-conviction counsel.

Accotdingtly, he had no right to effective post-conviction counsel. While Defendant may have
the option to pursue habeas corpus relief, that does not change the fact that he must do so
within one year absent a showing of good cause, and that the actions of post-conviction counsel
simply cannot form the basis for such a showing. Though Defendant has artfully attempted to

avoid this rule, it is plain that he seeks to demonstrate good cause by citing the performance

* 00853
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and actions of post-conviction counsel, which under Brown, is insufficient. Furthermore,
defense counsel’s actions cannct be considered an impediment external to the defense, and
therefore do not constitute geod cause.

Moreover, his petition was filed on March 11, 2015, over cne year after the statulory
period for filing had run on January 9, 2014, Defendant indicates that he was plainly capable
of apprising himself of the status of his case in the interim, as he did in January of 2015, when
he wrote a letter to the Clerk of this Court inquiring as to whether a petition had been filed on
his behalf. Defendant indicates communication with his post-conviction counsel ceased in
January of 2014, which would have been the time the one year filing period concluded. Yet,
Defendant waited a full year to inquire about the status of a post-conviction petition for writ
of habeas corpus, and more than a full year to file the instant Petition.

Also, Defendant is required to show that his ineffective assistance of counsel claim
itself is not time barred and here it was. Hathawayv v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503,
506 (2003). His assertion that he did not know such a claim existed is withoul merit since he
was aware of the procedural time bar issues regarding the habeas petitions. See Supplemental
Petition, 22. Accordingly, Defendant has failed to demonstrate good cause pursuant to NRS.
34,726, and his instant Petition is therefore procedurally barred.

Lastly, the Defendant argues in both his Petition and the Supplemental Petition that in
the Hathaway case, the defendant reasonably believed that his attorney was going to file an
appeal on his behalf, the attorney failed to do se and his reasonable belief was enough to
constitute pood cause to overcome the time bar jssue. Here, the Defendant makes the same
argument, that he did not file a petition because he believed Ms. Park was going to filc a
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on his behalf. Defendant claims that Ms, Park’s failure to
do so was good cause to overcome the procedural time bar. However, here the Defendant’s
¢laim has no merit, The Hathaway case involved an attorney who failed to file a direct appeal,
and one does have the right to the effective assistance of counsel on direct appeal (emphasis

added), Pa. v. Finley, 481 U.8. 551, 555, 107 8.Ct. 1990 (1987) (holding that the right fo
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appointed counsel extends to the first appeal of right, and no further). As such, Defendant’s
reliance upon Hathaway is misplaced because under Brown ke does not have a right to counse,

B.  Defendant Has Failed to Demonstrate Actual Prejodice,

Because none of Defendant’s claims were likely to succeed even in the event his post-
conviction petition had been timely filed, Defendant has also failed to dernonstrate that he will
suffer prejudice should this Court dismiss the instant Petition.

Once a petitioner has established cause, he must show actual prejudice resufting from
the errors of which he complains, i.e., “a petitioner must show that errors in the proceedings
underlying the judgment worked te the petitioner's actual and substantial disadvantage.” State
v. Hucbler, 128 Nev. __,_ ,275 P.3d 91, 94-95 (2012) (citing Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev,
952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993)). Defendant carries the affirmative burden of
establishing prejudice.” Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 646, 878 P.2d 272, 278 (1994),

Ctaims of ineffective assistance of counse] are analyzed under the two-pronged test
articulated in Strickfand v. Washington, 466 U.8. 668, 687, 104 S.C1. 20352, 2063-64 (1984),

wherein the defendant must show: 1) that counsel’s performance was deficient, and 2) that
the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. Id. at 687, 104 S.Ct at 2064, Nevada
adopted this standard in Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 683 P.2d 504 (1984). “A court may

consider the two test ¢lements in any order and need not consider hoth prongs if the defendant

makes an insufficient showing on either one.” Kirksey v, State, 112 Nev. 980, 987, 923 P.2d
1102, 1107 (1897).

With regard to the first prong, a defendant is not entitled to erroriess counsel, Rather,
*“*[d]eficient” assistance of counsel is representation that falls below an objective standard of
reasonableness,” Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 987, 923 P.2d at 1107. What appears by hindsight to
be a wrong or peorly advised decision involving tactics or strategy is not sufficient to meet the
defendant’s heavy burden of proving ineffective counsel. “Judicial review of a lawyer's
representation is highly deferential, and a defendant must overcome the presumnption that a
challenged action might be considered sound strategy.” State v, LaPena, 114 Nev, 1 158, 1166,
908 P.2d 750, 754 (1998). In order to meet the second “prejudice” prong of the test, “the

6
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defendant must show a reasonable probabitity that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the
trial would have been different.” Kirksey, 112 Nev. al 988, 825 P.2d at 1107. And the
Defendant must show it was not his own fault that produced the prejudice,

Here, even if Defendant had a right to counse] in his post-conviction proceeding and
hisg attorney was deficient in her performance, it still was not enough to establish prejudice. In
the Supplemental petition, the defense relies heavily on the prejudice argument from the first
proper person petition. Defendant claims Ms. Park was ineffective for relying upon
Heglemcier v, State, 111 Nev. 1244, 903 P.2d 799 (1995), in challenging the sufficiency of
the evidence. However, even if Ms. Park cited inapplicable authority, Defendant has not
demonstrated that this mistake prejudiced him in any way, In affiming Defendant’s
conviction, the Nevada Supreme Court noted that Heglemeier was inapplicable, but found that
regardless, “sufficient evidence supports the verdict.” See Order of Affirmance, 01/15/ 13, p.
1. Thus, counsel's reliance on Heglemeier caused no prejudice, and Defendant’s cleims of
ineffective assistance of appellate counsel are frivotous. Accordingly, Defendant has fhiled to
demonstrate that this Court’s dismissal of his untimely petition will result in prejudice pursuant
to NRS 34.726,

Also, Defendant complains that trial counsel| was ineffective for failing to attempt to
rernove a member of the jury. See Supplemental Petition, p. 19. A prospective juror should
be removed for cause only if the prospective juror’s views would prevent or substantially
s ,318P3d
178 (2014} (citing Weber v. State, 121 Nev. 554, 580, 119 P.3d 107, 125 (2005)). That a

impair the performance of his duties as a juror. Preciado v. State, 130 Nev.,

prospective juror is familiar with a witness does not require excusal of the prospective juror
where the juror unequivocally states that he or she can remain impartial. Id.at 318 P.3d
at 179. Here, as Defendant points out, Prospective Juror 602 informed the court that he
attended high school with one of the State’s witmesses, Stacy Monroe. Reportet’s Transcript
("RT7) Jury Trial, 04/16/12, p. 7. During voir dire, the prospective juror described Mr. Monroe
as “an acquaintance, at best” and explained he had not had contact with Mr. Monroe for over

20 years. Id. at p. 126. The court inquired as to whether the prospective juror could remain

7 .
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fair and impartial despite his familiarity with the witness, and he responded that he could “for
sure” remain fair to both sides. Id. at p. 126-127. Accordingly, Defendant’s trial counsel was
not required to pursuve excusal of the juror, and cannot be deemed ineffective for not deing so.
Thus, Defendant’s claim would not have been likely to suceeed, and doses not demonstrate
prejudice.

Furthermore, Defendant claims that but for Ms. Park’s zlleged errors the outcome of
his case would have been different. However, he fails to offer argument, but rather merely
cites her alleged errors. Such naked allegations are insufficient to establish a reasonable
probability that the result would have been different. Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-
(33, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984).

CONCLUSION

Based on the aforementioned, this Court should deny Defendant’s Supplemental
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

DATED this 12th day of August, 2015.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attarney
Nevada Bar 661565

CLi8!

WAL TROTTER 1 FOTTES-REPNHARRIS.  LAMAR 001 DO

.7




L= S R R S S VL R i

[ w2 N % N % R 5 N % ) o o — et gt i hid e b e

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that on the 12th day of August, 2015, [ e-mailed a copy of the foregoing State’s
Response to Defendant's Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction),
to:

MATTHEW D. CARLING, Esq.

ce lcga]jgmail.mm
BY * 1) ADGr~

: SUN
Se for the District Attorney’s Office
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Matthew D, Carling CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No. 007302

1100 5, Tench Sereec

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone: (702) 419-7330

Facsimile: {702} 446-8065

Ledarl egali@omail com

—Attarmey for Petittoner! Defendant

LAMAR HARRIS
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAMAR HARRITS, Case No.: €C274370
Pennoner, Dept. Now XII

_vs_

STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
BE O ! I 1 \
FO TO 5
FOST-CONVICTION)

COMES NOW Defendant Lamar Hards (“Hagris™), w and through counsel
Matthew D. Carding, and hereby submits the following reply 1o the Stk Response 2o
Defendant's Supplomental Petition for W'rit of Habeas Conpus (Post-Conpiction), fled August 12, 2015
(the “Response™, which is supported by the following memorandum of points and

authorites:
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ARGUMENT

I COUNSEL TIMELY DRAFTED AND FILED THE
PETITION ON HARRIS* BEHALF; HOWEVER, HER
MISTAKE IN FILING IT IN THE INCORRECT COURT
AND THEN LEADING HARRIS TO BELIEVE S5HE HAD
CORRECTED THE ERROR WAS SUFFICIENT TO MEET
THE “GOOD CAUSE” TO ALLOW HARRIS' PETITION TC
BE HEARD.

“Generally, “good cause” means a ‘substandal reason; one thar atfords 4 legal excuse,™
Huthaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 303, 506 (2003}, oting Colley 2 State, 105 Nev.
233, 236, 773 P.2d 1229, 1230 (1989)(qavting State v. Fstencorn, 63 Haw, 264, 625 P.2d 1041,
1042). “In order to demonstrace good cause, 4 petitoner must show that an impediment
external m the defense prevented him or her from complving with the state procedural
default miles.” Jd, atng Pellednd 2 Star, 117 Nev. 860, 886-87, 34 P.3d 519, 537 (20K,
Logada v State, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994); Pacsanic v. Director Dep't Pritons,
103 INev. 63, 66, 769 P.2d 72, 74 (1989).

In Brpun v McDantel, the Nevada Supreme Court analvzed the concept of whether
claims of inetfectiveness of post-convicton counsel could provide sufficient “pood cause”
to excuse the procedural bar in non-captial cases, ultimately finding that it did not, Féd, 130
Nev | , 331 P.3d 867 (2014). At the heart of this determination, the Court provided the
tollowing:

Nevadas post-conviction statutes contemplate the filing of one post
conviction petiton to challenge a conviction or sentence. This is reflected in
the plain language of the statutes themselves. For example, instruction number
five 1o the habeas corpus pedidon form tound in NRS 34.735 direcrs
petidoners to include in the peddon “all grounds or claims for relief”
regarding the convicton or sentence and warns petitioners that failure o do
so could preclude them from filing future pettons [footnote omited], and
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NRS 34,810 provides for dismissal of claims that could have been or were
raised in 2 pror post-conviction proceeding, NRS 34.81001)7h), (2). Tt is also
reflected in the legislative history of the stattes, which were amended in 1991
to provide for a single post-conviction remedy, effectve January 1, 1993, Se
Pellgroni v State, 117 Nev. 860, 870-73, 876-77, 34 P.3d 519, 526-28, 530
{2001} (seuting forth the history of Nevada’s post-conviction remedies). The
purpose of the single post-conviction remedy and the statutory procedural
bars Js “to ensure that pedtioners would be limited to one time thraugh the
post-conviction systern,” fd at 876-77, 34 P.3d ar 530. As this court made
clear in Pelyrini, *Nevada's lawmakers never intended for peticioners to have
multiple oppermunities to obtain post-conviction relicf absent extraordinary
circumstances,” Jd at 876, 34 P.3d ar 530, The rule advanced on Brown's
behalf would circumvent the Legislature’s “one rime through the system”
intent, as every petidoner who is appointed post.convicdon counsel would
then have an opporcunity to litigate a sccond petition. The filing of successive
{and most likely unomely) pentons would” overload the court system,
significantly increase the cost of post-conviction proceedings, and undermine
the finality of the judgment of conviction, precisely what the Legislarure was
adempting to avold in creating the single post-conviction remedy in NRS
Chapter 34, [footnote omitted] Ser id: see alio State 1 Fighth Tudicial Ditt. Court,
121 Nev. 223, 231, 112 P.34 1070, 1074 (2005)("Habeas ecrps petnons that
are tiled many vears after conviction are an unreascnable burden on the
criminal justice system. The necessity for 2 workable system dictates that there
must extst a nme when cririnal conviction is final.” (internal guorations
omitted}}.

I ar 872-73.

The rule advanced on Brown's behalf was adoption of the rule set forth for federal
habeas corpus proceedings by the case of Matiner 1 Ryan, 132 S.Ce. 1309, 182 L.Eid.2d 272
(2012). Martiney pertained to a second successive petiion for wrt of habeas corpus filed in
tederal court on elaims that his counsel in his first petition for writ of habeas corpus had
failed to raise specific ineffectiveness claims in those initial proceedings. In Marmeg, the

federal court had adopted an equitable analysis that allowed the federal court to hear the

1867
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metits on a procedurally defaulted claim in state court where a petiioner was represented by
no counsel or allegedly ineffective post-convicton counsel in the initial-review collateral
proceedings. However, Brown declined to adopt Martiney because Marfineg's holdings applied
10 claims where the petitioner did not have counsel in the initial-review collagera) proceeding,
Brown at RT3, dting Martineg, 132 5.Cr. at 1319-1320. The Broww court determined that
adopung Martinez in its entirety would undermine the mandatory procedural default
conmined in NRS 34.810 requiring appoinmment in all initial-review post-conviction
proceedings in contraventon to NRS 34.750(1), also declining to adopt oaly a portion of
Marnnez/s holdings with respect to ineffeciiveness claims against post-convicdon counsel
given the Supreme Court’s refusal to recognize a consttutional right to counsel in inidal-
review post-conviction proceedings, Ulimately Brwnm found that Martines could not be
reconciled with Nevada’s starutory provisions, stating that “Nevada's statutony procedural
bars are designed to streamline the pest-conviction review process and ensure the finality of
judgments of convicdon while leaving open a safety vadve for defaulted violations of siate
law and constitutional rights in very limited circumstances.” Brown at 874 (footniote omitted).
"Whether or how a rule similar (o that adopted in Martinez should be adopted in state post-
convicton proceedings is a marer of policy and lies in the hands of the Legislature,” /4

Int Brown there was a stacking of ineffectveness claims. Brows and Martiney addressed
issues where a claim of Incffectiveness was raised due o the failure to raise other
ineffectivencss elaims against an attoeney in inital habeas corpus proceedings. The analysis
of Brawn clearly indicates that this is disallowed likely because the secondary claims are going

to be time-hatred.
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Excusing the dme-bar does not require that 1lards meer the “ineffectveness of

]!'?

counscl” requirement for habeas proceedings, rather he ntust stmply meet the * cause™
criteria, Whether Harris is entided to effective counsel in post-convicdon pmceedir;gs Or Not
s irrelevant. Even if Harris was not entded to the effectiveness of his retined counsel in
filing the habeas corpus petition, the facts surrounding why the default oceurred siill provide
“good cause™ o excuse the default, Harris was sent 2 copy of the timely filed petdon, then
informed that it was fled in the wrong court. Hards followed up with his retained counsel to
ensure it would be filed in the correer court, and was assured it had been. He later found out
that this had not occurred, so he filed his own seelang reliet from the dme-bar on these
grounds. A reasonable person would have anccipated that the attorney they hired did their
job by a simple re-filing of a document already prepared in the correct court prior to the
deadline, pardcularly when thev are told that the re-filing did peccur.

Rarris is sufficlendy differendated from Bmws nonetheless because he is not
attemnpting to stack petitions tor habeas relief, but rather asking for reinstatement of his fight
1 have his st petition heard. This is actually in line with the holdings in Broaw, Although
Brown found that claims of ineffectiveness of post-convicion counsel did not provide
sutficient “good cause™ w excuse the procedural har in aon-capital cases, it did so on the
basis that allowing Brown to do so would contravene the concept af 4 single post-conviction
petidon to challenge a convicton or sentence since he was raising ineffectiveness for failing
to taise ineffectiveness claims. Broww at B72; NRS 34.735; NRS 34810 1)(b), {2); Paliigrini at

B70-73, 876-77.
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HMarris is not raising & Brswr inetfectiveness stacking herein, but rather argued how
“an impediment exteenal to the defense prevented him ... from complying with the state
procedural defaule rales.” flathanay at 252, cttng Pellegrins av BB6-87; Logada at 353; Passanis
at 66. This impediment is sufficient to meet the “good cause™ srandard required to “‘af tord|
| a legal excuse™ Id at 232, diting Colley at 236 (guoting Estencain at 1042, While Harris
evidenced how his legal counsel’s failures or ineffecoveness! impacted the default in his
Supplemental Pedton, the Smickbmd requirement and the right to effectiveness of that
counsel is irtelevane to the uldmate determination of “good cause” which has an enirely
different analysis for this Court o undemake—that of an external mpediment  that
prevented Harrls from complving with the state procedural defaulr niles.

Harns did not comply because his counsel rold him she had done so already, and he
has provided the copy of the petition which she allegedly re-filed and mailed to him. It is
signed by his counsel. There was nothing to indicate to Harris that the re-filing had nor gone
a5 he was informed it had. Hazgis faults his retained post-conviction counsel for never tiling
the pediton at all—although she prepared it, filed it with the wrong court, told Hards she
was flling it in the correcr one before the deadline, and failed to ever do so, Harris diligently
tetained counsel o represent his interests and she did so up untl she failed to file it in che
correct court. While it was cleady “ineffective assistance”, this Court is not required to make

that finding in order to provide Harris relief from the procedural bar. It is only required o

' Because Harris was arguing the “external impediment” was his counsel’s misinformation
and failures, Hards behieves it is assisive to at least look to the smndard analysis of
incffectiveness, althongh g finding of ineffectiveness is not required by this Court to provide
relief to the procedural bar,
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bnd “an impediment external to the defense prevented him ... from complying with the |
state procedural defaule rules”  Fathaway at 252, dting Pellgring ar RRG6-8T; Logada at 353
Passanisi at 66. This impedimenc is sufficient to meer the “good cause” standard required o
“aftord| | alegal excuse.™ Id at 252, citing Colley at 236 (guoting Estencoin a1 1042,

Excusing the procedural bar herein will additionally uphold Brows's analysis by
ensuring that Harris is “limited 1o on¢ ome through the post-conviction svsvem.”” fhid, at
872-13, ating Pellegrini ar 876-77. Harris would not be provided muliple opporwaities to
obtain post-conviction relief, I, ming Pellgrind ar 876, Harris would not be drcumvendng
the Legislature’s “one dme through the svstem™ inwent, Id, Bxcusing the procedural bar
herein would only afford Harrs his one time throuph the system, which was precisely the
Legislature’s intent on adoptng the single post-convicton remedy in NRS Chapter 34,
Further, Harris' pro se petidon was filed within a reasonable time atrer he leamed of his
remained counsel’s fRilures so as o not create an unreasonahle borden on the criminal justice
system. Egghth fudidel Dist. Court ;v 231, Providing Harris relicf will uphold Nevada’s
staturory process by allowing him the one “safety valve™ to which all others are entided for
raising state law and constitutional rights. Braws at 874 ‘footnore omitted), This is not 2
matter of legislaton to provide this relief, but rather an analysis of the proper standard for
tinding “good cause” to excuse the procedural bar on the particular facts contained in
Harris’ case,

The Stare’s Response mistzkenly argues thar Harrs canaor obmin relief from the
procedural bar on the basis of his counsel’s failures becanse he was not entided o the

effectivencss of counsel; however, it has confused the requirements for habeas relief with the
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requirements to excuse a procedural bar to habeas relief. Harris' burden on obtaimng relief
trorn the bar is not the same as obtaining habeas relief, nor should this Court feel inclined to
raise it to that level. This Court can sill find thar [larris’ counsel was the external
impediment to his having missed the deadline without determining thar Hartis was endeed
to effectiveness of post-conviction counsel. Technically, she was never his post-convicton
counsel anyway having never filed the perition in the correct court. The unporiant facs in
this matter are that Hartds took diligent steps to meer the deadline and that something
external bevond his control—his counsel’s failures—are the orly reason that it did not get
tiled timelv. This provides 2 proper legal excuse for Harris, and the merirs of his petition
shonld be heard.

II. THE PROCEDURAL BAR ISSUE WAS BIFURCATED FROM
THE MERITORIOUS ISSUES CONTAINED IN THE PRG
FPER PETITION AND HARRIS HAS RESERVED THE
RIGHT TO FILE A SUPPLEMENTAL BRIEF ON THOSE
ISSUES ONCE A DETERMINATION IS RENDERED ON
THE PROCEDURAL BAR ISSUE.

The Stare’s Response mistakenly indicaces that Harris hag relicd entirely on the issucs
contained in his pro per pedtion; howeser, this misstaces this Court’s procedural posture in
this case, At the hearing held May 20, 2013, this Court indicared that it ininally desired that
counse| only determine at this poinr if there was a sufficient basis for Hartis to get around
the ome bar. If he could, then counsel would be authorized to work on supplemenang the
wiit. Even according to this Coutt’s Minwser from the May 203, 2015, hearing, the purpose of
the hearing thar has been scheduled for September 16, 2015 at 900 a.m. is specifically to

address only the time bar issue. Should this Court determine that Harris can overcome the
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tme bar and obtain relief from it on the basis of his arguments contained in his inigal
supplement and herein, then Hartds will be authorized to file a supplement o the issues
contained in his pro per pedtion. The State’s arguments are thus premanire in artempng o
fast-forward to the conclusion contraty to the procedure dictated by this Courr and prior o
Harris being provided an opporninity to make his arguments with appointed counsel.
CONCLEUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing, !larris respectfully requests this Court
excuse the dme bar conmined in NRS 34.726(1) and allow [lams to proceed towards
supplernenting his pro per petition on file herein.

Respectfully submitted this 9" day of September, 2013,

CARLING AW OFFICE, PC

fof Matthew 13, Carfing
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ES(Q).
Nevada Bar Noo 007302

11(X] 8. Tenth Screet

Las Vegas, N'W 89101

T2 419-7330 (Office)

(702} 446-8065 (Fax)

Cedarl egalizigmail.com

Court Appointed Attarney for Petitioner,
LAMAR HARRIS
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[hereby centify that, on this 9* day of September, 2015, T sent a true and correct copy of
the above REPLY to the following parties:

Steven B. Wolfson, Esq.

Clark Counnty District Attomney

Post Conviction Unit

fenmfer Crarciateclarkeountyda com

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

) Matthen I3 g
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 007302
1100 8. Tentch Serect
Las Viegas, NV 89101
(702) 419-7330 (Office)

(702) 446-8065 (Fax}

{eE hlail

Conrt Appointed Attarney for Petitioner,
LAMAR HARRTS
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MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESC(}. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No.: 007302

1100 5. Tenth Street

Las Vegas, NV 89101]

(702) 419-7330 (Office)

(702) 446-8065 (Fax)

CedarLegali@gmail.com

Court-Appointed Attorrey for Defenduny,
LAMAR A HARRIS

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
* X & % %

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No.: C274370

Plainiff, Dept. No.: V
Vi,
LAMAR A HARRIS,

Defendant.

TO:  COURT REPORTER - DEPARTMENT NO. 3
LAMAR HARRIS, Defendant named above, requests preparation of a rough draft

transcript of certain portions of the proceedings before the district court, as follows:

DATE JLUDGE PORTION ORIGINAL PLUS!
e 16713 Thompson, Charles All 2

This notice requests a transcript of only those portiens of the District Court proceedings
which counsel reasonably and in good faith believes are necessary o determine whether

appellate issves are present. Voir dire examination of jurors, openmyp staterments and closing

U Griginal Rough Draft to be filed with the District Coumt, two certified copies to be served on Mr. Carling, and
original certificate of servive o be filed with the Mevada Supmeme Court. NRAP 3C(INE)L

noa873
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arguments of trial counsel, and the reading of jury instructions shall not be transcribed unless
specifically requested above.

| recognize that 1 must personally serve a copy of this form on the above named court
reporter and opposing counsel, and that the above named court reporter shall have twenty (20)
days from the receipt of this notice to prepare and submit to the diswiet court the transcript

requested herein, 1 further certify that the defendant is indigent and therefore exempt from
paying a deposit.

DATED this 17" day of September, 2015,

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

& Marthew D, Carling
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: 007302

1104 8. Tenth Strest

Las Vegas, NV 8910]

(702) 419-7330 {Office)

(702) 446-8065 (Fax)

Cedail epatinipmail com
Court-Appointed Attorney for Defendunt,
LAMAR A HARRIS

CERTIFI] E OF SERVICE

L hereby certify that, on this | 7" day of September, 2015, T sent a true and correct copy of
the above REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPTS OF DISTRICT COURT
PROCEEDINGS to the following parties:

Steven B. Wolfson, Esq.
Clark County District Attorney
Post Convicrion Unit

Jennifer Ciarciadiclarkeouniveiy com

Page 2 of 3
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I hereby certify that on September 17, 2015, I served a copy of the REQUEST FOR

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPTS OF DISTRICT COURT PROCEEDINGS to Dept. 5 Court

Reporter by mailing a copy vig first class mail, postage thereon fully prepaid, to the following:

Court Reporter Lamar A. Harris (#71088)

Dept. 5 SDCC

200 Lewis Avenue P.O. Box 208

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 [ndian Springs, Nevada §9070-0208

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

i8f Marthew D, Carling

MATTHEW D. CARLING. ESQ,
Court-dppointed Attorney for Defendant,
LAMAR A HARRIS
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09/19/2015 07:30:34 PM

MoT .. i-Hﬂ:ﬁ-—

MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ. 4 S ik oo
Nevada Bar No.: 007302

1100 5. Tenth Sereet

Las Vegas, NV 89101

(702) 419-7330 (Offics)

(702} 446-8005 (Fax)

Court-Appointed  Aftorney far LDiefendant,

Lamar A, Harris

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No:  C-11-274370-1
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: vV

¥,

EVIDENTIARY HEARING REQUESTED

LAMAR A. HARRIS,

Drefendant,
i

OT: OF TIO TION FOR RECO E ON DE 0

COMES NOW, the Defendant, LAMAR A, HARRIS, by and through his actomey of
record, MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ)., of the Catling Law Office, PC. and moves this
Honorable Court to teconsider the demial of his Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Convietion,

Fd &
e
FA
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This motion i3 made and based on the pleadings and papers on file herein, the attached
Affidavit of Matthew [). Carling, Esq., in support thereof, and any oral arguments as may be
presented at the hearing in chis mateer.,

DATED this 21" day of Scptember, 2015.

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

Lil Maithew D, Carling
MATTHEW D, CARLING, ESQ.
Conrt-Appainted Alomey for Defendarnt

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO:  CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaingiff,

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that counsel for the Defendant will bang the above
and foregoing Motion to Reconsider on for hearing hefore the above-enttled Court in Department

V at the Reglonal Justice Center located at 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, on the:

16-14-13% at %:00am,

DATED this 21* day of September, 2015.

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

L5/ Masthew D, Carlig

MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Conrt-Apporrted Antomey for Defendiant
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A Lesve of Coarr

DCR 13(7} provides that a Motion for Reconsideraton may be made with Leave of the
Court. Ser Amold v. Kip, 168 P.3d 1050, 1054 (New, 2007); EfDCR 2.24(2): and District Court
Rules af Nevada 13(7). Pedtioncr requests leave the ngtant modon, .

&, Timeliness of Motian

EJDCR 2.24(b) provides for a parry secking reconsideraton must file such Motion within 10
days after service of written notice of the order or udgment unless the time is shortened by or
enlarged by order.

& Judsdicion

In Gibbs v, Giles 607 P.2d 118 (Nev. 1980, the Court held the District Court has authority
to grant 3 Moton for Rehearing if re-asgument is warranted. Id. ar 119, Furthermoce, the Districs
Court retains jurisdiction “until an Order is appealed.” Id. 119, Therefore, 2s po appezl has been
filed, under Gibhs, this Court tnay entertain the Instant Motion,

IL.
LAW

The Nevada Supreme Court noted in Mamn o State, 118 Nev. 351, 46 P.3d 1298 (2002} thar
“[tjhis court has long recognized a petitioner's tight to a post-conviction cvidentiary hearing when
the petitioner asserts claims supported by specific factual allegations not belied by the record that, if
true, would entide him to relief,” Mamw, ar 1230 ciiing Harprove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 686 P.2d 229
(1984). The Court derermmined thar, “[a] claim is not "belied by the record’ just because a facteal

dispute is created by the pleadings or affidavits fited during the post-conviction proceedings. A
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claim 1s "belied” when it is contradicred or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the dme
the clairy was made.” 14
IIl.

ARGUMENT
A THIS COURT SHOULD RECONSIDER THE DENIAL OF THE
DEFENDANT'S POST-CONVECTION PETITION AS THE
DEFENDANT HAS RAISED A LEGITIMATE DISPUTE THAT IS
NOT BELIED BY THE RECORD.

Pursuant 1o NRS 34.470(1), if a petitioner can demonstrate the impnsonment is unlawful,
the petitioner is entitled to discharge, A pettoner is endtled to discharge “[wlhere the court finds
there has been a specific denial of the petiioner’s constitutional rights with respect to the
petitioner’s conviction or scntence in 4 eriminal case.” NRS 34.500(9). The statte governing
judicial determination of the need for an evidentiary hearing or dismissal of petiion or granting of
writ stztes that, “[t]he ludge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all sUpporting
documents which are filed, shall determine whether ag evidentiary hearing is required. A petitioner
must aot b discharged or commited to the custody of 2 person other than the respondent unless
an evidentiary hearing is held.” NRS 34.770(1). Subsection (3} states thar, “N)t the judge or justice
determines that an evidentiary hearing 15 required, the judge or justice shali grant the writ and shall
set a date for the hearing."”

In the instant marter, this Court heard argument regarding the Defendant’s post-conviction
petition. Senior Judge Charles Thompson denicd the Perition indicating it was tme-barred.
However, Counsel believes that reconsideration is warranted in rhis matter . On May 13, 2015, the
court pranted the Defendant’s motion w appoint counsel for the limited jssue of determining if his
post-conviction petition can “ger around rhe time bar” e Court Minutes, 05/13/15. On May 20,

2015, the court appointed counsel to detertine if there is sufficient basis for Deft. to pet around
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the time bar. The court minutes also tefleet that the court noted that “there may be a need for
evidentiary hearing.™ e Court Mimutes, §5/20/15,

In his Supplemental Petition and Reply, the Defandant taised the issue of wial counsel’s
mishandling of the Defendant’s post-conviction matter. Speabically, the Defendant noted that he
requested that his arorney flc a post-conviction writ of habeas corpus. Trial counsel informed the
Defendant that she did; howsver, she filed the post-conviction petition in the wrong court. The
Defendane raised the issue of cormnmunication between himself and bis mal attorney. Addidonally,
the Detendant noted that he received confirmarion that mial counsel remedied the misfiling of his
posttenvicton petition.

In his Reply, the Dcfendant noted that his attorney’s mistake amounted w “an
impediment extemal to the defense prevented him ... from complying with the state
procedural default rles”, Ser Reply, P 6, lines 1-1. Defendant further argued thar this
external impediment is sufficient to meet the “good cause™ smndard required to afford a
legal excuse. See Reply, p. 6, lines 4-5. As argued in Defendant’s Reply, Harris did nor
comply with the proper filing because his counsel told him she had done so already, and he
has provided the copy of the signed petiion which she allegedly re-filed and mailed to him.
There was nothing 1o indicate to Harris that the re-filing had not gone as he was informed it
had. Haris faults his post-conviction counsel for never filing the petition ar all —although
she prepared it, filed it with the wrong court, told Harris she was filing it in the correct one
before the deadline, and failed to ever do so. This information is not belisd by the record, yet
remains outside the record. As such, an evidentiary hearing 1s necessaty o supplement the record

prior to a decision by this court Se Mann ». Statz, 118 Nev. 351, 46 P3d 1228 (2002} tholding that
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it is improper for the district court to resolve a factual dispute created by affidavits without
conducting an evidentiary hearing).
Iv.
ERAYER FOR RELIEF
WIEREFORE, the Defendant prays that this Court reconsider his Pedton for Wrir of
Habeas Corpus and grant an evidentiary hearing so that the record may be supplemented,
DATED this 21" day of Septemnber, 2015,

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

L1/ Masthew D, Corlins
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Cosrt-Appointed Aitorney for Defendant
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

! hereby certify that, on this 217 day of August, 2015, T sent a true and correct copy of the

above MOTTON TO CONSOLIDATE CASES (o the following partics:

Steven B, Wolfson, Esq.

Clark County District Attorney
Post Convieton Unit

Lenniter Gargiafictarkeguntyda com

Lamar A Harns (#71088)

SDCC

P.O), Box 208

Indian Springs, Nevada R9070-0208

CARLING LAW QFFICE, PC

Lo Mattbew D Corling

MATTHEW I3 CARLING, ESQ.
Canrt-Appuinted Attorney for Defendant
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CLERK OF THE COURT
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff CASE NO. C274370-1
DEPT. v
VE.,
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Defendant.
)

BEFORE THE HONORABLE, CHARLES THOMPSON, SENIOR DISTRICT COURT
JUDGE

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2015
HEAFRING: TIME BAR ON WRIT

APPEARANCES:
For the State: TALEEN R. PANDUKHT, ESQ.
Chief Deputy District Attomey
For the Defendant; MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: LARA CORCORAN, COURT RECORDER
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 201 5, at9:10 AM.

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus L.amar Hais,

The record will refiect the presence - or the absence of the Defendant
who's in custody in the Department of Corrections. | don't have anybody from the
State on this.

THE CLERK: Counsel, your name?

MR. CARLING: Matthew Carling for the Defendant who is not present, in
custody.

THE COURT: Mr. Carfing.

MR. CARLING: Your Honor, | was appointed on a limited role to supplemsnt
and brief this Court on --

THE COURT: I've read the supplemental and I've read the State's response.

MR. CARLING: Okay. |did file a reply on this. And [ think the argurnent is
that counset's behavior or performance was an impedimsent, and so there is good
cause for the Court to entertain his — the merits of his petition even though it was
filed after the one year and that all is briefed in the reply, I'l submit,

MS. PANDUKHT: 1l submit it its time barred.

THE COURT: | agree with the State that the writ is time barred. The
Defendant has failed to establish an impediment external ta the defense in addition
to which | looked at the petition. The petition itseif was without merit. The basic
claim is that certain jurors should have been excused and there's just no merit for
that. So, I'm going to deny the writ and ask the State to prepare an appropriate
order.

MS. PANDUKHT: Yes, Your Honor.

i
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THE COURT: With findings.
MS. PANDUKHT: Yes.
MR. CARLING; Thank you.
[Proceedings concluded at 9:12 a.m.]

L B B A

ATTEST: |do heraby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audiofvideo recording in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

éw:{-'u.g @4 5'1::1-{4;...9
CYNTHIA GEORGILAS

Court Recorder/Transcriber
Eighth Judicial District Court Dept. Xl
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CLERK OF THE COURT

RSPN
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
JONATHAN E. VANBOSKERCK
Chief D%put}r District Attorney

ar

Nevada #006528
200 Lewis Avenue
Las V Nevada 89155-2212

02 671-2500

ttorney for Plaintifr

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

-¥s- CASENO: C-11-274370-1
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, :
#1589576 DEPTNO: v

Defendant.

STATE'S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OF
DENIAL OF HIS POST-CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPLUIS

DATE OF HEARING: OCTOBER 14, 2015
TIME OF BEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B, WOLFSON, Clark County
Disirict Attorney. through JONATHAN E. VANBOSKERCK, Chief Deputy District
Attorney, and hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s
Mation for Reconsideration of Denial of His Post-Conviction Petition for Wit of Habeas
Corpus.

T]ﬁsrﬁpunseismadeandbasadupun ailthepapersmdplaadingsunfiieherein,thc
attached points and authorities in support hereof. and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

N
i
i
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

TA TOFTHEC

On June 24, 2011, the State charged LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS (hereinafter
“Defendant™) by way of Information as follows: COUNT 1 — Attempt Murder With Use of a
Deadly Weapon (Felony —NRS 200,016, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165) and COUNT 2 — Battery
With Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm (Felony — NRS
200.480.2¢).

Defendant's jury trial commenced on August 30, 2011. On September 2, 2011, the jury
returned & verdict of guilty as to the charge of Battery with a Deadly Weapon Resulting in
Substantial Bodily Harm, and not guilty as to the charge of Atternpt Murder with Use of a
Deadly Weapon. On November 21, 201 1, Defendant was sentenced to a maximum of 175
months and 4 minimum of 70 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC), with
182 days credit for time served. The Judgment of Conviction was entered on December 2,
2011,

Defendant appeated his conviction on December 8,2011. On December 13, 2013, the
Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the conviction, finding there was sufficient evidence to
support the jury’s verdict. Remittitur issued on January 9, 2013.

On March 11, 2015, Defendant filed a Proper Person Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus and Motion for Appointment of Counse] and Request for Evidentiary
Hearing. The State filed its Response on May 8, 2015, and on May 20, 2015, this Court
confirmed the appointment of post-conviction counsel for Defendant for the limited purpose
of addressing the procedursl time bar issue, On July 27, 2015, Defendant, through his
appointed attorney, filed a Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. On August 12,
2015, the State filed its Response to Defendant’s Supplemental Petition, and on September 9,
2015, Defendant filed a Reply to the State’s Response, reiterating the same ¢laims raised in
his Supplemental Petition. On September 16, 2015, this Court denied Defendant’s Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus, finding it 10 be procedurally bared. On September 19, 2015,
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Defendant filed this instant Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of his Post-Convietion
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State responds as follows:
ARGUMENT

L DEFENDANT'S MOTION SHOULD NOT BE GRANTED AS IT 1S AN
ATTEMPT AT “JUDGE SHOPPING.™

District Court Rule 19 states: “[w]hen an application or petition for any writ or order
shall have been made to a district judge and is pending or has been denied by such judge, the
same application or motion shall not again be made to the same or another district judge, except
upon the-consent in writing of the judge to whom the appiication or motion was first made.”
See also Eighth Judicial District Court Rule 7.12 which states: “[wjhen an application or a
petition for any writ or order shall have been made to a Judge and is pending or has been denied
by such judge, the same application, petition or motion may not again be made to the same or
another district judge, except in accordance with any applicable statute and upon the cansent
in writing of the judge to whom the application, petition or motion was first made.”

These rules prevent “judge shopping” and preclude litigants from Bitempting to have
an unfavorable determination by one judge overruled by another. Moore . City of Las Vegng,
92 Nev. 402, 551 P.2d 244 (1976). In Moore, the Nevada Supreme Court held that if a second
moticn for rehearing raises no new issues of law, and makes no reference to new or additional
facts, it should not be granted. In that case, under such circumstances the motion was
superflitous and, in the court’s view, it was an abuse of discretion for the district court to
entertain it. Id. Only in very rare instances in which new issues of fact or law are raised
supporting a ruling contrary to the ruling already reached should a motion for rehearing be
granted. Id. at 4035, 551 P.2d at 244,

Moreover, the Nevada Supreme Court has repeatedly noted that the law does not favor
muitiple applications for the same refief Whitehead v. Nevada Com'n. on Judigial Discipline,
110 Nev. 380, 388, 873 P.2d 946, 951-52 {1994) ("ithas been the law of Nevada for 125 vears
that a party will not be allowed to file successive petitions for rehearing ... The obvious reason
for this rule is that successive motions for rehearing tend to unduly prolong litigation™);

3 0008
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1 ) Groesbeck v, Warden, 100 Nev, 259, 260, 679 P.24 1268, 1269 (1984), superseded by statute
2 | asrecognized by, Hartv. State, 116 Nev. 558, 1 P.3d 969 (2000) (“petitions that are filed many
3 [ years efter conviction are an unreasonable burden on the criminal justice system. The
4 || necessity for a workable system dictates that there must exist atime when a criminal conviction
5 { is final.”). The less than favorable view of successive applications for the same reljef explains
6 § why there is no right to appeal the denial of a motion for reconsideration. See, Phelps v. State,
7 [ 111 Nev. 1021, 1022, 90¢ P24 344, 346 (1995). 1t also justifies why & motion for
§ || reconsideration does nof toll the time for filing a notice of appeal. See Inre Dupng, 118 Nev.
9 | 920,923, 59 P.3d 1210, 1212 (2002),
10 Like in Moore, Defendant is aitempting to “judge shop,” as it was a Senior Judge who
11 || denied his Petition. Defendant’s motion was already denied, and his instant Motion for
12 || Reconsideration raises no new references to additional facts that have not already been
13 | addressed by this Court. This is another attempt by Defendam to raise yet another motion
14 } arguing the same claims. Because Defendant fails 1o raise new facts, Defendant’s Motion
15 || should not be granted,

16 | . DEFENDANT HAS NOT DEMONSTRATED THAT THE COURT
7 MISAPPREHENDED ANY ISSUE OF FACT OR LAW,

18 Te the extent thet Defendent now alleges that this Court misapprehended an issue of
19 || fact or law with respect 1o his Petition, this claim is withowt metit. Defendant has not alleged
.20 || any new grounds for reconsideration but has merely re-raised the same baseless arguments
21 | that he presented to this Court in his Supplemental Petition and Reply. As Defendant has
22 | failed to demonstrate how this Court misapprehended an issue of law or fact, there is no basis
23 || for reconsideration of this Court’s prior ruling, and Defendant’s Motion must be denied.

24 In this Motion for Reconsideration, Defendant is reiterating prior arguments from his
25 | Supplemental Petition and Reply, In those Petitions, he raised the issue of trial counsel's
26 | alleged mishandling of his post-conviction petition. Supplemental Petition, p. 16-17; Reply,
27 | p. 5-6. Defendant once again in this Motion claims that his post-conviction attorney’s mistake
28 | amounted to “an impediment external 1o the defense,” which prevented him from complying

4 000?91
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with procedural default rules. Motion for Reconsideration, 5. The State incorporates by
reference the arguments made in its Response to Defendant’s Supplemental Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus, 4-6. Both in his Supplemental Petition, Reply, and in this instant Motion,
Defendant fails to show the good cause required to overcome the procedural time bar.
[ll. DEFENDANT IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING,

To the extent Defendant requests an evidentiary hearing, the request should be denied.
A defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported b:é specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record, Marshall v. State, 110 Nev. 1328, 133 1,885 P.2d 603, 605 (1994). “The judge
or justice, upon review of the retum, answer and all supporting documents which are filed,
shall determine whether an evidentiary hearing is required,” NRS 34.770(1). However, “[a]
defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing on factual
atlegations belied or repelled by the record.” Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 503, 686 P.2d
222, 225 (19849).

In the instant case, Defendant has not presented allegations which, if true, would entifle
him to relief. Defendant’s Petition is plainly subject to the time bar imposed by NRS 34,726,
Further, Defendant has whoily failed to demonstrate good cause to gvercome that time bar, as

his only grounds for good cause have repeatedly been found insufficient: by the Nevada

ﬂ Supreme Count, Moreover, Defendant’s substantive claims fail, and Defendant has therefore
“ failed to demonstrate that he is entitled to relief Accordingly, no evidentiary hearing is
necessary,
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Based on the aforementioned, the State respectfully requests that Defendant’s Motion
for Recansideration of Denial of Hiz Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus be

DENIED.

I certify that on the 2nd day of QOctober, 2015, 1 e-mailed a copy of the foregoing State’s
Response to Defendant’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of His Post-Conviction

CONCLUSION

DATED this 2nd day of October, 2015,

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY

Chief Deputy District Attorn
Nevada aﬁmaszs i

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, to:

il
KENJEVAj/IGANG

MATTHEW D. CARLING, Esq.
cedarlegal@gmail.com

BY

K. JOHNSON
Secretary for the District Attomey’s Office
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co ON
Based on the aforementioned, the State respectfully requests that Defendant’s Motion
for Reconsideration of Denial of His Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Caorpus be
DENIED,
DATED this 2nd day of October, 2015.
Respectfully submitted,
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #(813585

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
T certify that on the 2nd day of October, 2015, I e-mailed a copy of the foregoing State’s
Response to Defendant’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of His Post-Conviction
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, to:

MATTHEW D. CARLING, Esq.
cedarlegal@email com

KEAEV/i/GANG
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MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ,

Las Vegas, NV 89101

TLamar A, Harris

Electronicaly Filed
1611212015 07:34:19 AM

RPLY v, i-H“;"'—

CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevads Bar Mo, 007302

1100 5. Tenth Street

(702} 419-7330 (Office)

{702) 446-8065 (Fax)
Seciaregal@omail

Conri~Appeinted Atiomey for Defendant,

DISTRICT COURT
CLAREK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No.:  {-11-274370-1
Flainnft, Dept. Mo ¥

EVIDENTIARY HEARING REQUPSTED

DATE OF HEARING: October 14, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the Defendant, LAMAR A HARRIS, by and through his artorney of
tecord, MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ., of the Carling Law Office, PC, and subimuirs his Reply 1o
the Sute’s Response to the Defendant’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of his Petition for
Wit of Habeas Corpus (Post-Convictuun).

FIgif
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This Reply is made and based on the pleadings and papers on file herein, the attached
Affidavit of Matthew T Carling, Esq., in suppott thereof, and any oral arguments as may be
presented at the hearing in this marter.

DATED this 12" day of October, 2015,

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

Lel Matrbew D, Cagling
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Conrt-Appointed Antorney for Defendant

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L

ABRGUMENT
A THE DEFENDANT IS NOT “TUDGE SHOPFING.®,

The Defendant takes issue with the State’s aliegation of “judge shopping.” To the contrary,
the Defendant did nothing of the sort and metcly showed up 1o Court og the preseribed day vo find
that 2 Senior Judge was sining in for the regular judge. It was apparent to counsel from the lack of
discussion by the visiting judge that he perhaps didn’t even read the Defendanr’s Reply to the State’s
Response to his Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus, The visiting judge failed to even arficulate any
IEasonng pertaining to the Defendant’s aspument that *an impediment external to the defense
prevented him ... from complying with the state procedural default rules”, See Reply, p. 8,
lines 1-1. The visiting judge’s comments focused solely on the dme issue.

The Smte cites Districe Court Rule 19 and EJDCR 7.12 in support of ixs argument of
‘fudge shopping.™ However, it appears that the Peddon for Writ of Habeas Corpus was
initially made to the Honorable Carolyn Ellsworth, not Senior Judge Chatles Thompson,

This Court does not need written permission from a visiting judge to hear argument for a

Page 2 of 4
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Petition that was original before the very same Deparunent.  Here, the Defendant is
rearuculating a very important issue regarding factual disputes that was nor addressed that
should be addressed on the record before a decision is made.

B, THE COURT SHOULD HAVE CONDUCTED AN
EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

The Petivon and Reply introduced issues that were ot belied by the record, vet remained
outside the record. In Mamn o Stase, 118 New. 351, 46 P.3d 1228 (2002), the Nevada Supteme
Court held that factual disputes sach as those presented here should be addressed in an evidentiary
hearing before the Distder Court can make a determinadon. As presented in the Reply and the
instant Moton for Reconsideration, there are many significant factual issues that should have been
addressed in an evidentiary hearing poor to this Court’s decision.  Again, this Court even
acknowledged that an cvidentary hearing may be warranted o investigate the facmial disputes
articulated in the Defendants Pedtion for Writ of Habeas Corpus.  The wisiting judge
misapprehended the facrual disputes presented that went to the heart of the dmeliness argument.
As such, this Court should reconsider the quick demal of the Defendant’s Petidion and schedule
this magter for 2n evidennary hearing,

IV,
PRAXER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Defendant prays that this Court reconsider his Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus and grant an evidentiary hearing so that the record may be supplemented.

DATED this 12" day of October, 2015.

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

L5l Mattbew D, Carling
MATTHEW . CARLING, E5Q.
Court-Appoinied . Astorney for Defendant

Page 3af4
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

T herchy certify thay, on this 12* day of Qctober, 2015, I sent 2 muc and correct copy of the
above REPLY TO STATES RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR
RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

(POST-CONVICTION) 10 the following parties:

Steven B. Wolfson, Esq.
Clark Counry Diserict Attorney

Lamar A, Harmis (B#71088)

SDCC

P.O3. Box 208

Indian Springs, MNevada 89070-0208

CARLING LAW OFFICE, PC

Lif Mazthew D, {griing
MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ.
Court-Appoinied Attorngy for Defendant
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark Cﬂun%ﬂlsmm Attorney Electronically Filed

Nevada Bar #001365 i 44
DANIELLE PIEPER 11/05/2015 07:30:45 AM
Chief District Attomey

Nevada Bar #008610
200 I..r:ms Avenue Q%“ iM‘M_
Las Ve Nevad& 89155-2212 CLERK OF THE COURT

EGZ)
ttorney fur lentlﬁ'
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
V8~ CASENO: C-11-274370-1

LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, .
#1589575 DEPTHR:: N

Defendant.

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION OF INMATE
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, BAC #71088

DATE OF HEARING; DECEMBER 8, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A M,

TO: BRIAN E, WILLIAMS, Warden of the Southern Desert Corrections] Center;

TO:  JOE LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevads
Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by STEVEN B.

WOLFSON, Clark County District Attorney, through DANIELLE PIEPER, Chief Deputy
District Attorney, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT [3 HEREBY ORDERED that BRIAN E. WILLIAMS, Warden of the Southern
Desert Correctional Center shall be, and is, hereby directed to produce LAMAR ANTWAN
HARRIS, in Case Number C-11-274370-1, wherein THE STATE OF NEVADA is the
Plaintiff, inasmuch as the said LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS is currently incarcerated in the
Southern Desert Correctional Center located in Indian Springs, Nevada and his presence will
be required in Las Vegas, Nevada commencing on DECEMBER 8, 2015, at the hour of 8:30

W01 IPOTRERT L FOT7E5-OPI{HARRIS  LAMARMI DOCK
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o'clock AM. and continuing unti] completion of the-prosecution's case—against the said

Defendant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that JOE LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County,
Nevada, shall accept and retain custody of the said LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS in the Clark
County Detention Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, pending completion of said matter in Clark
County, or ustil the further Order of this Court; or in the aliernative shall make al!
arrangements for the transportation of the said LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS to and from the
Nevada State Prison facility which are necessary 10 insure the LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS's
appearance in Clark County pending completion of said matter, or until further Order of this
Court.

DATED this_ 2«d_ day ofoﬁ’;ﬁ 2015,

O

TAUDGE
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #04 ”I
2 ; E

Zeioislete

WA0IPOTTESR IFOTTRS-OPHHARRIS  LAMARMGT DOCX
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1. The writ is property used here.

The writ is properly used in this case 1o challenge a conviction on constitutional
grounds, The extraordinary remedy of habeas corpus is appropriate to test the legality of
2 conviction which is challenged on constitutional grounds. Shum v, Fogfiani, 82 Nev,
156, 413 P.2d 495 [1966), overruled on other grounds Rahn v. warden, nev. State prisan,
88 Nev. 429, 498 P 2d 1344 (1972).

Defendant Lamar Harris' Appeal was a proper chalienge of the validity of his
conviction before the District Court, therefore, the instant wri is appropriate and
necessary. Even if that were not the case, the writ can and should be heard before the
Nevada Supreme Court. Lyons v. Sate, 105 Nev. 317, 775 P.2d 219 {1989 (despite
defendant’s failure w challenge the validity of his guilty plea betore the district court, he
was permitted to appeal from his judgement of conviction because the court was no less
able to consider the vaiidily of the underpinnings of the plea that the distric1 court and
because no basis for further prosccution under the oniginal charges existed).

2. Defendant Harris had a right 1o effective assistance of trial counsel

A defendant has a right to effective assistance of 1nal counsel under Strickland v
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686-87, B0 L. Ed. 674, 104 §. Ct. 2052 (1984); see also Kirksey v,
Srate, 112 Nev, 980, 987, 223 P, 24 1102, 1107 {1496).

A claim the hat counse] provided constitutionally inadequate representation is subject to
Lhe two-part test established by the Supreme Court in Sirickiand v. Washington, 466 1.5, 668,
104 S, Ct. 2052, 80 L Ed. 2d 674 {1984). To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial
or appellate counsel. a defendant musi deﬁmnslrate {1) that counsel’s performance was deficien

and (2) that counsel's deficient performance prejudiced the defense. i, AL 687

000800
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Habeas corpus petitioner must prove the disputed factual allegations underlying an
ineffactive.asgisiunce clsim by a preponderance af the evidence; to the extent thut this conilicts
with the “strong and convincing” language of Daviz v, State, 107 Nev, 600, 817 P, 2d 11489
(1991} and its predecessors, they are expressty overruled. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 103
P.3d 23 (2004).

To establish prejudice resulting from trial counsel’s inaction or omission " The defendani
carries the affirmative burden of establishing prejudice.™ Rifey v, Stare. 110 Nev, 638, 640, 87§

P.2d 272, 278 (1994).
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A. Trial counsel erred when he did pot move to excuse the juror who had known 3

wilness
The standard of review when choosing a jury is that it is a fair and impartial jury,
United States Constitution, Sixth amendment section 2.3. It was made clear that jurar
602, Clint Small, knew witness fur the State, Stacey Monroe. The juror had went 10
high school with the witness and spoke of him with adoration. “He was a year ahcad
of me.” * He was a pretty prominent football stac at Western High School™ (T 7, 19-
21) Defense counsel failed 1o even question the juror on the subjeet, nor did detense
counsel move 10 excuse the juror for cause. Juror 802 clearly saw this witness as a
credible person based on prior dealings with the witness. not based on his testimany.
'The jurer indicated his positive attitude toward this witness prior to any testimony
given by witness Stacey Monroe,

This was a direct violation of Lamar Harris® Sixth Amendment right to have a fair

and impariial jury. Prior counse! was ineffective for not moving to excuse for cause.
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antitled in this proceeding including but not limited to the foliowing:

EXECUTED auMﬂa@}u the_{_ day of the month of_T{1: vt of the year 227 | 2

WHEREFORE, The petitioner prays that the Court grant relief to which he may be

(1) issue a wril of habeas corpus to have him brough before it 10 the end that he may be
discharged from unconstitutional restmaint;

(2) Grant him an evidentiary hearing at which he may present evidence in suppon of
these claims, and allow him 4 reasonable period of time subsequeny to any hearing
this Court determines to conduct, in which to brief the issues of facl and law raised by
this petition or such hearing,

(3} Grant such other relief as law and justice require.

Attorney for Pelilioner: 7‘4 /ri.

LESLIE A. PARK
Mevada Bar Mo, 8870
630 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Phone: {FO2Y382-1847
Fax: (702)382-28328
Atiorney for Petitioner
Lamar Harris

000802
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CONCLUSION

The foregoing shows that trial counsel provided constitutionally inadequate

representation in the instamt case.

Therefore, Defendant LAMAR HARRIS respectiully asks this Court for relief.

DATED this é?__day of June, 2013,

s S

TESLIE PARK, £SO,

Mevadz Bar Mo, 8870
630 South Seventh Strest
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Phone: (702) 382-3847
Fax: (702) 382-2828
Les_lawbleehoimail com

Attorney for Defendant-Petitioner

LAMAR HARRIS

QUDF“’!B
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I, the undersigned, an employee of LESLIE PARK, ESQ, and not a party to the above
entitled action, certify that on June @ 2013, | have mailed the foregoing POST.-
CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS, by Placing fully prepaid first
class postage and depositing said document with the U S. Post Office. toa DEFENDANT

LAMAR HARRIS and:

CLERK OF THE NEVADA SUPREME €OURT
201 S. Carson # 300
Carson City, Nevada 89710

STEVE WOLFSON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Mevada 89155

ATTORNEY GENERAL QF NEVADA

Capital Complex
Carson City, Nevada 89710
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CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. C-11-274370-1
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DEFARTMENT §

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. C-11-274370-]

Filed By. Deiendant Havis, Lamar Aniwen
Deferdant’s Dppagition to Stale’s Mottan i Admit Prior Testimany

E] Ex Pariz
Filed By: PlaintilT State of Nevada
£x Parte Application For Grder Requiving Marérial Winess to Post Bail
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Filed By: PloaintilT State of Nevada
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Filed by: PlainiiT Siae of Mevada
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E] Muodlon (%:00 AM) {fudicial Officer: Bonaventure, Josaph)
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EJ Beoch Warrant Rewsm
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E} Cerdier

Eder Reguiring Marerial Witness to Post Baif or e Committed ra Chustady
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DEFARTMENT 5

CASE SUMMARY
CASE No. C-11-274370-1

B verdicr

Ples [udicial OMcer: Ellswonth. Carolyn}
|, ATE, MURDER WITH A DEAILY WEAPON
Mol Guilry
I BATTERY WDW WSUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM
Mot Guilty

Bench Warrant Return (500 AM) {Judicial Offcer: Bonoveniure, Juseph 7.3
Evemis; 08729201 | Bench Warrant Relum

E} Sentemcing (900 AM} {Judicial OHTicer: Ellsworth, Canshyn)
AT E L2011

Disposition (Judicial OfMcer: Ellswarth, Carclyn}
1. ATT. MUIRDER WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
Mot Cuilty
2. BATIERY WDW W/SURSTANTIAL BODILY HARM
Ciuilty

Sentenace (Judicial Ofhicer: ENgsworth, Carclyn}
2 BATTERY WDRW W/SURSTANTIAL BODILY HARM
Adult Adjudicalion
Senmenced 10 Mevada Dept. of Comrections
Torm: Mimmum:7¢ Months, Moximum: 175 Monmths
Credit for Timw Served: 182 Days
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E Judgment of Conviclion

Q Matice of Appes! {criminal)
Fary. Defendant Harris. Lemar Antwan
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Filed by: Defendant Harmiz. Lamar Antwan

EJ AlNdavit
Afidavit OF Fingorind Condiiion

E Ex Panc Molion
Filed By: Defendam Harris Lamer Anlwan
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E Reoques:

Filed by: Defendont |farris. Lamur Antwan
Request for Rough Draff Transcript

E] Ex Pare Order
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CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. C-11-274370-1
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Farty: Plointilf Siate of Wevada

Trarscript of Procesdings Jurv Trial - Day 4 - September 2. 2011
07252012 | B Crimine) Order to Stauisticatly Close Case

Filed By: PlaintifT Siate of Nevada
L3203 Bl Supreme: Count Clerics Certilcatsf Judgment - AlTrmed

Nevada Supreme Court Clerk’s Cartificate Judgment - dffirmed

Nare FLvasoiar ENFEEAIATHN

Defendant Flarris, Lamar Anpwan
Tow! Charges

Tmal Payments and Credits
Balance Dize as of 1762015

PAGESOF 5

153.00
185,00
LA

00810

Privigd on OIAGNN 5 gt §:00 A3




0811




Nevada Supreme Court Docket Sheet

Dockel: 58817 HARRIS [LAMAR) V5. STATE Page 1
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, Suprems Courd No. 59897
Appelan,

PR Conslidated with:

vE,
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respanden.

Counzel

Leshe A FPark, Las Yeges, NV, as counsal for Appellant, Larmar Anbwan Herns

Ablomay GansralCarson City, Carson City, NV \ Catharne Cortez Masle, gs counsal for Respendent, The State of
MNevada

Clark Courty Cistriot Atlormay, Las Vegas, NV 1 Sieven 5. Owens, as counsel for Responcent, The State of
Mavada

Casa infomnation

Panal: NNP12 Fanel Mambars: 3aittarPckenng/Hardealy

Cagqualifications:
Cage Status: Remititur 1ssuedfCese Closed

Category:  Criminal Appeal Type: Fasl Track Subiype: Direct
Submitied: Dats Submittad:

Oral Argument

Sett Notice lssued: Set Judge: Sefl Statws:

Rakled Buprams Court Cases:

T —— e e ———
District Courl Caze Informailion

ConsNumbsr:  G274370
Gose Title: STATE VS. LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS

Judicial Digirket:  Ewghth Diseinbg; County: Clak Co.

Sltting Judge:  Camlyn Ellaworth

Replecad By:

Motice of Appeal Filed! 1210817 Appesf Judgment Appasied From Filed: 1240211

_ Docket Entriss _

Date ocket Enri I B j

121131 Appeal Fimg fee watved. Criminal,

1211311 Filed Notice of AppaalfFast Track, Fileg certfied copy of notice of appeal. {Fast Track 11-28112
Motice imaued to counsel for appeliant.}

123N 1ssued Nedbce to Request Rough Draft Transcoripts, Dus date: 10 days. 11-38114

12/28/11  Filed Subsglution of Attomeys [Lafsle Park substituled a5 atomeay of recond for appedtart 1140077
Lamar Hamis in the place and =tead of Bret Whippie).

12T Filed Motlon 1o Extend Time for Filing Bequest for Tranescnpts, Fast Track and Appandix. 11-40078

01A¥¥12  Filed Order Sranting Moban in Part, Appellant. Request Ior Reugh Drall Trenseipt dus: 10 12658

days, Fast Track Statemant and Appendix due: 50 days.

Wednesday, December 31, 2014 11:26 AM
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Nevada Supreme Court Docket Sheet

Docket: 58817 HARRIS (LAMAR) VS. STATE Page 2

01/24/12  Fied Request for Rough Craft Transcrptis]. Transcripts requeated: 9431714 and 502011, 12-02a22
Court Reporter: Lara Corcoran, Flled In district court on' 1719092,

0307412  Filed Order, Appeliant: Fasi Track Statament and Appendix dua:. 10 days, 1207433

0311312 Filee Motion to Exzand Time for Filing Fast Track and Appendix, 12-08075

031317  Filsd Order Granting Moborn In Pan. Appellent; Fast Track Slatement and Appendix duw: 12-0RS54
30 days.

031912 Filed Ordar Re: Transcripts. Courd Recorter Lare Corcoran: Certificate of Dalivery doe: 14 1208557
gays. Fri[A copy of tha ranscript request foem is aftachad. |

032812  Filed Afdavit & Motion for Extension (Court Reporier Lara Corcoranh 1205871

0329712 Filed Ordar Graniing Motian. Ms Corcoran; 20 days to file the requested ranscripts in the 12-10006

district Gowart, debvar the Iranscriots 1 couned, gnd file g cenificate acknowledging the date
of dellbvery Fast rack stetemenl ang appendix dus. 40 days.

0420012 Flled Mothos from Court Reporter, L Coesoran statkig thed the requested transeripls wene 12-12TE?
debvered, Dates of ranscripts: Auquet 30, 2011 thru Septermnber I 2011,
CE816M12  Filed Order Fasttrack statemenl and appendie due: 10 days. 12-15837
CEMGM2  Feed Order Appellant: Fast Track Stalerment and Appendix due: 10 days. 12-19182
070312  Fied Appandix o Fast Track Staternent Vols 1 thru 3 - CO-ROM inchuded. 1220864
07312 {ssued Notice of Daficient Brie! - Margine need to ba 17 on all four sides, Comected briaf 12-20857
dure; 10 days
o712 |ssued Nobee of Deficien] Cartificate of Compliance, Due date; 5 days. 12-20854
OFMar2  Filed Fast Track Stalement 12-22748
0718112 |saued Second Motice of Deficien Canificata of Compliance. Due date: 5 daya. 12-2274B
07252 Filed Amended Carificats of Compliance for Faat Track Elatement. 12-23513
DROFAZ  Fiked Motlon 1o Extand Tims to File Fast Track Response - First Request. 12-24B21
Ce0¥12  Fileg Order Granting Metion. Appedlant shall heve 10 days trom the date of this ander o 12-25307
sarve respondent with 8 copy of the appendl. Respondant. Fasl Track Responss due 30
days. ;
D%1/12  Filed Fast Track Responsa; 1228474
o012 Filed Respondanty Appendkbs, 1228475
%012 Fast Track Briefing Completed. Mo Reply Brief Fllad,
1249312 Filed Cider of AMfirmance. "ORDER the judgment of comviction AFFIRMED." 12-35301
MNP 12-NSKPIH
01/08/13 issued Rernittitr, 13-00888
01083 Remititur Issusd/Case Clozed.
0122113 Filed Remifiitur. Received by District Court Clerk on January 15. 2013, 13-00368

Wednesday Decamiesr 31, 2014 11:28 AM
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA I #4R 19 P 305

Larnar Harris, e e

(o o s
Peiitioner, CLEEX OF THE COURT
Cape Ng: C=11-274370-1

Vs, BeptNo: 5

STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent, ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

et

J
Petitigner filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus (Post-Coaviction Relief) on
Mareh 11,2015, The Court has reviewed the petition and has determined that a response would assist
the Court in determining whether Petitioner is itlegally imprisened and restrained of hisfher liberty, and
good cause appearing therefore,
iT IS HEREBY ORDEREL that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,
answer or otherwise respond to the petition and file a retermn in accordance with the provisions of NRS
34.360 to 34 830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER GRDERET that this matier shall be placed on this Court’s

T
Calendar on the l 3 :‘a}' of M &\H 201 _5_, at the hour of

EI o'clock for further proceedings,

F%«A/M
District Codrt Judge sh

£ -1 =-ET43I0 =1 1
ol ] L
Order lor Patilon kor Wit of Habee Copo

T

CLERK OF THE COuIR7

n08ts
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Electronically Filed
0371942015 03:24:15 PM

DISTRICT COURT i - s

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT
k h A A
STATE OF NEVADA CASE NO: C-11-274370-1
Vs
LAMAR HARRIS DEPARTMENT 5

NOTICE OF HEARING
Please be advised that the above-entitled matier has been scheduled for Motion Ex

Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel and Request for Evidentiary Hearing, to be
heard by the Honorable Carolvn Ellsworth, at the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis
Ave, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101, on the 13th day of May, 20135. at the hour of 9:00 AM.
in Department 3.

YOUR PRESENCE IS NECESSARY,

STEVEN D. GRIERS(ON. CEQiClerk of the Court

By: s’ Diana Malson
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that tus: 19h day of March, 2013
I matled. via firsiclass, postage fully prepaid, the foregoing Clerk of the Court, Notice of Hearing

Lo

Latmar Hams #71088
P O Box 208 530
Indian Springs, NV §3070

B 1placed a copy of the foregoing Notice of Heanng m the eppropriate sttomey folder laceted in the
Clerk of the Cowrt's Offige:

Steven B Wallson
Laslie A Park

‘si Diana Matson
[Dhana Matson, Deputy Clerk of the Court
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" Electronically Filed
04/14/20115 08:25:19 AM

" ORDR C&. #M

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attomey R RE GRS
Nevada Bar #001565
" PAMET. A WECKERLY
Chief D%Jllt}-' District Attorney
Nevada Bar #006163
200 Lewis Avenue
LasVe , NV £9155-2212 .
(702} E -2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
S CASE NO: C-11-274370-1
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS, DEPT NO: v
#1585576

|| ' Defendant.
ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT'S PRO PER MOTION
TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT’S PRO PER MOTION
TO PRODUCE FILE

Il DATE OF HEARING: FEBRUARY 23, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 6:00 A.M.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitted Court on the
23rd day of February, 2015, the Defendant not being present, IN PROPER PERSON, the
Plaintiff being represented by STEVEN B, WOLFSON, District Atiomey, through PAMELA
WECKERLY, Chief Deputy Districs Attoméy, without argument, based on the pleadings and
good cause appearing therefor,
|| IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's Pro Per Motion to Withdraw Counsel,
shall be, and it is GRANTED,

i

W2 [POTTEN FOTTAS-DRDR-(HARRIZ  LAMARI0G1.DOCX

nops1?
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As to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion To Produce File, Court FINDS no showing
Defendant has requested or demanded his file so the motion is premature and ORDERED,
DENIED WITHOUT PREJUDICE.

DATED this __ 2% day of April, 2015, .

R

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #081565
ARREL
B m‘f‘f‘*f‘( (17 e J 200 <

1 Dtstrmt Atbmey
a Prdr #006163

ne8*8
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CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE .
I certify that on the 14th day of April, 2015, I mailed a copy of the foregoing Order

LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS #71088
SOUTHERN DESERT CORRECTIONAIL CENTER
P.O, BOX 208

INDIAN SPRINGS, NEVADA. 89070

o Do

K. JO ON
Sec for the District Attomey’s Office

11FO7785X4r for rj/M-1
16089

WIIH EROTTER L FOTYAS-ORDR-(HARRIS  LAMARIO01 . DOCY
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Electronically Filed
05/68/2015 08:05.08 AM

RSPN A &m_
STEVEN B. WOLFSON Q.

Clark County District Attormey CLERK OF THE CORIRT
Nevada Bar #001565

JONATHAN VANBOSKERCK

Chief D%mty District Attorney

Nevada Bar #006528

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2300

Attorney for Plaintiff

o BT LB on
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Pleintiff,
-¥5- CASENO: C-11-274370-1
#g%g%ﬂﬂﬂ%hﬂﬁmn& DEPTNO: V
Defendani.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)} AND MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL
AND REQUEST FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING

DATE OF HEARING: MAY 13, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: $:00 A M.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B, WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through JONATHAN VANBOSKERCK, Chief Deputy District Attorney,
and hereby submits the attached Points and Autherities in Response to Defendant’s Petition
for Wit of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) And Motion for Appointment of Counsel And
Request For Evidentiary Hearing.

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deerned necessary by this Honorable Court.

i
i
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On June 24, 2011, the Btate charged Lamar Harris (hereinafter “Defendant™) by way of
Information as follows: CQUNT | - Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Felony
~NRS 200,010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165), and COUNT 2 - Battery With Use of a Deadly
Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm (Felony — NRS 200.480.2¢).
Defendant’s jury trial commenced on August 30, 2011. On September 2, 2011, the jury
returned a verdict of guilty as to the charge of Battery With a Deadly Weapon Resuiting in

Substantial Bodity Harm, and not guilty as to the charge of Attempt Murder With Use of a
Deadly Weapon. On November 21, 2011, Defendant was sentenced to a2 maximum of 175
months and a minimum of 70 menths in the Nevada Department of Corrections, with 128 days
credit for time served, The Judgment of Conviction was entered on December 2, 2011,

Defendant appealed his conviction on December 8, 2011, On December 13, 2013, the
Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the conviction, finding there was sufficient evidence to
support the jury’s verdict. Remittitur issued on January 9, 2013.

On March 11, 2015, Defendant filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction) (hereinafter “Petition™) and Motion for Appointment of Counsel and
Request for Evidentiary Hearing. The State hereby responds as follows,

ARGUMENT

L DEFENDANT’S PETITION IS TIME BARRED AND SHOULD BE
DISMISSED

As Defendant freely concedes, his Petition is procedurally defaulted as it was fited in
excess of the one year time period allowed for post-conviction habeas corpus petitions. NRS
34.726 provides:

(1)  Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that
chalienges the validity of a judgment or sentence must be filed
within | year of the entry of the judgment of conviction or, if an
appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the

reme Court issues its remiititur. For the dp oses of this
subsection, good cause for delay exists i uge petitioner
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the court:

2 000821
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?a% That the delay is not the fauit of the petitioner; and
b)  That dismissal of the petition as untimely will unduly
prejudice the petitioner.

(Emphesis added). “[TJhe statutory rules regarding procedural default are mandatory and
cannot be ignored when properly raised by the State.” State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 121
Nev. 225, 233, 112 P.3d 1070, 1075 (2005). The one-year time bar begins to run from the date
the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from 2 timely direct appeal issues. Dickerson
v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998); see Pellegrini v. State, 117
Nev, 860, 873, 34 P.3¢ 519, 528 (2001) (holding that NRS 34.726 should be construed by its

plain meaning),
In Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 593, 590 P.3d 901, 902 {2002}, the Nevada
Supreme Court rejected a habeas petition that was filed two (2) days late, pursuant to the “clear

and unambiguous” mandatory provisions of NRS 34.726(1). Gonzales reiterated the
importance of filing a petition within the one-year mandate, absent a showing of “good cause”

for the delay in filing. Gonzales, 118 Nev. at $93, 590 P.3d at 902, The cne-year time bar is

therefore srictly construed. In contrast with the short amount of time to file a notice of appeal,
a prisoner has a full year to file a post-conviction habeas petition, so there is no injustice in a
strict application of NRS 34.726(1), despite any alleged difficulties with the postal system.
Gonzales, 118 Nav, at 595, 53 P.3d at 903.

Here, Defendant filed an appeal from his Judgment of Conviction, and remittitur issued
on January 9, 2013, Therefore, Defendant had until January 9, 2014 to file his Petition.
Accordingly, the instant Petition was filed over one year late. Absent a showing of good cause,
Defendant’s Petition must be dismissed as time-barred pursuant to NRS 34.726(1).

A. Defendant Has Failed to Establisk Good Caase to Overcome the Time Bar.

Defendant has not demonstrated good cause to overcome the mandatory time bar
imposed by NRS 34.726. To show good cause, a petitioner must demonstrate the following:
(1} “[t]hat the delay is not the fault of the petitioner” and (2) that the petitioner will be “unduly
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prejudice{d]” if the petition is dismissed as untimely. Under the first requirement, “a petitioner

must show that an impediment external to the defense prevented him or her from complying

" with the state procedural default rules.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503,

506 (2003) (citing Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev, 860, 886-87, 34 P.3d 519, 537 (2001): Lozada
y. State, 110 Nev, 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994); Passanisi v, Director, Dep't Prisons,
105 Nev, 63, 66, 769 P.2d 72, 74 (1989). “An impediment external to the defense may be

“ demonstrated by a showing “that the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably

gvailable 1o counsel, or that some interference by officials, made compliance impracticable,””

1d. (quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 488, 106 S.Ct. 2639 (1986) (citations and

quotations omitted)}. Clearly, any delay in filing must not be the fault of the petitioner, NRS
34.726(1 Xa).

As Defendant comrectly notes, the quality of his post-conviction counsel’s

|| representation cannol serve as good cause to excuse procedural default. The Nevada Supreme

Court has made clear that the ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel in a noncapital
case may not constitule "good cause" to excuse procedural bars, because “there is no

constitutional or statutory right to the assistance of counsel in noncapital post-conviction

proceedings, and *[w]here there is no right to counsel there can be no deprivation of effective
assistance of counsel.”™ Brown v. McDanjel, 130 Nev. _, _ , 331 P.3d 867, 870 (2014)
(citing McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 163-165, 912 P.2d 255, 258 (1996). Here, as

Defendant correctly asserts, he did not bave a statutory right to post-conviction counsel.
Accordingly, he had no right to cffective post-conviction counsel. However, Defendant alleges
that good cause exists in that counsel’s conduct caused Defendant to be “denied his statutory
right to habeas corpus pursuani to NRS 34.726.” Ses Petition, p. 12. While Defendant may
have the option to pursue habeas corpus relief, that does not change the fact that he must do

50 within one year absent a showing of good cause, and that the actions of post-conviction
counsel simply cannot form the basis for such a showing. Though Defendant has artfully
attempted to avoid this rule, it is plain that he secks to demonstrate good cause by citing the

performance and actions of post-conviction counsel, which under Brown, is insufficient.
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Furthermore, defense counsels actions cannot be considered an impediment external to the
defense, and therefore do not constitute good cause,

Moreover, the instant Petition was filed on March 11, 2015, over one year after the
statutory period for filing had run on Jantuary 9, 2014. Defendant indicates that he was plainly
capable of apprising himself of the status of his case in the interim, as he did in January of
2015 when he wrote a letter to the Clerk of this Court inquiring as to whether a petition had in
fact been filed on his behalf. Defendant indicates communication with his post-conviction
counsel ceased in Fanuary of 2014, which would have been the time the one year filing period
concluded. Yet, Defendant waited a fully ear to inquire about the status of a post-conviction
petition for writ of habeas corpus, and more than a foll year to file the instant Petition.
Accordingly, defendant has failed to demonstrate good cause pursuant to NRS. 34.726, and
his Petition is therefore procedurally barred.

B. Defendant Has Failed to Demonstrate Prejudice.

Because none of Defendant’s claims were likely to succeed even in the event his post-
conviction petition had been timely filed, Defendant has alse failed to demonstrate that he will
suffer preiudice should this Court dismiss the instant Petition.

Once a petitioner has established cause, he must show actual prejudice resulting from
the errors of which he complains, i.e., “a petitioner must show that errors in the proceedings
underlying the judgment worked to the petitioner’s actual snd substantial disadvaniage.” State
v. Huebler, 128 Nev. __, 275 P.3d 91, 94-95 (2012) (citing Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev.
952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993)),

Defendant raises two allegations of ineffective assistance of tria} and appellate counsel,

both of which are meritless. Claims of ineffective assistance of counsel are analyzed under the

two-pronged {est articulated in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S, 668, 104 (1984), wherein

the defendant must show: (1) that counsel’s performance was deficient, and {2) that the
deficient performance prejudiced the defense. Id. at 687, 2064. Nevada adopted this standard
in Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 683 P.2d 504 (1984). “A court may counsider the two test

¢lements in any arder and need not consider both prongs if the defendant makes an insufficient

; 000874

WOSD | PETTERE LPOTT R DA (HARREDS 1 ABAR N1 DO




b - = T B =t s I

2 o o R O o L e o T A o T SR T
mﬁmm-hwmv—':mmqmm-hmm'—-a

showing on either one.” Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 987, 923 P.2d 1102, 1107 (1997).

With regard to the first prong, a defendant is not entitled to erroriess counsel. Rather,
“ld]eficient” assistance of counsel is representation that falis below an objective standard of
reasonableness.” Kirksey, 112 Nev. nt 987, 923 P.2d at 1107, What appears by hindsight to
be a wrong or poorly advised decision involving tactics or strategy is not sufficient to reet the
defendant’s heavy burden of proving ineffective counsel. “Judicial review of a lawyer’s
representation is highly deferentizl, and a defendant must overcome the presumption that a
challenged action might be considered sound strategy.” State v. LaPena 114 Nev. | 159, 1166,
968 P.2d 750, 754 (1998). In order to meet the second “prejudice” prong of the test, “the
defendant must show a reasonable probability that, but for counset’s etrars, the result of the
trizi would have been different.” Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 988, 825 P.2d at 1107,

Defendant first claims trial counsel was ineffective for failing to use a peremptory
challenge to excuse a juror who indicated he was familiar with obe of the State’s witnesses in
that the juror had attended high school with the witness over 20 years earlier. A prospective
Juror should be removed for cause cnly if the prospective juror's views would prevent or
substantially impair the performance of his duties as a juror. Preciado v. State, 130 Nev. .
__, 318 P.3d 178 (20G14) (citing Weber v. State, 121 Nev, 554, 580, 119 P.3d 107, 125

(2005)). That a prospective juror is familiar with a withess does not require excusal of the
prospective juror where the juror unequivocatly states that he or she can remain impartial, 1d.
at ___, 318 P.3d at 179. Here, as Defendant points out, Prospective Juror 602 informed the
court that he attended high school with one of the State’s witnesses, Stacy Monroe, Reporter’s
Transeript (“RT”) Jury Trial, 04/16/12, p. 7. During voir dire, the prospective juror described
Mr. Mooree as “an acquaintance, at best” and explained he had not had contact with Mr.
Monroe for over 20 years. [d. at p. 126, The court inquired as to whether the prospective juror
could remain fair and impartial despite his familiarity with the witness, and he responded that
he could “for sure” remain fair to both sides. Id. at p, 126-127. Accordingly, Defendant’s trial
counse] was not required to pursue excusal of the juror, and cannot be deemed ineffective for

not deing so. This, Pefendant's claim would not have been likely to succeed, and does not
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demonstrate prejudice.

Defendant next claims appellste counsel was ineffective for including certain
arguments in Defendant’s direct appeal. First, Defendant argues appellate counsel emred in
arguing the ineffective assistance of trial counsel. Even if appellate counsel can be deemed
ineffective for raising a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counse] on direct appeal, when
such a claim is cognizable only in habeas corpus proceedings, Defendant suffered no
prejudice. In affirming Defendant's conviction, the Nevada Supreme Court merely stated that
the claim was not appropriate for direct appeal, and declined to address the claim. See Order
of Affirmance, 01/15/13, p, 2. There is no indication that inclusion of the ¢laim influenced the
court’s reasoning with respect to affinmation of Defendant’s conviction in any way. Thus,
counsel’s inclusion of the claim was harmless and caused no prejudice.

Defendant next argues appeliate counsel was ineffective for arguing on direct appeal
that there was insufficient evidence to support Defendant’s conviction in that, pursuant to
Heglemeier v, State, 111 Nev, 1244, 903 P.2d 799 {1995), there was no corroboration between
the evidence and witness testimony. Defendant alleges such an argument was inappropriate
because Heglemeier applies only to cases involving accomplice testimony, which was not
present in the instant matter. However, even if appellate counsel cited inapplicable authority,
Defendant has not demonstrated that this mistake prejudiced him in any way. fn affirming
Defendant’s conviction, the Nevada Supreme Court noted that Heiglemeier was inapplicable,
but found that regardless, “sufficient evidence supports the verdict.” See Otder of Affirmance,
01/15/13, p. 1. Thus, counsel’s inclusion of the claim caused no prejudice, and Defendant’s
claims of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel are frivolous. Accordingly, Defendant has
failed to demonstrate that this Court’s dismissal of his untimely petition will result in prejudice
pursuant to NRS 34.726.

II. DEFENDANT IS NOT ENTITLED TO APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

In Coleman v. Thompson, 507 U.8. 722, 752 (1991), the United States Supreme Court
ruled that the Sixth Amendment provides no right fo counse! in post-conviction proceedings.
In MoKkague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 912 P.2d 255 (1996), the Nevada Supreme Court
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I] similarly observed that “[1]he Nevada Constitution . . . does not guaranteg a right to counsel in

post-conviction proceedings, as we interpret the Nevada Constitution’s right to counsel
provision as being coextensive with the Sixth Amendment to the Tnited States Constitution.”
NRS 34.730 provides, in pertinent part;

“[a] petition may allege that the Defendant is unable to pay the
casts of the pmmedinss of employ counsel. Ifthe court is satisfied
that the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not
distnissed summarilg, the court may appeint counsel at the time
the court orders the filing of an answer and a refrn, In making its
determination, the court may consider whether:

a} The issues are difficult;

The Defendant is unable to comprehend the proceedings; or
c) Counsel is necessary to proceed with discovery,”

Under these provisions, it is clear that the court has discretion in determining whether
to appoint counsel. McKague specifically held that with the exception of cases in which
appointreent of counsel is mandated by statute, one does not have “[alny constitutionzal or
statutory right to counsel at all” in post-conviction proceedings. 1d. a1 164, The Nevada
Supremne Court has observed that a petitioner “must show that the requested review is not
frivolous before he may have an sttomey appointed” Peterson v. Warden, Nevada State
Prison, 87 Nev. 134, 483 P.2d 204 (1971) (citing former statute NRS 177.345(2)).

In the instant matter, Defendant has not met his burden and is therefore not entitled to

appointment of an attormey. As explained above, Defendant’s Petition is ¢leatly time-barred
without good cause, and Defendant has failed to demonstrate that dismissal of the Petition
would result in prejudice. Therefore, Defendaat has not established that the requested review
13 not frivolous, and accordingly, should not be appointed counsel.
III. DEFENDANT IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

To the extend Defendant requests an evidentiary hearing, the request should be denied.
A defendant is entitled 10 an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall v, State, 110 Nev. 1328, 1331, 885 P.2d 603, 605 (1994). “The judge

or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all supporting documents which are filed,
shall determine whether an evidentiary hearing is required.” NRS 34.770(1), However, “[a]
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defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing on factual

| allegations belied or repelied by the record.” Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 503, 686 P.2d

222,225 (1984).

In the instant case, Defendant has not presented allegations which, if true, would entitle
him 1o relief. As explained above, Defendani's Petition is plainly subject to the time bar
imposed by NRS 34.726. Further, Defendant has wholly failed to demonstrate good cause to
overcome that time bar, es his only grounds for good cause have repeatedly been found
insufficient by the Nevada Supreme Court. Moreover, as explained, Defendant’s substantive
claims fail and Defendant has therefore failed to demonstrate that he is entitied to refief.
Accordingly, no evidentiary hearing is necessary.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this Court dismiss
Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus {Post-Conviction), and deny Defendant’s
Motion to Appoint Ceunsel and Request for Evidentiary Hearing,

DATED this §th day of May, 2015,

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Mevada Bar #001565 __

NBOSKERCK
Chief Deputy District Attomney
Nevada Bar #006528
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the ahove and foregoing was made this 8th day of
May, 2015, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to;

BY

L IFO7785X/TV /it for 1/M-1

LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS #71088

SOUTHERN DESERT CORRECTIONAL CENTER
P.O, BOX 208

INDIAN SPRINGS, NEVADA 89070

o P .

ecretary for the District Attorney's Office
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Electronically Filed
06/26/2015 03:15:02 PM

ORDR Q%. 1“”£’“;‘“’

MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No.: 007302

1104 8, Tenth Street

Las Vegas, NV 89101

(702) 419-7330 (Office)

(702) 446-8065 (Fax)

Cedarlegal i].com

Court-Appointed Attarney for Defendant,

EAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA, Case No.: (C-11-274370-1
Plaintiff, Dept. No.. V
Vs,
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRJS,
Defendant.

ORDER OF APPOINTMENT
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that MATTHEW D. CARLING, ESQ., be appointed as

counsei 1o represent Defendant, Lamar Antwan Harris, for the limited iscue of whether his
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is time-barred, effective May 20, 2015, and that counsel be

paid by the Nevada State Public Defender’s Office as set forth in NRS 7.155.

DATED and DONE this g yédayof T an< , 2015,

DISTRICT ,z’aé.m'r JUDGE

Respectfully Submitted;

C burt-Appointed Attorney fo Deﬁndam
LAMAR ANTWAN HARRIS

100830
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SUPP (&. i-éﬁﬂm———

Matthew D. Cﬂ.‘l‘ling, ESL]. CLERK OF THE COURT
Newvada Bar No. 007302

1100 5, Tenth Sereer

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone: (702) 419-7330

Facsimaile: (702) 446-8065

Cedarlcgaliemail com

Com? Appointed Attorney for Petitioner! Defendant,

LAMAR HARRIS

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

TAMAR HARRIS, Case Mao:  C-11-274370
Petitipner, Dept. No.: ¥V

Y- EVIDENTIARY HEARING
REQUESTED

STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,
SUUPP PETT TO C
(POST-CONVICTION)

COMES NOW Defendant Lamar Harris (“Harris™), by and through counsel
Matthew I3, Carling and, pursuaar to NRS. Ann. § 34.724, hereby submits this Supplorental
Pesition for Wt of Habeas Corpus (the "Petition”), which is supporred by the following:

1. Name of Instirution and county in which Petitioner is presentdy
imptisoned or where and who Petitioner is presently retrained of his liberty: Nevada
Dept. of Corrections, 3.13.C.C., Clark County, Nevada.

)i Name and location of court which entered the judgment of conviction

under attack: Eighth Judicial Distder Court.
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3. Date of Judgment of Conviction: December 2, 2011.

4. Case Number: C274370,

5. (a) Length of Sentence: 7 to 173 months.

(b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which execution is
scheduled: N/A

. Is Petitioner presently serving a sentence for a conviction other than the
conviction under attack in this motion? If “Yes”, list the crime, case number and
sentence being served at this time: No.

7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: Barrery, with
Deadly Weapon, Causing Substantial Bodily Harm.

8. What was Petitioner’s Plea? Nort puilty.

9. If Petitioner entered a puilty plea to one count of an indictment or
information, and a not guilty plea to another count of an indictment or information,
or if a guilty plea was negotiated, give details: N/A.

10.  If Petitioner was found guilty after a plea of not guilty, the finding was
made by: Jury.

11.  Did the Petitioner testify art trial? No.

12,  Did Petitioner appeal from his judgment of conviction? Yes.

13.  If Petitioner appealed, answer the following:

(1) Name of the Courr: Nevada Supreme Courr.
(2) Case number or citatdon: 39817

(3) Result: Order of Affirmance.

008232
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(4) Date of Decision: 12/13/12 (Remittitur issued 1/3/13)
14.  If Petitioner did not appeal, explain briefly why he did not: N/A
15, Odher than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction and
sentence, has Petitioner previously file any petitions, applications or motion with
respect to this judgment in any court, state or federal? N/ A
16.  If your answer 10 No. 15 was “Yes”, give the following information:
(1) Name of the Court: N/A
(2) Nature of Proceedings: N/
(3) Grounds raised: N/A
(4) Did Petitioner receive an evidentiary heating on his petition,
application or motion? N/A
17. Has any ground being raised in rhis petition beent previously presented
to this er any other cournt by way of petition for habeas corpus, motion or application
or any other post-conviction proceeding? If so, identify: N/A
(a} Which of the grounds are the same: N/A
(b} The proceedings in which these grounds were raised: N/A
(c) Briefly explain why you are again raising these grounds: N/A
18.  If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23{(a) et seq. or listed on any
additional pages you have attached, were not previously presented in any other
court, state or federal, list briefly what grounds were not so presented, and give your

reasons for not presenting them: N/A

00
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19.  Is Petitioner filing this petition more than one (1) year following the
filing of the judgment of conviction or the filing of a decision on direct appeal? If so,
state briefly the reasons for the delay: This petition is untimely. Ser Memorandum of
Points and Authorides.

20.  Does Petitioner have a petition or appeal now pending in any court,
either state of federal, as to the judgment under attack? No.

21, Give the name of each attomey who reptesented you in the proceeding
resulting in yous conviction and on direct appeal: Trial—Adam Gill. Direct Appeal—
Feslic Park

22.  Does Petitioner have any future sentences to serve after you complete
the sentence imposed by the judgment under attack? N/A.

OCED ORY

On June 24, 2011, the petitioner, Lamar Harris ("Hareis™), was bound over from the
tas Vegas Justes Court to the District Court. The State filed an [nformation charging Harris
with one count of Attempt Murder with use of a Deadly Weapon, a felony; and one count of
Battery with use of 2 Dreadly Weapon Resuling in Subseandal Bodily Harm, a felony, An
ininal arraignment was held on June 30, 2011, During the inidaf acraignment the defendant
plead not guilty and the Court ordered the case be setr for eral for Julv 25, 20H1. A
preliminary hearing was held on June 22, 2011.

On July 18, 2011 a request hearing was held where the State asked for a rrial
continuance for the reason that necessary medical records had not vet been received, [Harvis’

defense counsel objected to the contnuance. The Court granted the States request and

4 000/
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ordered that the July 25, 2011 tral serdng be continued and a new trial date he rescheduled
tor August. On August 24, 2011, ar a calendar call, the Swate tequested anuther trial
contnuance. The Court denied the State’s request.

The trial began on August 3, 2011, During jury selecdon, it became apparent that
one of the jurors had a contlicr with the case. Prospeciive Juror 6002, Bd Small mentioned he
might know Stacy Monroe, one of the wimesses, 8/30/11 Tr at p. 123, He went w high
school with Monroe was a vear ahead. f4 Monroe was a preety prominent football star at
Western Fligh chool. fd Small had not seen him in over 20 years. Jd at p. 126, Small
claimed his prior history wath Monroe would not affect whatever determinaton he made
about what weight or value  give his testimony, Harris™ trial counsel, Mr, Gill passes for
cause, then waived their third peremprory challenge. Id at p. 127, Towards the end of the
second day of mal on Augusr 31, 2011, another juror came forward daiming to know one of
the witnesses. Juror No. 7 ciaimed to know Tammy Kasper, who uscd to date one of their
farnily members, Jd at pp. 195-6. Juror No. 7 stated it would not affect their deliberaiion,
and both pardes including Harris” counsel indicated thev did not see any prejudice, Jd at p.
1497,

At the onser of tdal, the State made an orl modon o be able o ask wirmesses—
speaiticaliy Darnella, Kasper and Thomas—as to why they do not want to testify ar the trial,
inclicaring that they would not specifically mention [lards” affiliadon with the Gerson Park
Kingsman gang, buc arguing it was relevanr to witness bias, 8/30/11 Te. at pp. 148.154. The
erial court faulted the State for not brnging a motion in limine to have prior bad acs

prescnted 5o as to allow brefing of the issue. Gill objected to the use of any reference to
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Hasris being in a gang, stating it was irrelevant to the proceedings and citing Sizte & Evans,
117 Nev. 609, 28 P.3d 498, in support. The Swate requested thae Darnella be allowed to
testify to threats she received trom blocked phone calls, and the trial court authorized it on
the basis of relevancy, 8/30/11 Tr. ac p. 154. Gill asked whether it should be allowed even if
they cannot be traced to Harns, bur failed to cite the constitutional standard requiring the
state 0 produce “substantial, credible evidence” linking Harrs o anv threat by intmidation
ot otherwise, Jil Thus, the crial court indicated thatr Gill's cross-examination coald “handle
thar,” Id

In the State’s presentadon of its case, Darnella testfied thar she was afraid of what
would happen to her if she testified. 8/31/11 Tr. at p. 37, Detective Mike Fletcher testified
that Darnella told him she was afraid of what might happen on the streers if she restified,
9/1/11 Tr. at p. 30. Detcenive Flewcher testified thar Thomas rold the detective: over the
phone he was afraid to come w court and, in fact, did not show up at court for the
preliminary hearing. fd at p. 61. Tletcher testificd that Thomas told him betore that he is
afraid of the boy that stabbed him and what he mighr do. £ a1 p. 62.

In the State’s closing argumeats, the prosccutor indicated 1o the jury that, when the
wimesses were on stand, they were evasive and backpedaling, 9/2/11 'Tr, ar p. 97. The
prosecutor specifically stared that Ms. |Lay said she got threatening calls, and that peaple do
not want to be labeled as a snitch, Id. ar p. 95. The prosecutor indicated that Darnella talked
abour threats that made her nervous o tstify. J4 at p, 97. The prosecutor further argucd
that there was a lot of consistency with the witncsses, with them coming in and nobody

wantng to say they saw Hards stabbing the victim, fd at p. 129, He mentioned a second

é 04

)8

2

6



L

12

13

14

15

16

time to the jury that Darnella was also afraid to testify, just like Ms, Kasper. 4, at p. 130, She
was concemned about retaliation. Id She was getting blocked number phone calls threatening
her. ld. This happened in the neighborhood Darnella has prown up in, people do know
where she tives, [d

On September 2, 2011, the jury rerurned with a verdict of guily for Battery with use
of Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm. The jury found rhat there was nor
enough evidence 1o convict Harris of Anempt Murder with the use of a Deadly Weapon.
Hards was held withour bail and sentenging was scheduled for November 7, 2011, On
November 7, 2011, Hards was sentenced to a term of 70 months w 173 months in the
NDOC. Harris was issued 182 dayvs as eredit for dme served.

The Judguent and Conviction was tiled on December 2, 2011, Hards retained attorney
Leslie A. Park o represent him in his direct appeal proceedings after he was convicred of
Battery with use of Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm during a jury trial
on September 2, 2011, Harris” Nogee of Appeat was timely ﬂiecllc:-n December 8, 2011,

On appeal, Harris challenged thar the jury’s verdict was unsupported by sufficient
evidence, relying upon Heghmeier v. Siate, 111 Nev, 1244, 903 P.2d 799 (1995) and Austin o
Srute, 87 Nev. 578, 491 P.2d 724 {1971) for the claim thar his conviction should be reversed
since there was “no corroboration between the evidence of the stab wounds on jrhe wictim’s]
tace and use of a deadly weapon.” See, Tlarrr o Stase, 2012 WL 6334399, *1 (Nev, 2012 Case
No, 59817). The Court found that Harris misinterpreted Iahmeier and Aastip since “those
cases tequire corroboraton only for cases involving accomplice testimony™ and the State had

preseated no accomplice testimony in Harris’ case. fZ The Stare instead had presented
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several witnesses who saw Hards stab the victm, finding it was for the jury to determine
weight and credibility. Id It denied this claim on the basis that sufficient evidence existed in
the record to suppor the jurv’s determinadon. I

Hards additionally actemnpted to challenge in the appeal that wial counsel was
ineffective for failing to remove a member of the jury for canse NSING 4 preempiory
challenge; however, the merits of this claim were nor addressed since it was the
inappropriate venue for such a challenge. Harvie at 1, dting Johnsan 2 Staze, 117 Nov., 1533,
160-1, 17 P.3d 1008, 1013 (2001). The Nevada Supreme Court issued its Order of Affirmance
on December 13, 2012, On January 22, 2013, the Court then issued its Remisfitar.

Harris additonally retained Ms. Park for the purpose of preparing and filing his
petinon for writ 0f habeas corpus. On June 6, 2013, Ms. Park allegedly filed a Pagtion for 17t
of Habeas Corpas with che Nevada Supreme Court, a copy of which is artached to Harris’ pro
se Pefition for Wit of Habeat Corpas, dated March 11, 2015, at Exhibit “B.” In December of
2013, Harris contacted Ms, Park to advise her that his Petidon for Wit of Habeas Corpus
was tiled with the incorrect court and should have been fled with the distrcr court, Harris
was told by Ms. Park that she would re-file the petiGon in the district court. See, A fFduavet o
famur Harnir avtached 1o the pro se Pesttiton for Wit af Habeas Corpar, dated March 11, 2013 ar
Fxhibit “A.” In January of 2014, Harris again contacted Ms. Park during the one-vear fme
limiradon in regards to the fling of his pettion for writ of habeas corpus, Jd  Ms. Park
reassured him the petition had heen filed in the district court. [,

From Janvary to Nevember of 2014, Harris had not been contacted further by Ms.

Park, and she had refused 1o wake his pre-paid, nen-collect calls or respond to his written
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correspandence. Se, Affidavit of Lamar Flarrs attached o the pro se Pesition for Wt of Habear
Carpus, dated March 11, 2015 ar Exhibit “A” Further, he had not reccived 2 copy of the
pettion she claimed she had re-filed in the district court. {4 In January of 2015, Harris took
1t upon himself to write a letter to the Clerk of the Court for the sole purpose of inguinog
into the status of his petition. T4 On January 6, 2013, the Clerk of the Court printed out a
case surmary, which reflected the facr that Harris’ pettion had never been filed. See, Harris’
pro se Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, dated March 11, 2015 ar Ixhibit *C." The Nevada
Supreme Court Docket Sheer printed on December 31, 2014, verified that no petition had
been filed by Ms, Park as she had lead Hards w believe. See, Harrie’ pro se Pefition for Writ of
I labear Corpas, dated March 11, 2015 ar Exhibic *D."

On March 11, 2013, Harrds filed his pro s Pesition Jar Wit of Habeas Corpur (Post-
Canriction) alleging ineffective assistance of counsel in the untmely filing of such petition,

together with orher challenges to trial counsel’s ineffectiveness.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On or about Apdl 23, 2011, Michael Thomas (“Thomas™) was hanging out at the
Seven Seas Bar and Restaurant when he noticed an altercadon thar involved a family friend,
Damnella Lay (“Darnella™). Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 8. Thomas went to help Darnella Lay and
ended up gering into 2 tight. During the fipht, Thomas sustained two (2] stab wounds; one
(1} in the chest and one (1} in the cheek. Tr, 8/31/11 at p.13.

Derective Mike Fletcher {"Fletcher™) was dispatched to the Seven Seas Bar., Fletcher
conducted the investigadon and learned that Harris was a suspect in the incident that

occurred. Tr. 9/01/11 at p. 26, Flercher stated thar he put together a series of photo line-
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ups using a photo of the defendant. Tletcher showed the photo line-ups to Monaroe, Kasper,
Thamas, T.ay and a few other individuals. Fletcher stared thac Kasper identified Harrs, T
9/01711 at p, 33, 34, 45.

Thomas knew Darnella’s father, Kevin Lav, and Thomas saw Darnella at the Seven
Seas the nighr of August 25, 2011, Tr. 8/31/11 at p. 182. Thomas was on rthe dance floor
when the altercaon began. Thomas remembers norhing abour the fight. From  his
undecstanding, he received his injuries from slipping and falling on glass. Tr, 8/31/11 at p-
183. Thomas does noc know who stabbed him. Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 159

Darnella does not know Thomas. Damella stated thar she knows a man by the name
of Mike, who she saw on the night of April 23, 2011 at the Seven Seas. Tr. 8/31/11 at p. 23,
Mike is her father’s friend. Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 26. Darmella left her purse with Tammy
Kasper while she was out on the dance floor. After she was done dancing, Darnella went to
get ber purse. T 8/31/11 ar p. 28, As Darnclla grabbed her purse, she got into an
altercation with Harris. [larmds pushed Darnells, causing her w fall over a barstool. Tr
8/31/11 at p. 2% Darnella stood back up and swung at Harris and struck him in the face.
Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 32. Damella was escorted out of the bar by security, but went back inside
(o retrieve her purse, then a female whom she believed was Harris® gitlfriend threw a glass ag
her. Tr 8/31/11 ac p. 33. Darnella asked the female o meet her outside. Darnella stared
that she remembers a fight occurdng ourside of the bar and rhat she was hit in the face by a
man duting thar fight, which caused her to fall down, Tr. 8/31/11 at p. 38, 39. Darnella
was not positive whom she was fighting with and that she never sawa weaporn. T, 8/31/11

at p. 4.
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Tammy Kasper {“Kasper'™) works at the Seven Seas Bar Kasper was not wortking
the night of Apri 25, 2011, but was at the har drinking, Tr. B/31/11 at p. 89, Kasper was
inside the bar when the fight occurred outside. Kasper stated thar the fight was over when
she stepped outside. Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 96.

Jocelyn Bostan {“Boston™) was ar the bar on April 25, 2011, Boston knows Harrs
and saw him at the bar that night. Tr. 8/31/11 at p. 167, Boston observed thar Harris
looked Iike he was geting jumped. Boswn aiso obscrved 1 bar tight begin, and she left the
bar. Tr. 8/31/11 ac p. 171, Boston did not uhserve anything thar had occurred ourside of
the bar. Tr, 8/31/11 at p. 172.

Stacey Monroe (“Monroe™) works at the Scven Seas bar. Monroe was nat working
on the night of Aptdl 25, 2011, but was at the bar hanging out. Tr. 9/01/11 at p4. Monroe
observed 2 fight occur inside the bar and a bottle was thrown over his head, Tr. 9/0M/11 at
p- 3, 6. Monroe cbserved a male reach for his waistband, but did not see a weapon., Tr.
9/01/11 ac p, 20. Evervone was ushered Dut. of the bar. Monrov stated thar when he
stepped outside the bar, he observed Thomas was bleeding badly from his chest and mouth,
Tr. B0/ ar p. 11, The jure retumed with a verdict of guilty for Battery with use of
Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantal Bodily Hasm, Tr. $/02/2011 at P 3

ARGUMENT
L. THE PETITIONER CAN SHOW “GOOD CAUSE” TO EXCUSE
THE PROCEDURAL DEFAULT AND THEREFORE THE
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS SHOULD NOT BE TIME
BARRED BY NRS 34.726
NRS 34.726 limits the time that is necessary to file a petition for writ of habeas

corpus and staies the tullowing: in regards o “good causes™

T 0[
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1, Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that challenges cthe
validity of a judgment or sentence must be file within 1 year after entry of
the judgment of convicdan, or if an appeal has been taken from the
judgment, within 1 year after the appellate courr of competeat judsdicion
pursuant to the mles fixed by the Supreme Court pursuant 1o Section 4 of
Article 6 of the Nevada Constitution issues its remimimr.  For the
purposes of this subsection, good cause for delav exists if the petitioner
demaonstrates to the sadsfacion of the court:
(a; that the delay is not the fault of the petitioner, and
(b) that dismissal of the petidon as undmely witl unduly prejudice the
petitoner.

In Dickerron 9. State, the Court found NRS 34.726 to mean that “the onc-vear perind
for filing a post-conviction habeas corpus petton begins to mn from the issuance of the
remitaeur from a #awefy direct appeal ... from the judgment of convicton or from the entry
of the judgment of conviction If no direct appeal is mken ™ Thid, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967
P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998}, “The purpose of the remittitur, aside from returning the record
on appeal to the district court, is nwofold: it divests this court of jurisdietion over the appeal
and rerums junisdiction to the district court, and it formally informs the district court of this
court’s tinal resolunon of the appeal,” Jd, 114 Nev, at 1087, 967 P.2d at 1134, citing Buffingion
v State, 110 Nev. 124, 126, 868 P.2d 643, 644 (19943 “[jurisdicton in an appeal s vested
selely in the supreme court unt] the reminitur issues o the district court™; Trendh o Strony, 4
Nev. 47, 91 {1868)(the object of a remimitur “is to tully nodf the lower court of the
judgment of the appellate tribunal™. “While we hold that the one-vear time perind in NRS
34.726(1} runs from the issuance of a remitdtur from a timely direct appeal to this court, we
also stress, however, thar this holding does not affect a pedtoner’s ability to overcome the

procedural time-bar by 2 showing of good cause for the delay,” Jd, 114 Nev. ar 1088, 967

P2d ar 1134,
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“Gienerally, ‘good cause’ means a ‘substantial reason; one thar affords a legal excuse.™
Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev, 248, 252, 71 P.3d 3013, 506 2003}, dting Calley o Stat, 103 Nev.,
2335, 236, 773 P.2d 1229, 1230 1989 (guoting State . Edtencpin, 63 Haw, 264, 625 P.2d 1044),
1042%. “In order 10 demonstrate good cause, a petitioner must show that an impediment
external to the defense prevented him or her from complying with the state procedural
defaulc rules.” [Id. wting Pefbgrind 1 State, 117 Nev. 860, 886-87, 34 P.3d 519, 537 20013
Logada v Stare, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P2d 944, 946 (1994 Pureanisz v Director Dept Prisons,
105 Nev. 63, 66, 769 P.2d 72, 74 {1989

Te» establish “good cause™ under NRS 34.726(1), “[a] claim of ineffective assistance
of counsel may ... excuse 4 procedural default if counsel was so ineffective as to violate the
Sixth Amendment.” Hathasay, 119 Nev. at 252, 71 P.3d at 306, ating Ddwards p. Carpenter, 529
U5, 46, 451, 120 5.Ce. 1587, 146 1.EJ.2d 518 (2000 cithg Carrier, 477 LS. at 488-89, 106
5.Ct. 2639); see alta Cramp v Wardem, 113 Nev. 293, 304, 934 P.2d 247, 253 (1997, Sixth
Amendment dghts pertain to rerined counse] as well as court-appointed counsel. Se, e
Ryanr 0. Efgisth fusticiaf Dise. Conrt exc ref, Conngy of Clark; 123 Nev. 419, 426, 168 P3d 703, 708
(discussing the tight to retin counsel of their choice under the Sixth Ameadment). In Mo
t State the Nevada Supreme Court has held as follows with regard to claims of ineffective
assistance of counsel in post-convicdon habeas petitons:

In a post-convicion habeas perton, we evaluate claims of ineffective

assistance of counsel under the test established in Strickland 0. Washingon, 1n

that 1984 decision, the United States Supreme Court created a fair, workable

and, as it rurns out, durable standard that replaced Nevads's tradidonat “farce

and sham” test. Strickland dietares that our evalvadon begins with the “strong

presumption that counsel's conduct falls within the wide range of reasonable

protessional assistance.” The Court further explained thar the “defendant
must overcome the presumpton that, under the circumstances, the challenged

13 00
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action ‘might be considered sound trral strategy.™ Within the contexr of this
strong presumption, the petidoner must demonstrate that his counsel's
performance was  deficient, faling below an  objective standard of
reasonzbleness, and that counsel’s deficient performance prejudiced the
defense. To establish prejudice based on counsel’s deficient performance, a
pettioner must show that, but for counsel’s errors, there is a reasonable
probability that the outcome would have been ditferent. A court may evaluare
the questions of deficient performance and prejudice in cither ordet and need
not consider both issues if the defendanr fails to make a sufficient showing on
one. Yet the clam that ineffectve assistance of counsel prejudiced the
petidoner is distiner from its facoual nucleus. Tn Serckland, the Cours did not
set torth the specific burden that the petitioner carries in proving the factual
allegations that form che basis of an inetfective-assistance-of-counsel claim.
Aeither has this court clagified chat burden of proof.

Some Nevada authority signals that the petitioner must prove the factual
allegatons underlying an ineffecrive-assistance-of-counset claim by clear and
convincing evidence. In Danis £ Siate, we indicated, consistent with previous
decisions, that “strong and convincing proof’ ™ was necessary to overcome
the presumption thar defense connsel fully discharged his duties. However,
many federal courts have applied the preponderance standard o the
underlving taces alleged in the petition. In ikt o. Waodford, the Ninth Circuir
Court of Appeals echoed other tederal cases in seating that a habeas petitioner
must prove the tacal allegations undedving claims of ineffective assistance
by a preponderance of the cvidence. Similarly, the Fifth Cirenit Coutt of
Appeals noted in fawes ». Cain, that “[a| petiioner who seeks o overnarn his
convicton on grounds of ineflective assistance of counsel must prove his
entitlement 1o relief by a preponderance of the evidence.”

Choosing  consistency with tederal authorty, we niow hold thar 2 habeas
corpus peitionct must prove the disputed facmal allegations underiving his
inetfective-assistance claim by a preponderance of the evidence. To the estent
that our decision today contlicrs with the “strong and convincing” language of
Davis and its predecessors, we expressly overrule those cases. Therefore,
when a pettioner alleges ineffective assistance of counsel, he must establish
the factual allegadions which form the basis for his claim of ineffectve
assistance by a preponderance of the evidence. Next, as stated in Strickland,
the petitioner must establish that those facts show counsel’s performance fell
below 3 standard of abjective reasonablencss, and finally the petidoner must
establish prejudice by showing a reasonable probability thar, but for counsel's
deficient performance, the outcome would have been different,
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fhid, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011-3, 103 P.3d 25, 31-33 (2004) (footnotes omitted), As it pertaing 1o
a claim of ineffecnve assistance of counsel under a Strvokland analvsis, *...although counsel
need not be a forrne teller, he must be a reasonabiy comperent legal historian. Though he
need not see into the future, he must reasonably recall {or ar least research) the past....”
Kennedy ». Maggis, 725 F.2d 269, 272 (5% Cir. 1984, citing Cookr v United States, 461 F.2d 530,
332 (5th Cir 1972,

However, under the Hatbavgy analysis, “in order to constitute adequate cause, the
inefrective assistance of counsel claim irself must noe be procedurally defanited,” Fiwd, 119
Nev. at 252, 71 P.3d ar 506,

In other wards, a petitioner must demonstrate cause for raising the incffective
assistance of counsel claim in an untimely fashion. In terms of a procedural
hme-bar, an adequate allegation of good cause would sutficieatly explain why
a petition was filed bevond the smwmrory time period. Thus, a claim or
alleganon thar was reasonably available to the petitioner during the starutory
time period would not constitute good cause w excuse the delay.

Hathawgy, 119 Nev, ar 252-3, 71 P.3d at 306. The core procedural challenge and analysis in
Hathawey was set forth as follows:

In the insmne case, Hathaway claimed that he had good cause 1o excuse his
delay because he requested that his attorney file an appeal, his attorney had
affirmadvely indicated that he would file an appeal, he believed that his
attorney had tled an appeal on his behalf, and he filed his habeas corpus
petition within a reasonable time after learning that his attorney had not hled
ant appeal. [footnote omitred| Trial counsel is ineffecdve if he or she fails
file a direct appeal after 2 defendant has requested or expressed a desire for a
direct appeal; counsel’s performance is deficient and prejudice is presumed
under these facts. [footnote omitted] In Losedand, the Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals recognized that, “[[jf a defendant reasonably believes thar his counsel
ls pursuing his direct appeal he most narrally will not file his swn post-
convicdon relief petition.™ [231 F.3d at 644, The court in Lovedend held thar a
petitioner’s reliance upon his counsel to file a direct appeal is sufficient cause
to excuse 8 procedural defaule if the peationer demonstates: (1) he actually
believed his counsel was pursuing his direct appeal, (2) his belief was
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objectively reasonable, and (3) he filed his state post-conviction relief petition

within a reasonable time after he should have known that his counsel was not

pursiing his direet appeal.” [{d] We conclude that the tese ser forth in Lovedend

s 2 reasonable test for evaluating an allegation of good cause hased upon a

petidoner’s mustaken beliet’ that counsel had filed a direct appeal. Thus, a

petinener can establish good cause for the delay under NRS 34.726(1) if the

petitioner establishes that the pedtoner reasonably believed that counsel had

fled an appeal and that the peddoner filed a habeas corpus petition within a

reasonable ome after learning thar a direct appeal had not been fled,

Hlaghaway, 119 Nev, at 254-3, 71 P.3d at 507-8. The Hathaway courr faulted the tral court for
falling tw hold an evidendary hearing when Hathaway had maised a claim supported by
specitic facts not belied by the record that would have entitded him 1o refief. {4, 119 Nev. at
235, 71 P.3d at 508. Without an evidentdiary hearing, the appellate court was unable o
establish whether Hathaway believed his counsel had filed a direct appeal, whether his belief
was objectively reasonable, and whether he had filed his pro se pediion fot wdt of habeas
corpus withint a reasonable time after leariag of such failure of counsel. Jd Hathaway was
remanded for an evidentary hearing on Hathaway's “good cause™ claim,

Harris™ Judgmeent and Comsition was filed on December 2, 2011, Hards remined
arorney Leslie A, Park ro represent him in his direct appeal proceedings after he was
convicted of Battery with use of Deadly Weapon Resuldng in Substandal Bodily Harm
during a jury trial on September 2, 2011. Harris' No#iw of Appeal was timely filed on
December 8, 2011, The Nevada Supreme Court issued its Order of <1ffirmanee on December
13, 20 2. On January 22, 2013, the Nevada Supreme Court issued its Remithiser

Hartis additionally rerained Ms, Park for the purpuse of preparing and filing his
peddon for wrig of babeas corpus, On Junc 6, 2013, Ms. Park allegedly filed a Pasition far Wit

of Habear Corpas with the Nevada Supreme Court, a copy of which is acached to Harris’ pro
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se Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus, dated March 11, 2013, ar Exhibit “B.” In December of
2013, Hardds contacted Ms. Park to advise her that his Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus
was filed with the incorrect court and should have been Aled with the district court. Hards
was told by Ms. Park thar she would re-file the petition in the district court. See, Affdavit of
Lantar Harry attached to the pro sc Petition for Bt of Habear Corpas, dated March 11, 2015 at
Exhibit "A™  In fanuary of 2014, Hards again contacred Ms. Park during the one-vear time
limitation in regards to the filing of his petition for writ of habeas corpus, fd Ms, Park
teassured him the petidon had been filed in the district court, 4

From January o Novernber of 2014, Hards had not been contacted turther by M.
Park, and she had refused 10 ke his pre-paid non-collect calls or respond to his written
correspondence. Se, Affidarit of Lamar Harris ateached 1o the pro se Petition Jfor Writ of Flabeas
Corpar, dated March 11, 2015 ar Bxhibic A"  Further, he had nor received a copy of the
petition she claimed she had re-filed in the district court. Id In January of 2013, Harris took
it upon himself to write 3 lerer to the Clerk of the Court for the sole purpose of inqgeliring
into the status of his perdition. fd  On January 6, 2015, the Clerk of the Court prnted out a
case summary, which reflected the fact that Harrls’ petidon had never been fled. See, Harris’
pro s Pesition for Wit of Habear Corpas, dated March 11, 2015 at Exhibit “C.” The Nevada
Supreme Court Docker Sheet printed on December 31, 2014, verified that no peotion had
been filed by Ms. Park a3 she had lead Tlacris to believe, See, Harrs' pro se Petition for Wt of
Habeas Corpas, dated Masch 11, 2013 ar Exhibit “D.™ On March 11, 2015, Harris filed his b

se Pesition for Weit of Habear Corpus {Post-Commiction) alleging incffective assistance of counsel in
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the untimely filing of such petition, together with other challenges ro tral counsel’s
inctiectivencss.

NRS 34726 limited Harns o one-year following the Nevada Supreme Court's
issuance of the Rewiiter on January 22, 2013, tor the fling of his pro se Petetin for Wit of
Habear Compus unless good cause could he shown for the delav. Because Harris’ pro se
pednon was tled March 11, 2015, ourside rhe one-vear time limitatdon of NRS 34.726,
Harris will demonstrare thar the delav was not his fault, but rather is Gulted to his then-
counsel Ms. Park, and that dismissal will unduly prejudice him because his claims will never
be able to be heard on their merdts. NRS 34.726(13(a) and /h).

Harris® good caunse challenge under NRS 34.726(1) relating to Park’s ineffectiveness
provides a substannal reason, and one that affords a legal excuse. Hathaway, 119 Nev, ac 232,
71 P.3d at 306, dting Colley, 103 Nev. at 236, 773 P.2d av 1230 (gussing Estencoin, 625 P.2d at
1042). Ms. Park’s failures first in allegedly filing [Harns’ petition for wrir of habeas corpus in
the wrong court ot never appeared on the Nevads Supreme Court docket), then failing to
file it in the correct cour, and then informing Harris she had done so, demonstrate good
cause by evidencing an impediment external to Harris that prevented him from complving
with the time hmitadons of NRS 34.726. 14, ating Pellaarint, 117 Nev. ar 886-47, 34 P,3d at
537 (2001); Logude, 110 Nev. ar 353, 871 P.2d ar 946; Parsaniv, 105 Nev, at 66, 769 P.2d at
74

Park was so ineffective as to violate the Sixth Amendment right to the effective
assistance of counscl. Harbeway, 119 Nev, at 252, 71 P.3d at 508, citing Eldwards, 529 U8, at

451, 120 5.Ct. 1587 (ating Carrier, 477 U5, ar 488-89, 106 5.Ct. 2639); ree alre Crump, 113 Nev.,
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at 504, 934 P.2d at 233. Park’s actons and omissions evidence ineffecive assistance of
counsel under the test established in Stvoblind & Warbington. Ses, Means, 120 Nev, ar 101 1-3,
103 P.3d at 31-33. Although Smisklnd dictates thar the evaluation begin with a surong
presumpuon that Park’s counsel falls within the range of reasonable professional assistance,
under these circumseances the challenged actons eannot be considered sound erial strawegy
since they deliberawhy deprived Harmis of the ability to be heard on his viable claims under
post-conviction proceedings. Park’s performance was deficient, falling below an objective
standard of reasonableness to Harrs’ prejudice.

On appeal, Park challenged that the juny’s verdict was unsupported by sufficient
evidence, relving upon Heglemeier 2. Siare, 111 Nev. 1244, 903 P.2d 799 (1995) and -lustin
Yeaz, 87 Nev, 5TR, 491 P2 7 (1971); however, she had mistnterpreced Flegfeseror and
Awsn since those cases were easily differentated as applving onlv to cases invobang
accomplice tesumony, which this ease was not. The reeotd contained several written and
recorded accounis of individuals who saw Harris stab the victim, although thuse same
witnesses testified thart they had not seen the crime oceur, inconsistencies which Park never
addressed on Harris’ behalf. Harris addidonally atempted o challenge in the appeal that trial
counsel was inetfecave for failing to remove a2 member of the jury for cause using a
preemprory challenge; however, the merits of this claim were not addressed since it was the
inapproptiate venue for such a challenge. I lamric ag *1, citing fobneon o Siare, 117 Nev. 153,
160-1, 17 P.3d 1008, 1013 (2001). In essence, Park’s entire appeal dratred and filed on
Harris” behalf was deficient through her misinterpretation of the law or her failure to

adequately research the issues raised.
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LESLIE A. PARK, ES{).
Nevada Bar No. (0DB870
.30 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101

P: (702 3182-3847
Attorney for Petilioner
LAMAR HARRIS

NEVADA SUPREME COURT
STATE OF NEVADA

Bocke: no, 59817
LAMAR HARKIS, na

Petitioner,

1
1
)
1
1 H
e, J
STATE OF NEVADA, I

I

]

Respondent

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPLUS

(Post Conviction)
TQ: CATHERINE CORTEZ-MASTO, STATE OF NEVADA ATTORNEY GENERAL
STEVE WOLFSON, CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
The Petition of LAMAR HARRIS by and through his attorney LESLIE PARK, ESQ.,

attorney for the above captioned individual. respecifully shows:

I.
POST-CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Pursuant to NRS 34.360, this petition is being filed to inquire into the cause of the
unlawful restraint of liberty.
Based on the foregoing, the Petitioner has met the requirements of 34.360 for a post-

conviction petilion for a writ of habeas corpus.

N0Q728
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
IN SUPPORT OF PETITIONER LAMAR HARRIS®
POST-CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

INTRODUCTION

Peationer LAMAR HARRIS has filed in this Court a post-conviction petition for a writ
of habeas corpus requesting that this Court issue a writ of habeas corpus or grant him an
evidentary hearing or such other relief as law and justice require.

Il.
BACKGROUND

On November 21, 2011, Lamnar Harris was sentenced inn the Eighth Judicial District
Court. He was convicted by a jury of Bantery with use of a deadly weapon causing substantial
bodily harm.

The Court sentenced Mr. Harris to 70 to 175 months in the Nevada Depariment of

Carrections.
Subsequently an appeal was filed in this Court on July 2, 2012, That appeal was
denied.
iIL.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A, STANDARD FOR ISSUANCE OF A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

The remedy of habeas corpus is available 1o one that is unlawfully confined or

Restrained from liberty. NRS 34.360

000

799




